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EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS INC.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements, other than
statements of historical fact, including statements regarding the future performance of Emergent BioSolutions Inc. or any of our businesses, our business strategy, future operations,
future financial position, future revenues and earnings, our ability to achieve the objectives of our restructuring initiatives, including our future results, projected costs, prospects,
plans and objectives of management, are forward-looking statements. We generally identify forward-looking statements by using words like "anticipate,” "believe," "continue,"
"could," "estimate," "expect," "forecast," "future,” "goal," "intend,” "may," "plan," "position," "possible," "potential," "predict," "project,” "should," "target," "will," "would," and similar
expressions or variations thereof, or the negative thereof, but these terms are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. These forward-looking statements are based
on our current intentions, beliefs, assumptions and expectations regarding future events based on information that is currently available. You should realize that if underlying
assumptions prove inaccurate or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, actual results could differ materially from our expectations. You are, therefore, cautioned not to place
undue reliance on any forward-looking statement contained herein. Any such forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made and, except as
required by law, we do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect new information, events or circumstances.

There are a number of important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements, including, among others:
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* the availability of U.S. government ("USG") funding for contracts related to procurement of our medical countermeasures ("MCM"), including CYFENDUSe (Anthrax Vaccine
Adsorbed (AVA), Adjuvanted), previously known as AV7909, BioThraxe (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) and ACAM2000e (Smallpox (Vaccinia) Vaccine, Live) among others, as
well as contracts related to development of medical countermeasures;

¢ the availability of government funding for our other commercialized products, including Ebangamv (ansuvimab-zykl), and BATe (Botulism Antitoxin Heptavalent
(A,B,C,D,E,F,G)-(Equine)) and RSDLe (Reactive Skin Decontamination Lotion Kit);

* our ability to meet our commitments to quality and compliance in all of our manufacturing operations;

* our ability to negotiate additional USG procurement or follow-on contracts for our MCM products that have expired or will be expiring;

* the commercial availability and acceptance of over-the-counter NARCANe (naloxone HCI) Nasal Spray;

» the impact of a generic and competitive marketplace on NARCANe Nasal Spray and future NARCANe Nasal Spray sales;

e our ability to perform under our contracts with the USG, including the timing of and specifications relating to deliveries;

* our ability to provide Bioservices (as defined below) for the development and/or manufacture of product and/or product candidates of our customers at required levels and
on required timelines;

» the ability of our contractors and suppliers to maintain compliance with current good manufacturing practices and other regulatory obligations;

* our ability to negotiate further commitments related to the collaboration and deployment of capacity toward future commercial manufacturing under our existing Bioservices
contracts;

¢ our ability to collect reimbursement for raw materials and payment of service fees from our Bioservices customers;

* the results of pending stockholder litigation and government investigations and their potential impact on our business;

e our ability to comply with the operating and financial covenants and the capital raise requirements by the stated deadline required by our revolving credit facility (the
"Revolving Credit Facility") and our term loan facility (the "Term Loan Facility" and, together with the Revolving Credit Facility, the "Senior Secured Credit Facilities") under a
senior secured credit agreement, dated October 15, 2018, between the Company and multiple lending institutions, as amended, from time to time, as well as our 3.875%
Senior Unsecured Notes due 2028 ("Senior (the "Senior Unsecured Notes");

* our ability to maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting and to prepare accurate financial statements in a timely manner;

* our ability to resolve the going concern qualification in our consolidated financial statements and otherwise successfully manage our liquidity in order to continue as a going

concern;

EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS INC.

¢ the procurement of our product candidates by USG entities under regulatory authorities that permit government procurement of certain medical products prior to United
States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) marketing authorization, and corresponding procurement by government entities outside the United States;

e our ability to realize the expected benefits of the sale of our travel health business to Bavarian Nordic; Nordic, the pending sale of our Drug Product facility in Baltimore-
Camden to Bora Pharmaceuticals Injectibles Inc., a subsidiary of Bora Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Bora”) and the sale of RSDLe (Reactive Skin Decontamination Lotion) to
BTG International Inc., a subsidiary of SERB Pharmaceuticals (collectively, “SERB");

* the impact of the organizational changes we announced in January 2023, August 2023 and August 2023; May 2024;

* the success of our commercialization, marketing and manufacturing capabilities and strategy;

* our ability to identify and acquire companies, businesses, products or product candidates that satisfy our selection criteria;

¢ the impact of cyber security incidents, including the risks from the unauthorized access, interruption, failure or compromise of our information systems or those of our
business partners, collaborators or other third parties; and

* the accuracy of our estimates regarding future revenues, expenses, capital requirements and need for additional financing.

The foregoing sets forth many, but not all, of the factors that could cause actual results to differ from our expectations in any forward-looking statement. When evaluating our
forward-looking statements, you should consider this cautionary statement along with the sections entitled "Risk Factors," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" and "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk" in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as the risks identified in our
other reports filed with the SEC. New factors may emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for management to predict all such factors, nor can it assess the impact of any
such factor on the business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement.

NOTE REGARDING COMPANY REFERENCES
References in this report to “Emergent,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to Emergent BioSolutions Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.
NOTE REGARDING TRADE NAMES

Emergente, BioThraxe, BaciThraxe, RSDLe, BATe, Trobigarde, Anthrasile, CNJ-016e, ACAM2000s, NARCANe, CYFENDUSe, TEMBEXAe and any and all Emergent
BioSolutions Inc. brands, products, services and feature names, logos and slogans are trademarks or registered trademarks of Emergent BioSolutions Inc. or its subsidiaries in the
United States or other countries. All other brands, products, services and feature names or trademarks are the property of their respective owners. owners, including RSDLe
(Reactive Skin Decontamination Lotion), which was acquired by SERB on July 31, 2024.

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Emergent BioSolutions Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions, except per share amounts)
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December December
31, 2023 31, 2023

(unaudited)

ASSETS

ASSETS
ASSETS

Current Current
Current assets: assets: assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Assets held for sale
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Other assets
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation
Debt, current portion
Other current liabilities
Liabilities held for sale
Total current liabilities
Debt, net of current portion
Debt, net of current portion
Debt, net of current portion
Deferred tax liability
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity:
Stockholders' equity:
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share; 15.0 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share; 15.0 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share; 15.0 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding

Common stock, $0.001 par value per share; 200.0 shares authorized, 58.0 and 57.8 shares issued; 52.4
and 52.2 shares outstanding, respectively
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Common stock, $0.001 par value per share; 200.0 shares authorized, 58.5 and 57.8 shares issued; 52.9
and 52.2 shares outstanding, respectively

Treasury stock, at cost, 5.6 and 5.6 common shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Emergent BioSolutions Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations
(unaudited, in millions, except per share amounts)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2024

Revenues:
Revenues:
Revenues:
Commercial Product sales
Commercial Product sales
Commercial Product sales
MCM Product sales
MCM Product sales
MCM Product sales
Total Product sales, net
Total Product sales, net
Total Product sales, net
Bioservices:
Bioservices:
Bioservices:
Services
Services
Services
Leases
Leases
Leases
Total Bioservices revenues
Total Bioservices revenues
Total Bioservices revenues
Contracts and grants
Contracts and grants
Contracts and grants
Total revenues
Total revenues
Total revenues
Operating expenses:
Operating expenses:
Operating expenses:
Cost of Commercial Product sales
Cost of Commercial Product sales

Cost of Commercial Product sales
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Cost of MCM Product sales
Cost of MCM Product sales
Cost of MCM Product sales
Cost of Bioservices
Cost of Bioservices
Cost of Bioservices
Research and development
Research and development
Impairment of long-lived assets
Impairment of long-lived assets
Impairment of long-lived assets
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Total operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Income (loss) from operations
Income (loss) from operations
Income (loss) from operations
Loss from operations
Loss from operations
Loss from operations
Other income (expense):
Other income (expense):
Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest expense
Other, net
Other, net

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale

Other, net
Total other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net
Income (loss) before income taxes
Loss before income taxes
Loss before income taxes
Loss before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net loss
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax provision
Income tax provision

Income tax provision
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Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per common share
Net income (loss) per common share
Net income (loss) per common share
Net loss per common share
Net loss per common share
Net loss per common share

Basic

Basic

Basic

Diluted

Diluted

Diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding
Weighted average shares outstanding
Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic

Basic

Basic

Diluted

Diluted

Diluted

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Emergent BioSolutions Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) Loss
(unaudited, in millions)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Net loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net
Unrealized losses on hedging activities
Unrealized losses on hedging activities
Unrealized losses on hedging activities
Reclassification adjustment for gains on hedging activities

Reclassification adjustment for gains on hedging activities

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 8/408
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Reclassification adjustment for gains on hedging activities
Reclassification adjustment for gains on pension benefit obligation
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Comprehensive loss, net of tax
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Emergent BioSolutions Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(unaudited, in millions)

Operating Activities
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:
Net loss
Net loss
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Share-based compensation expense
Share-based compensation expense
Share-based compensation expense
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization
Change in fair value of contingent obligations, net
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Deferred income taxes
Loss (gain) on sale of business and assets held for sale
Impairment of long-lived assets
Impairment of long-lived assets
Impairment of long-lived assets
Other
Other
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Long-term incentive plan accrual

Accrued compensation
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Income taxes receivable and payable, net
Contract liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of business, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Proceeds from sale of business, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Proceeds from sale of business, net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Financing Activities
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Principal payments on revolving credit facility
Principal payments on term loan facility
Proceeds from share-based compensation activity
Proceeds from share-based compensation activity
Proceeds from share-based compensation activity
Taxes paid for share-based compensation activity
Debt issuance costs
Taxes paid for share-based compensation activity
Taxes paid for share-based compensation activity
Taxes paid for share-based compensation activity

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities:

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities:

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities:
Proceeds from at-the-market sale of stock, net of commissions and expenses
Proceeds from at-the-market sale of stock, net of commissions and expenses
Proceeds from at-the-market sale of stock, net of commissions and expenses

Net cash used in financing activities:

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Add: Net change in cash, classified within current assets held for sale
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment unpaid at period end
Purchases of property, plant and equipment unpaid at period end

Purchases of property, plant and equipment unpaid at period end
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Gain on extinguishment of debt
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Total
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Emergent BioSolutions Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
(unaudited, in millions)

Accumulated Accumulated

Comprehensive]Accumulated ] Stockholders'

Capital i Capital Deficit

Balance at
December 31,
2023

Balance at
December 31,
2023

Balance at
December 31,
2023

Net income

Share-based
compensation
activity

Other
comprehensive
income, net of
tax

Balance at
March 31, 2024

Net loss

Share-based
compensation
activity

Balance at June
30, 2024

Balance at June
30, 2024

Balance at June
30, 2024

Accumulated
Common|Treasury| Additional Other

Accumulated
Common|Treasury | Additional Other

Paid-In | Comprehensive |Retained|Stockholders’ Comprehensive |Retained | Stockholders'

Capital Income Income (Loss) |Earnings

Balance at December
31, 2022

Balance at December
31, 2022
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Balance at December
31, 2022
Net loss
Share-based
compensation
activity
Other comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Balance at March 31,
2023
Net loss
Share-based
compensation
activity
At-the-market sale of
stock, net of
commissions and
expenses
Other comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive
loss, net of tax
Balance at June 30,
2023
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited, dollar and share amounts in tables in millions, except per share data)

1. Nature of the business and organization
Organization and business

Emergent BioSolutions Inc. (“Emergent,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) is a global life sciences company focused on providing innovative preparedness and response
solutions addressing accidental, deliberate, and naturally occurring Public Health Threats ("PHTs"). The Company's solutions include a product portfolio, a product development
portfolio, and a contract development and manufacturing (“CDMQ") services portfolio.

The Company is focused on the following four PHT categories: chemical, biological, radiological, nuclear and explosives ("CBRNE"); emerging infectious diseases ("EID");
emerging health crises; and acute, emergency and community care. The As of June 30, 2024, the Company has a product portfolio of 1211 products (vaccines, therapeutics, and
drug-device combination products). The revenues generated by the products comprise a substantial portion of the Company's revenue. The Company structures its business with a
focus on markets and customers. As such, the key components of the business structure include the following four product and service categories: NARCANe commercial product,
Anthrax - Medical Countermeasures (“MCM") Products, Smallpox - MCM products and Emergent Bioservices (CDMO) ("Bioservices").

The Company'’s business is organized in three reportable operating segments: (1) a Commercial Products segment consisting of NARCANe Nasal Spray and other commercial
products, which were sold as part of our travel health business in the second quarter of 2023 (see Note 3,4, "Divestiture" for more information on the sale of the travel health
business); (2) a MCM Products segment consisting of our Anthrax - MCM, Smallpox - MCM and Other Products, described below and (3) a Services segment consisting of our
Bioservices offerings (see Note 16, 17, "Segment information™ for more information on our reportable segments).

The Company's products and services include:
Commercial Products Segment:

NARCAN®
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* NARCANe (naloxone HCI) Nasal Spray is an intranasal formulation of naloxone approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) (including in over-the-
counter form) and Health Canada for the emergency treatment of known or suspected opioid overdose as manifested by respiratory and/or central nervous system
depression.

Sale of Travel Health Business

On May 15, 2023, the Company completed the sale of its Commercial Products segment's travel health business, including rights to Vivotife, the licensed typhoid vaccine;
Vaxchorae, the licensed cholera vaccine; the development-stage chikungunya vaccine candidate CHIKV VLP; the Company’s manufacturing site in Bern, Switzerland; and certain of
its development facilities in San Diego, California. For additional information, refer to Note 3, 4, "Divestiture".

MCM Products Segment:

Anthrax - MCM Products

¢ Anthrasile (Anthrax Immune Globulin Intravenous (human)), the only polyclonal antibody therapeutic licensed by the FDA and Health Canada for the treatment of
inhalational anthrax in combination with appropriate antibacterial drugs;

¢ BioThraxe (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed), the only vaccine licensed by the FDA for the general use prophylaxis and post-exposure prophylaxis of anthrax disease;

* CYFENDUSe (Anthrax vaccine adsorbed (AVA), adjuvanted), previously known as AV7909, which was recently approved by the FDA for post-exposure prophylaxis of
disease following suspected or confirmed exposure to Bacillus anthracis in persons 18 through 65 years of age when administered in conjunction with recommended
antibacterial drugs. CYFENDUSe is procured by certain authorized government buyers for their use; and

¢ Raxibacumab injection, the first fully human monoclonal antibody therapeutic licensed by the FDA for the treatment and prophylaxis of inhalational anthrax;

Smallpox - MCM Products

*  ACAM2000e, (Smallpox (Vaccinia) Vaccine, Live), the only single-dose smallpox vaccine licensed by the FDA for active immunization against smallpox disease for persons
determined to be at high risk for smallpox infection;

¢ CNJ-016e (Vaccinia Immune Globulin Intravenous (Human) (VIGIV)), the only polyclonal antibody therapeutic licensed by the FDA and Health Canada to address certain
complications from smallpox vaccination; and

* TEMBEXAe, an oral antiviral formulated as 100 mg tablets and 10 mg/mL oral suspension dosed once weekly for two weeks which has been approved by the FDA for the
treatment of smallpox disease caused by variola virus in adult and pediatric patients, including neonates.

Other Products

* BATe (Botulism Antitoxin Heptavalent (A,B,C,D,E,F,G)-(Equine)), the only heptavalent antitoxin licensed by the FDA and Health Canada for the treatment of symptomatic
botulism;

¢ Ebanga™ (ansuvimab-zykl), a monoclonal antibody with antiviral activity provided through a single IV infusion for the treatment of Ebola. Under the terms of a collaboration
with Ridgeback Biotherapeutics (“Ridgeback”), Emergent will be responsible for the manufacturing, sale, and distribution of Ebanga™ in the U.S. and Canada, and
Ridgeback will serve as the global access partner for Ebanga™;

* RSDLe (Reactive Skin Decontamination Lotion Kit), Lotion) kit, the only medical device cleared by the FDA that is intended to remove or neutralize chemical warfare agents
from the skin, including: tabun, sarin, soman, cyclohexyl sarin, VR, VX, mustard gas and T-2 toxin; toxin. On July 31, 2024, the Company entered into the Stock and Asset
Purchase Agreement (the “RSDLe Agreement”) with SERB Pharmaceuticals, through its wholly owned subsidiary BTG International Inc. (collectively, “SERB”), pursuant to
which, among other things, the Company sold its worldwide rights to RSDLe, to SERB (the “RSDLe Transaction”). See Note 18, “Subsequent events” for more information
about the RSDL Transaction; and

* TrobigardeTrobigard® atropine sulfate, obidoxime chloride auto-injector, a combination drug-device auto-injector procured product candidate that contains atropine sulfate
and obidoxime chloride. Trobigarde was approved in Belgium in 2021 but has not been approved by the FDA. Trobigarde is procured by certain authorized government
buyers under special circumstances for potential use as a nerve agent countermeasure outside of the U.S. On April 2, 2024, Emergent submitted its revocation of the
Market Authorization for the Trobigard Auto-Injector to the Belgium Federal Agency for Medicines and Health Products (“FAMHP”). The FAHMP subsequently acknowledged
and confirmed Emergent’s request to revoke the revocation date as being April 2, 2024. Market Authorization for the Trobigard Auto-Injector.

Services Segment:
Bioservices - CDMO

The Company'’s services revenue consists of distinct but interrelated bioservices: drug substance manufacturing; drug product manufacturing (also referred to as "fill/finish"
services) and packaging; development services including technology transfer, process and analytical development services; and, when necessary, suite reservation obligations.
These services, which the Company refers to as "molecule-to-market" offerings, employ diverse technology platforms (mammalian, microbial, viral and plasma) across a network of
nine seven geographically distinct development and manufacturing sites operated by the Company for its internal products and pipeline candidates and third-party bioservices. The
Company services both clinical-stage and commercial-stage projects for a variety of third-party customers, including government agencies, innovative pharmaceutical companies,
and non-government organizations. In August 2023, the Company initiated an organizational restructuring plan (the “August 2023 Plan”) which included actions to reduce
investment in and de-emphasize focus on its Bioservices business. In May 2024, the Company initiated a further organizational restructuring plan (the “May 2024 Plan”) announcing
the closure of the Company’s Baltimore-Bayview Drug Substance manufacturing facility and Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility. Additionally, on June 20, 2024 the Company
announced entry into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”) with Bora Pharmaceuticals Injectibles Inc., a subsidiary of Bora Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.
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(“Bora”), under which the Company will sell its Drug Product facility in Baltimore-Camden (the “Camden Transaction”). See Note 3, “Assets and liabilities held for sale” and Note 5,
“Impairment and restructuring charges” for more information related to these announcements.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of presentation and consolidation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Emergent and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X
issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, as filed with
the SEC on March 8, 2024.

All adjustments contained in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are of a normal recurring nature and are necessary to present fairly the
financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any other interim period or
for an entire year.

Going concern

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, there was $264.2%$222.7 million outstanding on the Company's senior revolving credit facility (“Revolving Credit Facility”) and
$194.2$190.3 million on the senior term loan facility (“Term Loan Facility” and together with the Revolving Credit Facility, the “Senior Secured Credit Facilities”) that mature in May
2025 and the Senior Credit Facilities were are subject to a forbearance agreement as described below, with respect to the Company’s honcompliance with certain operational and
financial covenants. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company had $78.5$69.7 million in cash and cash equivalents. As a result of these factors, the Company determined
that there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. The evaluation
considered the potential mitigating effects of management’s plans that have not been fully implemented. Management has evaluated the mitigating effects of its plans to determine if
it is probable that (1) the plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date the financial statements are issued, and (2) when implemented, the plans will mitigate
the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans include (A) further amending the Senior
Secured Credit Facilities, and (B) improving operating performance, reducing working capital and the potential of the sale of assets to pay down the Senior Secured Credit Facilities
before they become due. As neither plan is in the complete control of management, neither is probable of occurring. In this regard, management may not be able to further amend
the Senior Secured Credit Facilities or find a buyer for the assets it is willing to divest and may not be able to close on any asset sale for which management is able to reach an
agreement with a buyer. As a result, the Company may be unable to meet its obligations as they become due. In addition, any asset sales that are completed could have potential
negative impacts on the Company's future operating cash flows and profitability.

Debt Covenants

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities mature in May 2025, and provide for (1) revolving credit commitments, (2) a term loan, and (3) the issuance of commercial letters of credit.
As of March 31, 2024, the Company had $458.4 million outstanding under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities. As of March 31, 2024, the Company was not in compliance with the
minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities and did not expect to satisfy a covenant requiring it to raise not less than $75.0 million through
issuance of equity and/or unsecured indebtedness by April 30, 2024. In addition, the Company was required to deliver audited annual financial statements without a “going concern”
explanatory paragraph with respect to its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, which was not achieved. However, on February 29, 2024, the requisite lenders
agreed to enter into a Forbearance Agreement and Sixth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Forbearance Agreement and Amendment”) with the
Company, which included a limited waiver of certain events of default, including those that resulted from (a) any violation of the financial covenants set forth in the Senior Secured
Credit Facilities with respect to the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2023 and the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2024 and (b) the going concern explanatory paragraph
contained in the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. This forbearance period (the “Forbearance Period”) expired on April 30, 2024.

On April 29, 2024, the requisite lenders agreed to enter into a Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Seventh
Amendment”) with the Company. The Seventh Amendment, among other things: (a) reduces available commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility to $270.0 $240.0 million
through July 30, 2024, to $225.0$210.0 million from July 31, 2024 through September 29, 2024, to $205.0 million from September 30, 2024 through October 30, 2024, to
$180.0 million from October 31, 2024 through November 29, 2024, and to $200.0$170.0 million on October 31, 2024 from November 30, 2024 and thereafter; thereafter (in each
case subject to potential limited additional borrowings from a specified reserve with the consent of the lenders); (b) amends the interest rate benchmark in the definition of Applicable
Margin from (i) 5.00% per annum to 7.00% per annum with respect to Base Rate Loans and (ii) 6.50% per annum to 8.50% per annum with respect to SOFR Loans, RFR Loans and
Eurocurrency Rate Loans; and (c) requires the Company to raise equity or unsecured indebtedness of at least $85.0 million by July 31, 2024 (or such later date on or before
September 29, 2024 as agreed to by the Administrative Agent), provided that such requirement will be reduced by the aggregate net cash proceeds received from certain
dispositions that are applied to reduce amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company expects to apply the proceeds from the Camden Transaction and the
RSDLe Transaction to reduce borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility in order to satisfy the capital raise requirement, the deadline for which was recently extended to
September 29, 2024. There is no guarantee the Company will be able to meet the capital raise requirement by the stated this deadline.

In addition, pursuant to the Seventh Amendment, the Company is obligated to apply 100% of the aggregate net cash proceeds received from certain dispositions to the
prepayment of amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, except where such proceeds exceed $85,000,000, in which case such mandatory prepayment of the
Revolving Credit Facility will no longer be required. Mandatory prepayment of the Term Loan Facility will not be required unless and until the aggregate net proceeds from such
dispositions exceed $85,000,000, at which point 100% of such proceeds must be used toward repayment of amounts outstanding under the Term Loan Facility.

Under the Seventh Amendment, the Company is also subject to (a) a monthly minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant through May 15, 2025 and a monthly maximum capital
expenditures covenant through March 31, 2025, (b) a minimum liquidity requirement and (c) additional financial statement reporting and business plan forecast obligations. In
connection with the entry into the Seventh Amendment, the Company paid an amendment fee of an aggregate amount equal to 0.5% of the total credit exposure as of the Seventh
Amendment effective date and will be required to pay an additional amendment fee of 1.0% of total credit exposure at December 1, 2024 and each month thereafter. The Senior

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 14/408
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Secured Credit Facilities and the Company’s other debt facilities are described in more detail below in Note 9, “Debt.” 10, “Debt”. As of the date of these financial statements, the
Company is in compliance with the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facilities.

If the Company defaults under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, the lenders would have the right to accelerate the repayment of borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit
Facilities, which would result in a cross-default of the Company’s obligations under the 3.875% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2028 (the “Senior Unsecured Notes”). If the Company
were unable to obtain additional waivers or forbearance of such covenants or defaults, to successfully renegotiate the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, or to cure the
potential covenant breach or default, and the lenders enforced one or more of their rights upon default and/or the default resulted in a cross-default under the Senior Unsecured
Notes, the Company would be unable to meet its obligations under those agreements and would likely be forced into insolvency proceedings.

Based on the facts and circumstances described above, there can be no assurance that the Company would be able to comply with its debt covenants in the future. As a result,
the Company continues to evaluate a number of factors related to its ability to continue as a going concern, including its ability to comply with the terms and operating and financial
covenants required by the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, its ability to satisfy the capital raise requirement required by the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, other market conditions,
economic conditions, particularly in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry, and disruptions or volatility caused by factors such as regional conflicts, inflation, and supply
chain disruptions. The Company has engaged legal and financial advisors to assist with a comprehensive review of alternatives to enhance its capital structure, which may include
taking steps to cure any potential defaults or seeking forbearance, waivers, further cost reductions, asset sales, restructurings or other alternatives to avoid an event of default.

Significant accounting policies

During the threesix months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, there have been no significant changes to the Company's summary of significant accounting policies
contained in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, as filed with the SEC that have materially impacted the presentation of the
Company's financial statements.

Fair value measurements

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability, an exit price, in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value, includes:

Level 1 — Observable inputs for identical assets or liabilities such as quoted prices in active markets;
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, which are therefore developed by the Company using estimates and assumptions that

reflect those that a market participant would use.

On a recurring basis, the Company measures and records money market funds (Level 1), interest-rate swap arrangements and time deposits (Level 2) and contingent purchase
consideration (Level 3) using fair value measurements in the accompanying financial statements. The carrying amounts of the Company's short-term financial instruments, which
include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The carrying amounts of the Company’s
long-term variable interest rate debt arrangements (Level 2) approximate their fair values.

New accounting standards

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board that the Company adopts as of the pronouncement's specified
effective date.

Accounting_Standards Not Yet Adopted

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2023-07 ("ASU 2023-07"), Segment Reporting (Topic
280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, which improves reportable segment disclosure requirements, on an annual and interim basis, primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant segment expenses. Additionally, it requires a public entity to disclose the title and position of the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"). The ASU
does not change how a public entity identifies its operating segments, aggregates them, or applies the quantitative thresholds to determine its reportable segments. The
amendments in the ASU are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, although
early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which requires a public business entity to disclose, on
an annual basis, a tabular rate reconciliation using both percentages and currency amounts, broken out into specified categories with certain reconciling items further broken out by
nature and jurisdiction to the extent those items exceed a specified threshold. In addition, all entities are required to disclose income taxes paid, net of refunds received
disaggregated by federal, state/local, and foreign and by jurisdiction if the amount is at least 5% of total income tax payments, net of refunds received. The amendments in the ASU
are effective for public business entities for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, although early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of evaluating
the impact of this new guidance on it consolidated financial statements.

3. Assets and liabilities held for sale

On June 20, 2024, the Company announced that it had entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement to sell its Drug Product facility in Baltimore-Camden to an affiliate of Bora, a
leading international pharmaceutical services company, for a total value of approximately $30.0 million. The Camden site, which is part of the Company’s Bioservices segment, has
clinical and commercial non-viral aseptic fill/finish services on four fill lines, including lyophilization, formulation development, and support services. Alongside the facility,
approximately 350 current Emergent employees are expected to join Bora as part of the transaction.

The Camden Transaction is expected to close in the third quarter of 2024, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions.
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In the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2024, the assets and liabilities that are expected to be conveyed in the Camden Transaction are
classified as held for sale and are measured at the lower of (i) the carrying value of the disposal group and (ii) the fair value of the disposal group, less costs to sell. Effective with
the designation of the Camden Transaction as held for sale on June 20, 2024, the Company suspended recording depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets while these assets are classified as held for sale. Any loss resulting from the measurement is recognized in the period the held for sale criteria are met. Conversely, gains are
not recognized until the date of sale. The Company recognized a loss on assets held for sale of $40.0 million, including transaction costs of $3.9 million, during the three months
ended June 30, 2024 in “Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale” within non-operating activities.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2024 consist of the following:

Assets held for sale:

Accounts receivable, net $ 215
Inventories, net 28.9
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 0.5
Property, plant and equipment, net 22.1
Other assets 0.7
Valuation allowance (40.0)

Total assets held for sale $ 33.7

Liabilities held for sale:

Accounts payable $ 6.5
Accrued compensation 25
Other current liabilities 0.3
Other liabilities 0.8

Total liabilities held for sale $ 10.1

4. Divestiture

On May 15, 2023, pursuant to the Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Purchase and Sale Agreement”), by and between the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiaries
Emergent International Inc. and Emergent Travel Health Inc., and Bavarian Nordic, ("Bavarian Nordic”), the Company completed the sale of the Company’s travel health business,
including rights to Vivotife, the licensed typhoid vaccine; Vaxchorae, the licensed cholera vaccine; the development-stage chikungunya vaccine candidate CHIKV VLP; the
Company’s manufacturing site in Bern, Switzerland; and certain of its development facilities in San Diego, California.

At the closing, Bavarian Nordic paid a cash purchase price of $270.2 million, exclusive of customary closing adjustments for cash, indebtedness, working capital and transaction
expenses of the business at closing. Bavarian Nordic may also be required to pay milestone payments of up to $80.0 million related to the development of CHIKV VLP and receipt of
marketing approval and authorization in the U.S. and Europe, and earn-out payments of up to $30.0 million based on aggregate net sales of Vaxchorae and Vivotife in calendar year
2026. On July 18, 2024, Bavarian Nordic announced that the European Medicines Agency had validated the marketing authorization application, which triggered a development
milestone payment under the Purchase and Sale Agreement to the Company in the amount of $10.0 million. See Note 18, “Subsequent events” for more information on the
development milestone trigger.

As a result of the divestiture, the Company recognized a pre-tax gain of $74.2 million, net of transaction costs of $4.0 million recorded within "Gain (loss) on sale of
business" business and assets held for sale" on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations during 2023.

In connection with the divestiture, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement (“TSA") with Bavarian Nordic to help support its ongoing operations. Under the
TSA, the Company provides certain transition services to Bavarian Nordic, including information technology, finance and enterprise resource planning, research and development,
human resources, employee benefits and other limited services. Income from performing services under the TSA is recorded within "Other, net" on the Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Operations and was $0.4 $0.1 million and $0.5 million for three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, respectively and $1.0 million for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2023.

5. Impairment and restructuring charges
Impairments of long-lived assets

The Company tests its long-lived assets that are held and used for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
group may not be recoverable.

2024 Impairment of long-lived assets

During the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2024, due to the decision to close the Company’s Baltimore-Bayview Drug
Substance manufacturing facility and the Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility the Company determined there were sufficient indicators of impairment for the Bayview and
Rockville asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit. As a result, the Company performed recoverability tests on those asset groups and concluded that the Bayview and
Rockville asset groups were not recoverable as the undiscounted expected cash flows did not exceed their carrying values.

Asset groups are written down only to the extent that their carrying value is higher than their respective fair value. The Company, with the assistance of a third-party valuation
firm, applied valuation methods to estimate the fair values for each of the assets within the different asset classes. An orderly liquidation value was applied to estimate the fair value

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 16/408
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

of the personal property assets and market and cost based approaches were applied to estimate the fair value of the real property assets, each representing Level 3 non-recurring
fair value measurements. Based on these analyses, the Company allocated and recognized a non-cash impairment charge of $27.2 million during the three months ended June 30,
2024.

2023 Impairment of long-lived assets

During the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2023, due to deterioration in performance and resulting downward revisions
to the Company’s internal Bioservices forecast made during the second quarter, including future expected cash flows, the Company determined there were sufficient indicators of
impairment on the Camden, Bayview and Rockville asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit to require an impairment analysis. As a result, the Company performed
recoverability tests on certain asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit and concluded that the impacted asset groups were not recoverable as the undiscounted expected
cash flows did not exceed their carrying values.

Asset groups are written down only to the extent that their carrying value is higher than their respective fair value. The Company, with the assistance of a third-party valuation
firm, applied valuation methods to estimate the fair values for each of the assets within the different asset classes. An orderly liquidation value was applied to estimate the fair value
of the personal property assets and market and cost based approaches were applied to estimate the fair value of the real property assets, each representing Level 3 non-recurring
fair value measurements. Based on these analyses, the Company allocated and recognized a non-cash impairment charge of $306.7 million during the three months ended June
30, 2023.

The table below presents the total impairment charge by asset class for the three months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Buildings, building improvements and leasehold improvements 7.8 81.5
Furniture and equipment 141 117.5
Software 0.2 0.3
Construction-in-progress 5.1 107.4

Total impairment of long-lived assets $ 272 $ 306.7

4. Restructuring charges Charges

January 2023 Organizational Restructuring_Plan

In January 2023, the Company initiated an organizational restructuring plan (the “January 2023 Plan”) intended to reduce operating costs, improve operating margins, and
continue advancing the Company’s ongoing commitment to profitable growth. As part of the January 2023 Plan, the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 125
employees. The charges related to the January 2023 plan consist primarily of employee transition, severance payment and employee benefit charges. The cumulative amount of
restructuring charge related to the January 2023 Plan since inception is $9.3 million. All activities related to the January 2023 Plan were substantially completed during the first
quarter of 2023. Restructuring costs are recognized as an operating expense within the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and are classified based on the
Company's classification policy for each category of operating expense.

August 2023 Organizational Restructuring Plan

In August 2023, the Company initiated the August 2023 Plan which was intended to strengthen its core business and financial position by reducing investment in and de-
emphasizing focus on its CDMO services business for future growth. As part of the August 2023 Plan, the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 400 employees. The
charges related to the August 2023 Plan consist primarily of employee transition, severance payment and employee benefit charges. The cumulative amount of restructuring charge
related to the August 2023 Plan since inception is $19.5$19.4 million. All activities related to the August 2023 Plan were substantially completed during the third quarter of 2023.
Restructuring costs are recognized as an operating expense within the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and are classified based on the Company's classification
policy for each category of operating expense.

May 2024 Organizational Restructuring_Plan

In May 2024, the Company initiated the May 2024 Plan. These strategic actions will lead to a reduction of the Company’s current workforce by approximately 300 employees
across all areas of the Company and the elimination of approximately 85 positions that are currently vacant, as well as the closure of the Company’s Baltimore-Bayview Drug
Substance manufacturing facility and Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility. Decisions regarding the elimination of positions and the closure of manufacturing facilities are subject
to local law and consultation requirements in certain countries, as well as the Company’s business needs. The cumulative amount of restructuring charge related to the May 2024
Plan since inception is $17.2 million. All activities related to the May 2024 Plan are expected to be substantially completed during in the third quarter of 2024. Restructuring costs are
recognized as an operating expense within the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and are classified based on the Company's classification policy for each category
of operating expense.

The following table presents the total restructuring costs related to the January 2023 Plan, and August 2023 Plan and May 2024 Plan by reportable segment as well as amounts
included within unallocated corporate selling general and administrative (“SG&A”) expense and research and development ("R&D") expense:

Three Months Ended March 31,

Commercial Products
MCM Products
Services

Total restructuring costs by segment
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SG&A
R&D

Total restructuring costs

The following table presents the total restructuring costs related to the January 2023 Plan, and August 2023 Plan and May 2024 Plan by function:

Three Months Ended March 31,

Employee transition
Severance payments
Employee benefits
Total restructuring costs
The following tables provide the components of and changes in the Company's restructuring accrual for the January 2023 Plan during the three and six months ended March 31,

2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023:
Employee Employee Severance Employee Employee Severance Employee
tion Transition Payments Benefits Total Transition Payments Benefits Total

Balance at December 31,
2023

Cash payments
Cash payments
Cash payments
Balance at March 31, 2024
Cash payments
Cash payments
Cash payments
Balance at June 30, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ — % — $ — $ —
Accruals 0.3 8.7 0.7 9.7
Cash payments (0.2) (2.0) 0.1) (2.3)

Balance at March 31, 2023 $ 01 $ 6.7 $ 06 $ 7.4
Accruals — 0.1 (0.2) (0.1)
Cash payments — (3.6) 0.1) 3.7)

Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 01 $ 32 % 03 $ 3.6

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ — % — — $ —
Accruals 0.3 8.7 0.7 9.7
Cash payments (0.2) (2.0) (0.1) (2.3)

Balance at March 31, 2023 $ 01 $ 6.7 $ 06 $ 7.4

The following table provides the components of and changes in the Company's restructuring accrual for the August 2023 Plan during the three and six months ended March 31,
2024 June 30, 2024:

Employee Employee Severance Employee Employee Severance Employee
Balance at December 31,
2023
Accruals
Cash payments
Balance at March 31, 2024

Accruals
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Cash payments

Balance at June 30, 2024
The following table provides the components of and changes in the Company's restructuring accrual for the May 2024 Plan during the three months ended June 30, 2024:

Balance at March 31, 2024 $ — % — — $ —
Accruals 0.2 14.8 2.2 17.2
Cash payments (0.2) — — (0.2)

Balance at June 30, 2024 $ — $ 148 $ 22 % 17.0

5.6. Inventories, net

Inventories, net consisted of the following:

Raw materials and supplies
Work-in-process
Finished goods

Total inventories, net

Inventories, net is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
6.7. Property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following:

Land and improvements
Buildings, building improvements and leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Software
Construction-in-progress

Property, plant and equipment, gross
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property, plant and equipment, net

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, construction-in-progress primarily included costs incurred to advance the Company's MCM Product capabilities.

Property, plant and equipment, net is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.

7.8. Intangible assets and goodwill

The Company's finite-lived intangible assets consist of products acquired via business combinations or asset acquisitions. The following table summarizes the Company's finite-
lived intangible assets:

Weighted Weighted March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 Weighted June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Average ABevage Average
Useful Life in Usedmiyiifg in
Years Avieausit
Products
Customer

relationships
CDMO
Total
intangible
assets
Amortization expense associated with the Company's finite-lived intangible assets was recorded as follows:

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 19/408
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I ‘

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Amortization expense $ 162 $ 17.0

Amortization of intangible assets $ 163 $ 161 $ 325 $ 33.1

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the The Company had no remaining goodwill balance on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 due to impairment charges recorded during the third quarter of 2023.

8.9. Fair value measurements

The table below presents information about the Company's assets and liabilities that are regularly measured and carried at fair value and indicates the level within the fair value
hierarchy of the valuation techniques the Company utilized to determine fair value:

Assets:
Money market accounts
Money market accounts
Money market accounts
Total
Total
Total
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration
Contingent consideration
Contingent consideration
Total
Total

Total
Contingent consideration

Contingent consideration payments in an asset acquisition not required to be accounted for as derivatives are recognized when the contingency is resolved, and the
consideration is paid or becomes payable. Contingent consideration liabilities associated with business combinations are measured at fair value. These The liabilities represent an
obligation of the Company to transfer additional assets to the selling shareholders and owners if future events occur or conditions are met. These liabilities associated with business
combinations are measured at fair value at inception and at each subsequent reporting date. The changes in the fair value are primarily due to the expected amount and timing of
future net sales, which are inputs that have no observable market. Any changes change in fair value for the contingent consideration liabilities related to the Company’s products
areis classified on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations as "Cost of product MCM Product sales."

The table below is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of the Company's Level 3 contingent consideration liability:

Contingent Consideration

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 5.6
Change in fair value 0.5
Settlements (0.6)

Balance at March 31, 2024 $ 5.5
Change in fair value 0.1
Settlements .3)

Balance at June 30, 2024 $ 4.3
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 20/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Contingent Consideration

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 8.0
Change in fair value 0.3
Settlements (0.7)

Balance at March 31, 2023 $ 7.6
Change in fair value 0.4
Settlements (0.6)

Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 7.4

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the current portion of the contingent consideration liability was $2.7 1.7 million and $2.7 million, respectively, and
was included in "Other current liabilities" on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. The non-current portion of the contingent consideration liability is included in "Other
liabilities" on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The recurring Level 3 fair value measurement for the Company's contingent consideration liability used the following significant unobservable inputs:

Fair Value as of

Contingent Consideration Liability NSRS . 2024 Valuation Technique Unobservable Input
Discount rate 9.7%9.9%
Royalty based $5.54.3 million Discounted cash flow Probability of payment 25% 0% - 50%
Projected year of payment 2024 - 2028

Non-variable rate debt

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the fair value of the Company's Senior Unsecured Notes was $191.3$292.5 million and $184.3 million,
respectively. The fair value was determined through market sources, which are Level 2 inputs and directly observable. The carrying amounts of the Company’s other long-term
variable interest rate debt arrangements approximate their fair values (see Note 9, 10, "Debt").

9.10. Debt

The table below presents the components of the Company’s debt:

Senior secured credit agreement - Term loan due 2025
Senior secured credit agreement - Revolver loan due 2025
3.875% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2028
Other

Total debt
Current portion of long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs
Unamortized debt issuance costs

Non-current portion of debt

Non-current portion of debt, net of debt issuance costs
During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company reclassified the debt issuance costs associated with the revolver loan to a contra account to directly offset the loan
balance in "Other "Debt, current liabilities" portion" on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the
Company had $1.3$1.1 million and $5.3 million, respectively, of debt issuance costs associated with the revolver loan.

During the quarter six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company entered into a bilateral agreement with a bank in the amount of $0.5 million that is fully
collateralized by cash, which is classified aswithin “Restricted cash” in the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

3.875% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2028

On August 7, 2020, the Company completed its offering of $450.0 million aggregate principal amount of its Senior Unsecured Notes. Interest on the Senior Unsecured Notes is
payable on February 15th and August 15th of each year until maturity, beginning on February 15, 2021. The Senior Unsecured Notes will mature on August 15, 2028.

As of August 15, 2023, the Company may redeem the Senior Unsecured Notes, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices set forth in the related indenture, plus accrued and
unpaid interest. As of August 15, 2023, the Company may redeem all or a portion of the Senior Unsecured Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
Senior Unsecured Notes plus a “make-whole” premium and accrued and unpaid interest as set forth in the related indenture. Upon the occurrence of a change of control, the
Company must offer to repurchase the Senior Unsecured Notes at a purchase price of 101% of the principal amount of such notes plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Negative covenants in the indenture governing the Senior Unsecured Notes, among other things, limit the ability of the Company to incur indebtedness and liens, dispose of
assets, make investments, enter into certain merger or consolidation transactions and make restricted payments.
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Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On February 29, 2024, the Company entered into the Forbearance Agreement and Amendment to, among other things, (a) provide that the Administrative Agent and the
lenders forbear from exercising all rights and remedies under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities and the other related loan documents arising from the occurrence and continuation
of certain specified events of default during the Forbearance Period and (b) provide consent by the required revolving credit lenders to make further loans to the Company or other
extensions of credit to the credit parties during the Forbearance Period, notwithstanding the occurrence of the specified events of default, subject to certain conditions set forth in the
Forbearance Agreement and Amendment, including a limit on Revolving Credit Facility indebtedness of $270 million. The Forbearance Agreement and Amendment also amended,
among other things, (x) the interest rate benchmark to provide that borrowings will bear interest at a rate per annum equal to (A) 5.00% with respect to Base Rate Loans, (B) 6.50%
per annum with respect to SOFR Loans, Daily Simple SONIA Loans and Eurocurrency Rate Loans, and (C) 0.40% with respect to Commitment Fees, (y) the mandatory prepayment
threshold amount for unrestricted cash and cash equivalents from $125,000,000 to $100,000,000, and (z) the mandatory principal prepayment amount from 75% of all milestone
payments received by the Company and its subsidiaries from certain project milestone payments to 100%. Under the Forbearance Agreement and Amendment, the Company and
the other guarantors agreed to cause Emergent BioSolutions Canada Inc. to (i) become a guarantor under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities and (ii) grant a security lien in all
collateral owned by Emergent BioSolutions Canada Inc. (subject to the exclusions and exceptions specified in the Collateral Agreement) to the Administrative Agent. In addition, in
connection with the entry into the Forbearance Agreement and Amendment, the Company paid a forbearance fee of approximately $1.2 million. The Forbearance Period expired on
April 30, 2024. See Note 2, "Summary of significant accounting policies" for further discussion of the Forbearance Agreement and Amendment.

On April 29, 2024, the Company entered into a Consent, Waiver andthe Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with requisite lenders (the
"Seventh Amendment"). Amendment. The Seventh Amendment, among other things: (a) reduces available commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility to $270.0 $240.0 million
through July 30, 2024, to $225.0$210.0 million from July 31, 2024 through September 29, 2024, to $205.0 million from September 30, 2024 through October 30, 2024, to
$180.0 million from October 31, 2024 through November 29, 2024, and to $200.0$170.0 million on October 31, 2024, from November 30, 2024 and thereafter; thereafter (in each
case subject to potential limited additional borrowings from a specified reserve with the consent of the lenders); (b) amends the interest rate benchmark in the definition of Applicable
Margin from (i) 5.00% per annum to 7.00% per annum with respect to Base Rate Loans and (ii) 6.50% per annum to 8.50% per annum with respect to SOFR Loans, RFR Loans and
Eurocurrency Rate Loans; and (c) requires the requirement that the Company to raise equity or unsecured indebtedness of at least $85.0 million by July 31, 2024 (or such later date
on or before September 29, 2024 as agreed to by the Administrative Agent), provided that such requirement will be reduced by the aggregate net cash proceeds received from
certain dispositions that are applied to reduce amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility. On July 18, 2024, the Administrative Agent agreed to extend the deadline of
the capital raise requirement to September 29, 2024.

In addition, pursuant to the Seventh Amendment, the Company is obligated to apply 100% of the aggregate net cash proceeds received from certain dispositions to the
prepayment of amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, except where such proceeds exceed $85,000,000, in which case such mandatory prepayment of the
Revolving Credit Facility will no longer be required. Mandatory prepayment of the Term Loan Facility will not be required unless and until the aggregate net proceeds from such
dispositions exceed $85,000,000, at which point 100% of such proceeds must be used toward repayment of amounts outstanding under the Term Loan Facility.

Under the Seventh Amendment, the Company is also subject to (a) a monthly minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant through May 15, 2025 and a monthly maximum capital
expenditures covenant through March 31, 2025, (b) a minimum liquidity requirement, and (c) additional financial statement reporting and business plan forecast obligations. In
connection with the entry into the Seventh Amendment, the Company paid an amendment fee of an aggregate amount equal to 0.5% of the total credit exposure as of the Seventh
Amendment effective date and will be required to pay an additional amendment fee of 1.0% of total credit exposure at December 1, 2024 and each month thereafter. See Note 2,
"Summary of significant accounting policies" for additional information related to the Company’s compliance with the debt covenants described above. As a result of the Seventh
Amendment, the Company capitalized $3.2 million of costs associated with the Revolving Credit Facility as a contra account to directly offset the loan balance in “Debt, current
portion” on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, expensed $1.4 million of debt issuance costs related to the Term Loan Facility, and capitalized $1.0 million of
costs related to the Term Loan Facility as a contra account to directly offset the loan balance in "Debt, current portion" on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

10.
11. Share-based compensation and stockholders' equity

Share-based compensation

The Company's share-based compensation expense relates to stock options, performance stock options, restricted stock units, performance stock units and liability classified
long-term incentive awards. During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company granted stock options to purchase 8.7 4.0 million shares of common
stock and granted stock; performance stock options subject to market conditions, to purchase 0.8 million shares of common stock. stock; and 0.2 million restricted stock units. The
grants were made under the Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan and the Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Inducement Plan. Additionally, during the
three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company granted aan $8.0 million long-term incentive award, subject to market conditions, with the option to settle in
any combination of cash or shares, which is accounted for as a liability classified award. The performance stock options and the long-term incentive award were valued using Monte
Carlo valuation models, and both have a performance period of five years to vest based on the Company'’s stock price performance. The long-term incentive award will be revalued
at each reporting period until the award is earned or expires. The Company’s other equity awards typically vest over three equal annual installments beginning on the day prior to
the anniversary of the grant date. The performance stock units settle in stock at the end of the three-year performance period based on the Company's results compared to the
performance criteria. During the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, 0.10.2 million stock options and 0.1 million shares of restricted stock units were forfeited
prior to the completion of the applicable vesting requirements or expiration. An immaterial number of performance stock units were forfeited during the three six months ended March
31, 2024 June 30, 2024.

Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeitures was recorded in the following financial statement line items:
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Cost of Commercial Product sales

Cost of Commercial Product sales

Cost of Commercial Product sales

Cost of MCM Product sales

Cost of MCM Product sales

Cost of MCM Product sales

Cost of Bioservices

Cost of Bioservices

Cost of Bioservices

R&D

R&D

R&D

Selling, general and administrative

Selling, general and administrative

Selling, general and administrative
Total share-based compensation expense
Total share-based compensation expense
Total share-based compensation expense

Stockholders' equity

At-the-Market Equity Offering Facility

The Company may, from time to time, sell up to $150.0 million aggregate gross sales price of shares of its common stock through Evercore Group L.L.C. and RBC Capital
Markets, LLC, as sales agents, under an “at-the-market” equity offering program (the “ATM Program”) that was entered into on May 17, 2023. There were no sales of the Company's
common stock under the ATM Program during the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. As The Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 expires on August 9,
2024 and the Company is not eligible to file a result of new Registration Statement on Form S-3 until 2025 due to the delayed filing of certain of the Company’s periodic reports
with Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the SEC in 2023, the period ended September 30, 2023. The Company iswill not currently be eligible to sell any shares under the ATM
Program until a new Registration Statement is filed and becomes effective. During the second quarter of 2023, the Company has timely filed certain periodic reports required under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) for 12 consecutive calendar months. Between the entry into the ATM Program and March 31, 2024, the Company has
sold 1.1 million shares of the Company’s common stock under the ATM Program for gross proceeds of $9.1 million, representing an average share price of $8.22 per share. As of
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, $140.9 million aggregate gross sales price of shares of the Company’s common stock remains available for issuance under the ATM Program. The
Company intends to use proceeds obtained from the sale of shares under the ATM Program for general corporate purposes.

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),_net of tax

The following table includes changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax by component:

Foreign Foreign

Currency Currency

Defined Benefit Defined Benefit Derivative Translation Defined Benefit Derivative Translation

Pension Plan Pension Plan Instruments Adjustments |Total Pension Plan Instruments | Adjustments [Total

Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at December 31, 2023

Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications
Net current period other comprehensive
income
Net current period other comprehensive
income
Net current period other comprehensive
income

Balance at March 31, 2024
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications

Net current period other comprehensive
loss
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Net current period other comprehensive
loss

Net current period other comprehensive
loss

Balance at June 30, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2022
Balance at December 31, 2022
Balance at December 31, 2022

Other comprehensive loss before
reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive income

Net current period other comprehensive
loss

Balance at March 31, 2023

Other comprehensive income before
reclassifications

Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive loss

Net current period other comprehensive
income (loss)

Balance at June 30, 2023
The tables below present the tax effects related to each component of other comprehensive income (loss):

s Ended March 31, Ended June 30,

2024

Tax Expense | Net of tax | Pretax | Tax Expense | Net of tax | Pretax| Tax Expense | Net of tax | Pretax Net of tax

Derivative instruments

Derivative instruments

Defined benefit pension plan

Derivative instruments
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total adjustments

Defined benefit pension plan $ — 3 — 3 — $ 41 $ 06 $ (3.5)
Derivative instruments = = = (5.0) 13 3.7)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 0.2 — 0.2 2.0 0.5 25

Total adjustments $ 02 $ — $ 02 $ (71) $ 24 $ 4.7)

11. Netincome (loss)
12. Loss per common share

Basic earnings or loss per common share is calculated using the treasury method by dividing net income (loss) loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted income or loss per common share adjusts basic earnings or loss per common share for the effects of potentially dilutive common shares and
is calculated using the treasury stock method. Potentially dilutive common shares include the dilutive effect of shares issuable under our equity compensation plans, including stock
options, restricted stock units and performance stock units. Diluted income or loss per share excludes anti-dilutive securities, which represent the number of potential common
shares related to shares issuable under our equity compensation plan that were excluded from diluted income or loss per common share because their effect would have been
antidilutive.

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted income or loss per common share:
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Numerator:

Numerator:

Numerator:
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Denominator:
Denominator:
Net loss
Net loss
Net loss
Denominator:
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-basic
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-basic
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-basic
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-diluted
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-diluted
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-diluted
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding-diluted
Income (loss) per common share - basic
Income (loss) per common share - basic
Income (loss) per common share - basic
Income (loss) per common share - diluted
Income (loss) per common share - diluted
Income (loss) per common share - diluted
Net loss per common share - basic
Net loss per common share - diluted
Anti-dilutive securities
Anti-dilutive securities

Anti-dilutive securities

12.13. Revenue recognition

The Company generates the majority of its revenues through product sales to its customers. The Company also generates revenues through its Bioservices offerings and suite
reservations for and to third parties and contracts and grants revenue. The Company recognizes revenue when the Company'sits customers obtain control of promised goods or
services, in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services by analyzing the following five steps: (1)
identify the contract with (a) customer(s); (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

In the third quarter of 2023, the Company launched over-the-counter (“OTC") NARCANe, which was approved by the FDA as an over-the-counter emergency treatment of opioid
overdose, broadening the Company’s customer base and sales channels to retail pharmacies and digital commerce websites. The Company's Nasal Naloxone Products are now
sold commercially over-the-counter at retail pharmacies and digital commerce websites as well as through physician-directed or standing order prescriptions at retail pharmacies,
health departments, local law enforcement agencies, community-based organizations, substance abuse centers and other federal agencies.

The Company's OTC NARCANe customer contracts are fixed price contracts. The Company invoices and records revenue when the pharmacies and wholesalers receive
product from the third-party logistics warehouse used by the Company, which is the point at which control is transferred to the customer. Revenues for OTC NARCANe are recorded
at the net sales price (transaction price), which includes estimates of variable consideration for which reserves are established. Estimates of variable consideration includes include
allowance for returns, specialty distributor fees, wholesaler fees and prompt payment discounts. OTC NARCANe may also be sold on consignment through third-party online
retailers where revenues are recognized at the point in time when sold to the end customer. The Company pays these third-party online retailers selling commissions and fulfillment
fees which are recorded as SG&A expenses and Cost of commercial product Commercial Product sales, respectively, in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations.
Revenues from OTC NARCANe are recognized to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with such variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Company considers several factors in the estimation process for the allowance for returns of
OTC NARCANe, including inventory levels within the distribution channel, product shelf life and historical return activity, including activity for product sold for which the return period
has passed, as well as other relevant factors. Because returned product cannot be resold, there is no corresponding asset for product returns.
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The Company's revenues disaggregated by operating segment and major sources for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Non-| Non- Non-
UsG Non-USG Total UsG USG| Total JUSGJUSG| TotalJUSG|USG| Total

Commercial Product sales
MCM Product sales

Bioservices:
Services (1)
Services (1)
Services (1)

Leases
Total Bioservices
Contracts and grants

Total revenues

1) Bioservices Services revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2024 include $50.0 million attributable to the confidential
arbitration settlement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Janssen”), one of the Janssen
Pharmaceutical Companies of Johnson & Johnson, related to the 2022 termination of manufacturing services agreement with
Janssen (the “Janssen Agreement”). The revenue is related to raw materials purchased for the Janssen Agreement which
Janssen had not reimbursed. See Note 16, “Litigation” for additional information related to the accounting treatment and
settlement of the arbitration with Janssen.

1) Bioservices Services revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2024 include $50.0 million attributable to the confidential
arbitration settlement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“‘Janssen”), one of the Janssen
Pharmaceutical Companies of Johnson & Johnson, related to the 2022 termination of manufacturing services agreement with
Janssen (the “Janssen Agreement”). The revenue is related to raw materials purchased for the Janssen Agreement which
Janssen had not reimbursed. See Note 16, “Litigation” for additional information related to the accounting treatment and
settlement of the arbitration with Janssen.

1) Bioservices Services revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2024 include $50.0 million attributable to the confidential
arbitration settlement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“‘Janssen”), one of the Janssen
Pharmaceutical Companies of Johnson & Johnson, related to the 2022 termination of manufacturing services agreement with
Janssen (the “Janssen Agreement”). The revenue is related to raw materials purchased for the Janssen Agreement which
Janssen had not reimbursed. See Note 16, “Litigation” for additional information related to the accounting treatment and
settlement of the arbitration with Janssen.

Commercial Product sales $ 04 $ 2381 $ 2385 $ 03 $ 2438 $ 244.1
MCM Product sales 144.7 74.1 218.8 176.3 25.2 201.5
Bioservices:
Services (1) — 82.8 82.8 — 39.0 39.0
Leases — 0.4 0.4 — 4.5 4.5
Total Bioservices $ — 3 832 $ 832 $ — 3 435 $ 435
Contracts and grants 14.0 0.6 14.6 9.5 3.6 13.1
Total revenues $ 159.1 $ 396.0 $ 555.1 $ 186.1 $ 316.1 $ 502.2

(1) Bioservices Services revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2024 include $50.0 million attributable to the Settlement Agreement. The revenue is related to raw materials
purchased for the Janssen Agreement which Janssen had not reimbursed. See Note 16, “Litigation” for additional information related to the Settlement Agreement and its
accounting treatment.

Bioservices operating leases

Certain multi-year Bioservices arrangements with non-USG customers include operating leases whereby the customer has the right to direct the use of and obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits of specific manufacturing suites operated by the Company. The associated revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
remaining term on the Company's operating lease components approximates 4.84.5 years. The Company utilizes a cost-plus model to determine the stand-alone selling price of the
lease component to allocate contract consideration between the lease and non-lease components. During the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the
Company's non-USG lease revenues were $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively, which is included within Bioservices “"Leases" on the Condensed Consolidated
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Statement of Operations. The Company estimates future operating lease revenues to be $0.6 $0.4 million in the remainder of 2024, $0.8 million in 2025, $0.9 million in 2026,
$0.9 million in 2027, $0.9 million in 2028 and no lease revenue in 2029 and thereafter.

Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company has future contract value on unsatisfied performance obligations of approximately $279.3 $383.7 million associated with all
arrangements entered into by the Company. The Company expects to recognize $273.5$361.3 million of unsatisfied performance obligations within the next 24 months. The amount
and timing of revenue recognition for unsatisfied performance obligations can change. The future revenues associated with unsatisfied performance obligations exclude the value of
unexercised option periods in the Company’s revenue arrangements. Often the timing of manufacturing activities changes based on customer needs and resource availability.
Government funding appropriations can impact the timing of product deliveries. The success of the Company's development activities that receive development funding support
from the USG under development contracts can also impact the timing of revenue recognition.

Contract assets

The Company considers accounts receivable and deferred costs associated with revenue generating contracts, which are not included in inventory or property, plant and
equipment and that the Company does not currently have a contractual right to bill, to be contract assets. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the
Company had $29.5 million $8.0 million and $21.9 million, respectively, of contract assets recorded within "Accounts receivable, net" on the Condensed Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Contract liabilities

When performance obligations are not transferred to a customer at the end of a reporting period, cash received associated with amounts allocated to those performance
obligations is reflected as contract liabilities on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and is deferred until control of these performance obligations is transferred to the
customer. The following table presents the roll forward of the contract liability balances:

Contract Liabilities

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 29.9
Balance at March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 $ 9.7
Revenue recognized in the period from amounts included in contract liability at the beginning of the period: $ 24.025.0

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the current portion of contract liabilities was $5.5 $6.2 million and $27.2 million, respectively, and was included in
"Other current liabilities" on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Accounts receivable and allowance for expected credit losses

Accounts receivable, including unbilled accounts receivable contract assets, consist of the following:

Accounts receivable:
Billed
Billed
Billed
Unbilled
Allowance for expected credit losses

Accounts receivable, net
We maintain an allowance for expected credit losses, which represents the estimated aggregate amount of credit risk arising from the inability or unwillingness of specific
customers to pay our fees or disputes that may affect our ability to fully collect our billed accounts receivable. We estimate the current-period provision for expected credit losses on
a specific identification basis and we consider factors such as the age of the receivables balance, knowledge of the specific customers' circumstances and historical collection
experience for similar customers. Accounts receivable, net of the allowance for expected credit losses, represents the amount we expect to collect. Our actual experience may vary
from our estimates. At each reporting date, we adjust the allowance for expected credit losses to reflect our current estimate.

13.14. Leases

The Company is the lessee for operating leases for offices, R&D facilities and manufacturing facilities. The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception.
Operating leases are included in right-of-use assets and liabilities. For a discussion of lessor activities, see Note 12, 13, "Revenue recognition.”

The components of lease expense were as follows:
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Operating lease cost:

Operating lease cost:

Operating lease cost:
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on lease liabilities
Total operating lease cost
Total operating lease cost

Total operating lease cost
Operating lease costs are reflected as components of "Cost of Commercial Product sales”, "Cost of MCM Product sales", "Cost of Bioservices", "R&D" expense and "SG&A"
expense on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to lessee activities is as follows:

December 31, June 30, December

Operating lease right-of-use
assets
Operating lease liabilities, current portion
Operating lease liabilities, current portion
Operating lease liabilities, current portion
Operating lease liabilities

Total operating lease

liabilities
Operating leases:
Operating leases:
Operating leases:
Weighted average remaining lease term (years)

Weighted average remaining lease term (years)

Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 6.1 6.2 6.1 6.2
Weighted average discount Weighted average Weighted average
rate discount rate 53 % 5.3 % discount rate 5.3 % 5.3 %

14.15. Income taxes

The estimated effective annual tax rate as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, excluding the impact of discrete
adjustments, was 19% and (16) (8)%, respectively. The effective tax rate for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023 was 26% (6)% and (16) (9)%,
respectively. The increase in the estimated effective annual tax rate is primarily due to a change in jurisdictional mix of income and losses. The Company did not record a discrete
tax expense (benefit) for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023.

The Company establishes valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which provides that such valuation allowances shall be
established unless realization of the income tax benefits is more likely than not. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. At each reporting period, the Company considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities and assets, available taxes in carryback periods, tax planning strategies and projected future taxable income in making this assessment.

In 2022, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that certain deferred tax assets would not be realized due to reductions in estimates of future profitability and
disclosure related to substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

15.16. Litigation
Securities and shareholder litigation

With respect to the specific legal proceedings and claims described below, unless otherwise noted, the amount or range of possible losses is not reasonably estimable. There
can be no assurance that the settlement, resolution, or other outcome of one or more matters, including the matters set forth below, during any subsequent reporting period will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or cash flows for that period or on the Company's financial condition.
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On April 20, 2021, May 14, 2021, and June 2, 2021, putative class action lawsuits were filed against the Company and certain of its current and former senior officers in the
United States District Court for the District of Maryland on behalf of purchasers of the Company’s common stock, seeking to pursue remedies under the Exchange Act. These
complaints were filed by Palm Tran, Inc. — Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1577 Pension Plan; Alan |. Roth; and Stephen M. Weiss, respectively. The complaints allege, among
other things, that the defendants made false and misleading statements about the Company's manufacturing capabilities with respect to COVID-19 vaccine bulk drug substance
(referred to herein as "CDMO Manufacturing Capabilities"). These cases were consolidated on December 23, 2021, under the caption In re Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Securities
Litigation, No. 8:21-cv-00955-PWG (the "Federal Securities Class Action"). The lead plaintiffs in the consolidated matter (the "Lead Plaintiffs") are Nova Scotia Health Employees’
Pension Plan and The City of Fort Lauderdale Police & Firefighters’ Retirement System. The defendants filed aAn order granting Lead Plaintiff's motion to dismiss on May 19,
2022 for class certification and the Lead Plaintiffs filed an opposition to that motion on July 19, 2022. A hearing on the motion to dismiss was conducted on April 19, 2023 and an
order appointment of class representatives was entered on September 1, 2023, granting in part and denying in part the motion to dismiss. The defendant's answer to the complaint
was filed on October 30, 2023 June 18, 2024. The defendants believe that the allegations in the complaints are without merit and intend to defend the matters vigorously. Given the
uncertainty of litigation, the preliminary stage of the cases, and the legal standards that must be met for, among other things, class certification and success on the merits, the
Company cannot reasonably estimate the possible loss or range of loss, if any, that may result from the consolidated action.

On June 29, 2021, Lincolnshire Police Pension Fund (“Lincolnshire”), and on August 16, 2021, Pooja Sayal, filed putative shareholder derivative lawsuits in the United States
District Court for the District of Maryland on behalf of the Company against certain of the Company's current and former officers and directors for breach of fiduciary duties, waste of
corporate assets, and unjust enrichment, each allegation related to the CDMO Manufacturing Capabilities. In addition to monetary damages, the complaints seek the implementation
of multiple corporate governance and internal policy changes. On November 16, 2021, the cases were consolidated under the caption In re Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Stockholder
Derivative Litigation, Master Case No. 8:21-cv-01595-PWG. On January 3, 2022, the Lincolnshire complaint was designated as the operative complaint in the consolidated action.
On April 13, 2022, the Court approved the parties' joint stipulation to and stay of the proceedings and discovery until the close of fact discovery in the Federal Securities Class
Action. The defendants believe that the allegations in the complaints are without merit and intend to defend the matter vigorously.

On September 15, 2021, September 16, 2021 and November 12, 2021, putative shareholder derivative lawsuits were filed by Chang Kyum Kim, Mark Nevins and Employees
Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island, North Collier Fire Control and Rescue District Firefighters Pension Plan, and Pembroke Pines Firefighters & Police Officers
Pension Fund, respectively, in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware on behalf of the Company against certain of its current and former officers and directors for breach of
fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment and insider trading, each allegation related to the CDMO Manufacturing Capabilities. In addition to monetary damages, the complaints seek the
implementation of multiple corporate governance and internal policy changes. On February 2, 2022, the cases were consolidated under the caption In re Emergent BioSolutions,
Inc. Derivative Litigation, C.A. No. 2021-0974-MTZ with the institutional investors as co-lead plaintiffs. On March 4, 2022, the defendants’ filed a motion to dismiss the complaint.
Ruling on this motion is stayed pursuant to a March 29, 2022 order staying all proceedings pending a final, non-appealable judgment in the Federal Securities Class Action.

On December 3, 2021, December 22, 2021 and January 18, 2022, putative shareholder derivative lawsuits were filed by Zachary Elton, Eric White and Jeffrey Reynolds in the
Circuit Court for Montgomery County, Maryland on behalf of the Company against certain of its current and former officers and directors for breach of fiduciary duty, unjust
enrichment, waste of corporate assets, failing to maintain internal controls, making or causing to be made false and/or misleading statements and material omissions, insider trading
and otherwise violating the federal securities laws, each allegation related to the CDMO Manufacturing Capabilities. The complaints seek monetary and punitive damages. On
February 22, 2022, the Court entered an order consolidating these actions under case number C-15-21-CV-000496. On March 9, 2022, the parties filed a Joint Stipulation of Stay of
Proceedings and Discovery, pursuant to which the parties agreed to stay all proceedings until 30 calendar days after a ruling on the defendants’ motion to dismiss, and on
November 2, 2023, the Court approved the parties' joint stipulation to extend the stay of the proceedings and discovery until the close of fact discovery in the Federal Securities
Class Action.

In addition to the above actions, the Company has received inquiries and subpoenas to produce documents related to these matters from the Department of Justice, the SEC,
the Maryland Attorney General’s Office, and the New York Attorney General's Office. The Company produced or is producing documents as required in response and will continue to
cooperate with these government inquiries. inquiries should further requests be made. The Company also received inquiries and subpoenas from Representative Carolyn Maloney
and Representative Jim Clyburn, members of the House Committee on Oversight and Reform and the Select Subcommittee on the Coronavirus Crisis and Senator Murray of the
Committee on Health, Education, Labor and Pensions. The Company produced documents and provided testimony and briefings as requested in response to these
inquiries. inquiries and the Select Subcommittee released its final report related to the coronavirus crisis on December 9, 2022.

2022 Termination of manufacturing_services agreement with Janssen Pharmaceuticals,_Inc.

On July 2, 2020, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Emergent Manufacturing Operations Baltimore, LLC, entered into the Janssen Agreement with Janssen,
one of the Janssen Pharmaceutical Companies of Johnson & Johnson, for large-scale drug substance manufacturing of Johnson & Johnson’s investigational SARS-CoV-2 vaccine,
Ad26.COV2-S, recombinant based on the AdVac technology (the “Product”).

On June 6, 2022, the Company provided to Janssen a notice (the “Notice”) of material breach of the Janssen Agreement for, among other things, failure by Janssen (i) to
provide the Company the requisite forecasts of the required quantity of Product to be purchased by Janssen under the Janssen Agreement and (ii) to confirm Janssen'’s intent to not
purchase the requisite minimum quantity of the Product pursuant to the Janssen Agreement and instead, wind-down the Janssen Agreement ahead of fulfilling these minimum
requirements. On June 6, 2022, the Company received from Janssen a purported written notice of termination (the “Janssen Notice”) of the Janssen Agreement for asserted
material breaches of the Janssen Agreement by the Company, including alleged failure by the Company to perform its obligations in compliance with current good manufacturing
practices ("cGMP") or other applicable laws and regulations and alleged failure by the Company to supply Janssen with the Product. Janssen alleged that the Company’s breaches
were not curable and that, therefore, termination of the Janssen Agreement would be effective as of July 6, 2022. The On June 14, 2022, Janssen filed a Demand for Arbitration and
on July 29, 2022 the Company disputes Janssen's assertionsfiled its Answering Statement and allegations, including Janssen's ability to effect termination pursuant
to counterclaims. On July 3, 2024, the Janssen Notice. The Company and Janssen disagree entered into the Settlement Agreement to resolve all claims among the parties arising
from the Janssen Agreement and the activities referenced above. Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Janssen paid the Company $50.0 million on July 31, 2024.
See Note 18, “Subsequent events" for more information on the monetary amounts that are due to the Company as a result of termination by any means. The Company believes the
amounts due to the Company include, but are not limited to, compensation for services provided, reimbursement for raw materials purchased and non-cancelable orders, and fees
for early termination. Janssen has alleged that no additional amount is due to the Company and that the Company should pay Janssen an unspecified amount as a result of the
Company's alleged failure to perform under the Janssen Settlement Agreement. The Company is currently engaged in a confidential arbitration with Janssen. The Company has not
recorded any contingent liabilities related to Janssen's allegations as the Company believes they are without merit and intends to vigorously defend the Company's position during
the dispute resolution process through arbitration.

During the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, there were no impacts on previously recognized revenue or depreciation related to the conclusion of the Janssen
Agreement. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company has no billed or unbilled net accounts receivable related to the Janssen Agreement.
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Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2022, because the arbitration process with Janssen is was expected to extend longer than one year, the Company reclassified amounts related
to the Janssen Agreement from “Inventories, net" and from "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" to "Other assets", resulting in $152.7 million in long-term assets related to
the Janssen Agreement on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022. The long-term asset balance within “Other Assets” prior to announcing the
Settlement Agreement was $158.7 million. The Company concluded the Settlement Agreement is a recognized subsequent event and recorded $50.0 million in “Services revenue”
and “Cost of Services” on the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three months ended June 30, 2024 to reflect the settlement receivable as a change in the
transaction price for the Janssen Agreement. Additionally, the Company recorded $110.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 within “Cost of Services” on the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations to write down the remaining inventory to its net realizable value and for estimated disposal costs. The receivable for the
settlement amount was recorded within “Accounts receivable, net” and there was no long-term asset balance remaining within "Other Assets" related to the Janssen Agreement as
of March 31, 2024 was $158.8 million. These assets include termination penalties, certain inventory related items and raw materials inventory representing materials purchased for
the Janssen Agreement which Janssen has not reimbursed. The Company evaluated the net realizable value of the inventory as of March 31, 2024, concluding that because the
Janssen Agreement specifies the Company is entitled to, among other things, reimbursement of raw materials and non-cancelable orders in the event of a contract termination for
any reason, the Company is entitled to payment from Janssen for these raw materials. As of March 31, 2024, all non-cancelable orders have been received by Janssen and are
included in the long-term asset balance within "Other Assets" June 30, 2024.

16.17. Segment information

In the fourth quarter of 2023, the Company realigned its reportable operating segments to reflect recent changes in the Company’s internal operating and reporting process. The
revised reporting structure reflects the internal reporting and review process used by the Company’s CODM for making decisions and assessing performance and is consistent with
how the Company currently manages the business. The Company now manages its business with a focus on three reportable segments. The Commercial Products segment, which
includes NARCANe products and other commercial products that were sold as part of the travel health business in the second quarter of 2023 (see Note 3,4, "Divestiture" for more
information on the sale of the travel health business); the MCM Products segment, which includes the Anthrax - MCM products, Smallpox - MCM products and Other Products; and
the Services segment, consisting of the Company’s Bioservices offerings.

The Company evaluates the performance of these reportable segments based on revenue and segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure.
Segment revenue includes external customer sales, but it does not include inter-segment services. The Company defines segment adjusted gross margin, as segment gross margin
excluding the impact of restructuring costs and non-cash items related to changes in fair value of contingent consideration and inventory step-up provision. We define total segment
adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as total segment gross margin, excluding the impact of restructuring costs and the fair value of contingent
consideration. The Company does not allocate research and development, selling, general and administrative costs, amortization of intangibles assets, interest and other income
(expense) or taxes to operating segments in the management reporting reviewed by the CODM. The accounting policies for segment reporting are the same as for the Company as
a whole.

The Company manages its assets on a total company basis, not by operating segment, as the Company's operating assets are shared or commingled. Therefore, the
Company's CODM does not regularly review any asset information by operating segment and, accordingly, the Company does not report asset information by operating segment.

For all tables presented below, the prior period disclosures have been recast to conform to the current period segment presentation.

The following table presents segment revenues, segment cost of sales or services, segment gross margin, segment gross margin percentage and segment adjusted gross
margin for each of the Company’s reportable segments for the three and six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023:

BT W 0 E B3

Revenues:

Revenues:

Revenues:
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
Services
Services
Services

Segment revenues
Segment revenues

Segment revenues
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Contracts and grants revenue
Contracts and grants revenue
Contracts and grants revenue
Total revenues
Total revenues
Total revenues
Cost of sales or services:
Cost of sales or services:
Cost of sales or services:
Cost of Commercial Products
Cost of Commercial Products
Cost of Commercial Products
Cost of MCM Products
Cost of MCM Products
Cost of MCM Products
Cost of Services
Cost of Services
Cost of Services
Total cost of sales or services
Total cost of sales or services
Total cost of sales or services
Gross margin
Gross margin
Gross margin
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
Services
Services
Services
Total segment gross margin @
Total segment gross margin @
Total segment gross margin
Gross margin %
Gross margin %
Gross margin %
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
Commercial Products 56 %
MCM Products MCM Products 51
MCM Products
MCM Products
Services Services (227)
Services
Services
Total Segment
Total Segment
Total Segment Total Segment (29)

Segment adjusted gross margin
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Segment adjusted gross margin
Segment adjusted gross margin
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
Services
Services
Services
Total segment adjusted gross margin
Total segment adjusted gross margin

Total segment adjusted gross margin

(1) Segment revenues less total cost of sales or services.

(1) Segment revenues less total cost of sales or services.

(1) Segment revenues less total cost of sales or services.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the Company's total segment adjusted gross margin to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations:

Total segment adjusted gross margin

Total segment adjusted gross margin

Total segment adjusted gross margin
Reconciling items:
Reconciling items:
Reconciling items:
Contracts and grants revenue
Contracts and grants revenue
Contracts and grants revenue
Segment restructuring costs
Segment restructuring costs
Segment restructuring costs
Segment inventory step-up provision
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration
Settlement charge, net
Impairment of long-lived assets
Research and development
Research and development
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative
Selling, general and administrative

Amortization of intangible assets
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Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of intangible assets

Interest expense

Interest expense

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale

Other, net

Other, net

Other, net
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income (loss) before income taxes

Loss before income taxes
The following table includes depreciation expense for each segment:

Depreciation:

Depreciation:

Depreciation:
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
Commercial Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
MCM Products
Services
Services
Services
Other Other 4.0 0.9 0.9 7.5 7.5 2.6 2.6
Other
Other

Total
Total
Total

17.18. Subsequent events

May 2024 Organizational Restructuring Plan Confidential arbitration settlement with Janssen

On May 1, 2024 July 3, 2024, the Company, announced an organizational restructuring plan (the “May 2024 Plan”its wholly owned subsidiary, Emergent Manufacturing
Operations Baltimore, LLC (“‘EMOB?”). These strategic actions will lead, and Janssen executed the Settlement Agreement to a reduction resolve all claims among the Parties arising
from the Janssen Agreement. The Settlement Agreement also resolves the Parties’ related and previously disclosed arbitration.

Pursuant to the terms of the Company’s current workforce Settlement Agreement, Janssen paid the Company $50.0 million on July 31, 2024. In addition, the Settlement
Agreement contains broad releases of the parties, their affiliates and subsidiaries, representatives, officers, directors and shareholders, including releases of all claims related to the
manufacture of the Product by approximately 300 employees across EMOB, the Janssen Agreement, or any agreement or understanding between the parties concerning the
Product, and the matters at issue in the arbitration. The Company concluded this is a recognized subsequent event. See Note 16, “Litigation" for more information on the Settlement
Agreement and its accounting treatment.

Development milestone payments for CHIKV VLP

On July 18, 2024, Bavarian Nordic announced that the European Medicines Agency has validated the marketing authorization application for CHIKV VLP, which was submitted
in June 2024. This approval triggered a milestone payment under the Purchase and Sale Agreement to the Company in the amount of $10.0 million, which is expected to be
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received in the third quarter of 2024.

2024 Sale of RSDL® to SERB Pharmaceuticals

On July 31, 2024, the Company entered into the RSDLe Agreement with SERB, pursuant to which, among other things, the Company sold its worldwide rights to RSDLe to
SERB. The RSDLe Transaction also included the sale of all areasthe outstanding capital stock of Emergent Protective Products USA Inc. (“EPPU”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and the elimination of approximately 85 positions that are currently vacant, which leases a manufacturing facility in Hattiesburg, Mississippi, as well as certain assets
related to RSDLe, including intellectual property rights, contract rights, inventory and marketing authorizations. In addition, the closure employees of the Company’s Baltimore-
Bayview Drug Substance manufacturing facility and Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility. Decisions regarding the elimination of positions and the closure of manufacturing
facilities EPPU are subjectexpected to local law and consultation requirements in certain countries, as well as the Company’s business needs.

The Company estimates that it will incur approximately $18.0 million to $21.0 million in chargesjoin SERB in connection with the May 2024 Plan, RSDLe Transaction.

Pursuant to the RSDLe Transaction, SERB will assume certain government contracts related to RSDLe decontamination lotion, including the Company’s existing contract to
supply RSDLe to the U.S. Department of Defense, through a new contract award to the Canadian Commercial Corporation.

The RSDLe Agreement provided for a cash purchase price of $75.0 million at the closing of the RSDLe Transaction, which it expectsis subject to incur primarily customary
adjustments based on inventory value at closing.In addition, SERB will pay the Company a $5.0 million payment upon achievement of a milestone relating to sourcing of a certain
component of RSDLe decontamination lotion. The Company and SERB made customary representations, warranties, and covenants in the second quarter of fiscal 2024. These
charges consist primarily of cash charges related to severance, transition services, and estimated benefits cost.

The estimates of the charges and expenditures that the Company expects to incur in connection with the May 2024 Plan, and the timing thereof, are subject to a number of
assumptions, including local law requirements in various jurisdictions, and actual amounts may differ materially from estimates. RSDLe Agreement. In addition, the Company may
incur other charges or cash expenditures not currently contemplated due to unanticipated events that may occur, including in connection with agreed, for a period of three years
following the implementation closing of the May 2024 Plan. RSDLe Transaction, not to make, import, export, use, sell or otherwise dispose of, any product that is intended to remove
or neutralize chemical warfare agents from the skin, including any product that contains the same chemical components as RSDLe, or to engage in a similar competing business.

At the closing of the RSDLe Transaction, the Company and SERB also entered into a transition services agreement to ensure the orderly transition of RSDLe decontamination
lotion and the related assets to SERB, and a supply agreement pursuant to which the Company’s Winnipeg facility will continue to manufacture and supply bulk lotion to SERB
under a long-term supply agreement. The Company and SERB will also enter into a reverse supply agreement shortly after the closing of the RSDLe Transaction pursuant to which
SERB will supply to the Company finished RSDLe for the purposes of the Company performing certain transitional distribution services.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q and our audited consolidated financial statements and
related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Form 10-K"). Some of the information contained in this discussion and
analysis or set forth elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q includes information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business and financing, as well as forward-
looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should carefully review the sections entitled “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by
the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Emergent BioSolutions Inc. (“Emergent,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) is a global life sciences company focused on providing innovative preparedness and response
solutions addressing accidental, deliberate, and naturally occurring Public Health Threats (“PHTs"). The Company's solutions include a product portfolio, a product development
portfolio, and a contract development and manufacturing services ("CDMOQ") portfolio.

We are currently focused on the following four PHT categories: chemical, biological, radiological, nuclear and explosives (“CBRNE”"); emerging infectious diseases (“EID");
public health crises; and acute, emergency and community care. We As of June 30, 2024, we have a product portfolio of 1211 products that contribute a substantial portion of our
revenue and are sold to government and commercial customers. Additionally, we have a development pipeline consisting of a diversified mix of both pre-clinical and clinical stage
product candidates. Finally, we have a fully integrated portfolio of CDMO services which cover development services, drug substance manufacturing and drug product
manufacturing and packaging.

The Company structures the business with a focus on markets and customers. As such, the key components of the business structure include the following four product and
service categories: Anthrax - Medical Countermeasures (“MCM") Products, NARCANe, Smallpox - MCM products, and Emergent Bioservices (CDMO) services ("Bioservices"). In
the fourth quarter of 2023, we realigned our reportable operating segments to reflect recent changes in our internal operating and reporting process. The revised reporting structure
reflects the internal reporting and review process used by our Chief Operating Decision Maker, for making decisions and assessing performance, and is consistent with how we
currently manage the business. We now manage our business with a focus on three reportable segments: (1) a Commercial Products segment consisting of our NARCANe and
Other Commercial Products; (2) a MCM Products segment consisting of the Anthrax - MCM, Smallpox - MCM and Other Products; and (3) a Services segment consisting of our
Bioservices offerings.

Commercial Products Segment:

The majority of our Commercial product revenue comes from the following products:
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NARCANe®

* NARCANe (naloxone HCI) Nasal Spray, an intranasal formulation of naloxone approved by the FDA (including in over-the-counter form) and Health Canada for the
emergency treatment of known or suspected opioid overdose as manifested by respiratory and/or central nervous system depression.

Other Sale of Travel Health Business

On May 15, 2023, the Company completed the sale of its Commercial Products (Sold to Bavarian Nordic as part of our segment's travel health business, in May 2023)

«including rights to Vivotife, the licensed typhoid vaccine; Vaxchorae (Cholera Vaccine, Live, Oral), the firstlicensed cholera vaccine; the development-stage chikungunya
vaccine approved by candidate CHIKV VLP; the FDA for the prevention Company’s manufacturing site in Bern, Switzerland; and certain of cholera, which we sold to
Bavarian Nordic as part of our travel health business; and

¢ Vivotife (Typhoid Vaccine Live Oral Ty21a), a live attenuated vaccine for oral administration for the prevention of typhoid fever, which we sold to Bavarian Nordic as part of
our travel health business. its development facilities in San Diego, California.

MCM Products Segment:
The majority of our MCM product revenue comes from the following products and procured product candidates:

Anthrax - MCM Products

¢ Anthrasile (Anthrax Immune Globulin Intravenous (human)), the only polyclonal antibody therapeutic licensed by the FDA and Health Canada for the treatment of
inhalational anthrax in combination with appropriate antibacterial drugs;

¢ BioThraxe (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed), the only vaccine licensed by the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for the general use prophylaxis and post-
exposure prophylaxis of anthrax disease;

* CYFENDUSe (Anthrax vaccine adsorbed (AVA), adjuvanted), previously known as AV7909, which was recently approved by the FDA for post-exposure prophylaxis of
disease following suspected or confirmed exposure to Bacillus anthracis in persons 18 through 65 years of age when administered in conjunction with recommended
antibacterial drugs. CYFENDUSe is procured by certain authorized government buyers for their use; and

¢ Raxibacumab injection, the first fully human monoclonal antibody therapeutic licensed by the FDA for the treatment and prophylaxis of inhalational anthrax.

Smallpox - MCM Products

* ACAM2000e, (Smallpox (Vaccinia) Vaccine, Live), the only single-dose smallpox vaccine licensed by the FDA for active immunization against smallpox disease for persons
determined to be at high risk for smallpox infection;

¢ CNJ-016e (Vaccinia Immune Globulin Intravenous (Human) (VIGIV)), the only polyclonal antibody therapeutic licensed by the FDA and Health Canada to address certain
complications from smallpox vaccination; and

« TEMBEXAe, an oral antiviral formulated as 100 mg tablets and 10 mg/mL oral suspension dosed once weekly for two weeks which has been approved by the FDA for the
treatment of smallpox disease caused by variola virus in adult and pediatric patients, including neonates.

Other Products

* BATe (Botulism Antitoxin Heptavalent (A,B,C,D,E,F,G)-(Equine)), the only heptavalent antitoxin licensed by the FDA and Health Canada for the treatment of symptomatic
botulism;

¢ Ebanga™ (ansuvimab-zykl), a monoclonal antibody with antiviral activity provided through a single 1V infusion for the treatment of Ebola. Under the terms of a collaboration
with Ridgeback Biotherapeutics ("Ridgeback"), Emergent will be responsible for the manufacturing, sale, and distribution of Ebanga™ in the U.S. and Canada, and
Ridgeback will serve as the global access partner for Ebanga™;

* RSDLe (Reactive Skin Decontamination Lotion Kit), the only medical device cleared by the FDA that is intended to remove or neutralize chemical warfare agents from the
skin, including: tabun, sarin, soman, cyclohexyl sarin, VR, VX, mustard gas and T-2 toxin; toxin. On July 31, 2024, the Company entered into the Stock and Asset Purchase
Agreement (“RSDLe Agreement”) with SERB Pharmaceuticals, through its wholly owned subsidiary BTG International Inc. (collectively, “SERB”), pursuant to which, among
other things, the Company sold its worldwide rights to RSDLe, to SERB (the “RSDLe Transaction”). See Note 18, Subsequent events for more information about the RSDLe
Transaction; and

* Trobigarde atropine sulfate, obidoxime chloride auto-injector, a combination drug-device auto-injector procured product candidate that contains atropine sulfate and
obidoxime chloride. Trobigarde was approved in Belgium in 2021 but has not been approved by the FDA. Trobigarde is procured by certain authorized government buyers
under special circumstances for potential use as a nerve agent countermeasure outside of the U.S. On April 2, 2024, Emergent submitted its revocation of the Market
Authorization for the Trobigard Auto-Injector to the Belgium Federal Agency for Medicines and Health Products (“FAMHP”). acknowledged and confirmed Emergent's
request to revoke the Market Authorization for the Trobigard Auto-Injector.
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Services Segment:

Bioservices - contract development and manufacturing

Our services revenue consists of distinct but interrelated Bioservices: drug substance manufacturing; drug product manufacturing (also referred to as “fill/finish” services) and
packaging; development services including technology transfer, process and analytical development services; and, when necessary, suite reservation obligations. These services,
which we refer to as “molecule-to-market” offerings, employ diverse technology platforms (mammalian, microbial, viral and plasma) across a network of eight seven geographically
distinct development and manufacturing sites operated by us for our internal products and pipeline candidates and third-party Bioservices. We service both clinical-stage and
commercial-stage projects for a variety of third-party customers, including government agencies, innovative pharmaceutical companies, and non-government organizations. In
August 2023, we initiated an organizational restructuring plan (the “August 2023 Plan”) which included actions to reduce investment in and de-emphasize focus on our Bioservices
business. In May 2024, the Company initiated an organizational restructuring plan (the “May 2024 Plan”) announcing the closure of the Company’s Baltimore-Bayview Drug
Substance manufacturing facility and Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility. Additionally, on June 20, 2024 the Company announced entry into an Asset Purchase Agreement
(the “Asset Purchase Agreement”) with Bora Pharmaceuticals Injectibles Inc., a subsidiary of Bora Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Bora”), under which the Company will sell its drug
product facility in Baltimore-Camden (the “Camden Transaction”).

Other Strategic Activities

January 2023 Organizational Restructuring_Plan

In January 2023, the Company initiated an organizational restructuring plan (the “January 2023 Plan”) intended to reduce operating costs, improve operating margins, and
continue advancing the Company’s ongoing commitment to profitable growth. As part of the January 2023 Plan, the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 125
employees. The charges related to the January 2023 plan consist primarily of employee transition, severance payment and employee benefit charges. The cumulative amount of
restructuring charge related to the January 2023 Plan since inception is $9.3 million. All activities related to the January 2023 Plan were substantially completed during the first
quarter of 2023. Restructuring costs are recognized as an operating expense within the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and are classified based on the
Company's classification policy for each category of operating expense.

August 2023 Organizational Restructuring Plan

In August 2023, the Company initiated the August 2023 Plan intended to strengthen its core business and financial position by reducing investment in and de-emphasizing focus
on its CDMO services business for future growth. As part of the August 2023 Plan, the Company reduced its workforce by approximately 400 employees. The charges related to the
August 2023 Plan consist primarily of employee transition, severance payment and employee benefit charges. The cumulative amount of restructuring charge related to the August
2023 Plan since inception is $19.5$19.4 million. All activities related to the August 2023 Plan were substantially completed during the third quarter of 2023. Restructuring costs are
recognized as an operating expense within the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and are classified based on the Company's classification policy for each category
of operating expense.

Trobigard Revocation

On April 2, 2024, Emergent submitted its revocation of the Market Authorization for the Trobigard Auto-Injector to the Belgium FAMHP. The FAHMP FAMHP subsequently
acknowledged and confirmed the revocation date as being April 2, 2024.

May 2024 Organizational Restructuring Plan

On May 1, 2024, In May 2024, the Company announced an organizational restructuring plan (the “May initiated the May 2024 Plan”). Plan. These strategic actions will lead to a
reduction of the Company’s current workforce by approximately 300 employees across all areas of the Company and the elimination of approximately 85 positions that are currently
vacant, as well as the closure of the Company’s Baltimore-Bayview Drug Substance manufacturing facility and Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility. Decisions regarding the
elimination of positions and the closure of manufacturing facilities are subject to local law and consultation requirements in certain countries, as well as the Company’s business
needs. The cumulative amount of restructuring charge related to the May 2024 Plan since inception is $17.2 million. All activities related to the May 2024 Plan were substantially
completed during the second quarter of 2024. Restructuring costs are recognized as an operating expense within the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and are
classified based on the Company's classification policy for each category of operating expense.

Sale of Baltimore-Camden Facility

On June 20, 2024, Cangene bioPharma LLC, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement with Bora, under which the Company will sell its drug
product facility in Baltimore-Camden for a total value of approximately $30.0 million. Approximately 350 of the Company’s employees are expected to join Bora as part of the
transaction.

The transaction is expected to close in the third quarter of 2024, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions.

As a result of the Asset Purchase Agreement, the assets and liabilities of our Baltimore-Camden facility are classified as held for sale. The Company estimates that it will incur
approximately $18.0 has recognized a pre-tax loss of $40.0 million to $21.0 during the quarter, including transaction costs of $3.9 million, in charges “Gain (loss) on sale of business
and assets held for sale” within non-operating activities.

Confidential arbitration settlement with Janssen

On July 3, 2024, the Company, its wholly owned subsidiary, Emergent Manufacturing Operations Baltimore, LLC (‘EMOB"), and Janssen executed the Settlement Agreement to
resolve all claims among the Parties arising from the Janssen Agreement. The Settlement Agreement also resolves the Parties’ related and previously disclosed arbitration.

Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Janssen paid the Company $50.0 million on July 31, 2024. In addition, the Settlement Agreement contains broad releases
of the parties, their affiliates and subsidiaries, representatives, officers, directors and shareholders, including releases of all claims related to the manufacture of the Product by
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EMOB, the Janssen Agreement, or any agreement or understanding between the parties concerning the Product, and the matters at issue in the arbitration. The Company
concluded this is a recognized subsequent event.

Development milestone payments for CHIKV VLP

On July 18, 2024, Bavarian Nordic announced that the European Medicines Agency has validated the marketing authorization application for CHIKV VLP, which was submitted
in June 2024. This approval triggered a milestone payment under the Purchase and Sale Agreement to the Company in the amount of $10.0 million, which is expected to be
received in the third quarter of 2024.

2024 Sale of RSDL® to SERB Pharmaceuticals

On July 31, 2024, the Company entered into the RSDLe Agreement with SERB, pursuant to which, among other things, the Company sold its worldwide rights to RSDLe to
SERB. The RSDLe Transaction also included the sale of all the outstanding capital stock of Emergent Protective Products USA Inc. (“EPPU"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which leases a manufacturing facility in Hattiesburg, Mississippi, as well as certain assets related to RSDLe, including intellectual property rights, contract rights, inventory
and marketing authorizations. In addition, the employees of EPPU are expected to join SERB in connection with the May 2024 Plan, RSDLe Transaction.

Pursuant to the RSDLe Transaction, SERB will assume certain government contracts related to RSDLe decontamination lotion, including the Company’s existing contract to
supply RSDLe to the U.S. Department of Defense, through a new contract award to the Canadian Commercial Corporation.

The RSDLe Agreement provided for a cash purchase price of $75.0 million at the closing of the RSDLe Transaction, which it expectsis subject to incur primarily customary
adjustments based on inventory value at closing.In addition, SERB will pay the Company a $5.0 million payment upon achievement of a milestone relating to sourcing of a certain
component of RSDLe decontamination lotion. The RSDLe Transaction closed on July 31, 2024. The Company and SERB made customary representations, warranties, and
covenants in the second quarter of fiscal 2024. These charges consist primarily of cash charges related to severance, transition services, and estimated benefits cost.

The estimates of the charges and expenditures that the Company expects to incur in connection with the May 2024 Plan, and the timing thereof, are subject to a number of
assumptions, including local law requirements in various jurisdictions, and actual amounts may differ materially from estimates. RSDLe Agreement. In addition, the Company may
incur other charges or cash expenditures not currently contemplated due to unanticipated events that may occur, including in connection with agreed, for a period of three years
following the implementation closing of the May 2024 Plan. RSDLe Transaction, not to make, import, export, use, sell or otherwise dispose of, any product that is intended to remove
or neutralize chemical warfare agents from the skin, including any product that contains the same chemical components as RSDLe, or to engage in a similar competing business.

At the closing of the RSDLe Transaction, the Company and SERB also entered into a transition services agreement to ensure the orderly transition of RSDLe decontamination
lotion and the related assets to SERB, and a supply agreement pursuant to which the Company’s Winnipeg facility will continue to manufacture and supply bulk lotion to SERB
under a long-term supply agreement. The Company and SERB will also enter into a reverse supply agreement shortly after the closing of the RSDLe Transaction pursuant to which
SERB will supply to the Company finished RSDLe for the purposes of the Company performing certain transitional distribution services.

2024 Triggering Events

2024 Impairment of long-lived assets

During the preparation of our financial statements for the three months ended June 30, 2024, due to the decision to close the Company’s Baltimore-Bayview Drug Substance
manufacturing facility and Rockville, Maryland Drug Product facility, the Company determined there were sufficient indicators of impairment for the Bayview and Rockville asset
groups within the Bioservices reporting unit. As a result, the Company performed recoverability tests on those asset groups and concluded that the Bayview and Rockville asset
groups were not recoverable as the undiscounted expected cash flows did not exceed their carrying values.

Asset groups are written down only to the extent that their carrying value is higher than their respective fair value. The Company, with the assistance of a third-party valuation
firm, applied valuation methods to estimate the fair values for each of the assets within the different asset classes. An orderly liquidation value was applied to estimate the fair value
of the personal property assets and market and cost based approaches were applied to estimate the fair value of the real property assets, each representing Level 3 non-recurring
fair value measurements. Based on these analyses, the Company allocated and recognized a non-cash impairment charge of $27.2 million during the three months ended June 30,
2024.

FINANCIAL OPERATIONS OVERVIEW
Revenues

We generate Commercial Product revenues through sale of NARCANe Nasal Spray, which is sold commercially over-the-counter at retail pharmacies and digital commerce
websites as well as through physician-directed or standing order prescriptions at retail pharmacies, health departments, local law enforcement agencies, community-based
organizations, substance abuse centers and other federal agencies. In addition, we previously generated Commercial product revenues through sale of the Company's travel health
products, which we sold to Bavarian Nordic in May 2023.We generate MCM Product revenues from the sale of our marketed products and procured product candidates. The U.S.
government ("USG") is the largest purchaser of our Government - MCM products and primarily purchases our products for the Strategic National Stockpile, a national repository of
medical countermeasures including critical antibiotics, vaccines, chemical antidotes, antitoxins, and other critical medical supplies. The USG primarily purchases our products under
long-term, firm fixed-price procurement contracts, generally with annual options.

We also generate revenue from our Services segment through our Bioservices portfolio, which is based on our established development and manufacturing infrastructure,
technology platforms and expertise. Our services include a fully integrated molecule-to-market Bioservices business offering across development services, drug substance and drug
product for small to large pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry and government agencies/non-governmental organizations. From time to time, clients require suite reservations
at our various manufacturing sites, which may be considered leases depending on the facts and circumstances.
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We have received contracts and grant funding from the USG and other non-governmental organizations to perform R&D activities, particularly related to programs addressing
certain CBRNE threats and EIDs.

Our revenue, operating results and profitability vary quarterly based on the timing of production and deliveries, the timing of manufacturing services performed and the nature of
our business, which involves providing large scale bundles of products and services as needs arise. We expect continued variability in our quarterly financial results.

Cost of Product Sales and Services

Commercial and MCM Products - The primary expenses that we incur to deliver our NARCANe and MCM and other commercial products consist of fixed and variable costs.
We determine the cost of product sales for products sold during a reporting period based on the average manufacturing cost per unit in the period those units were manufactured.
Fixed manufacturing costs include facilities, utilities and amortization of intangible assets. Variable manufacturing costs primarily consist of costs for materials and personnel-related
expenses for direct and indirect manufacturing support staff, contract manufacturing operations, sales-based royalties, shipping and logistics. In addition to the fixed and variable
manufacturing costs described above, the cost of product sales depends on utilization of available manufacturing capacity. For our commercial sales, other associated expenses
include sales-based royalties, shipping, and logistics.

Services - The primary expenses that we incur to deliver our Bioservices offerings consist of fixed and variable costs, including personnel, equipment, and facilities costs. Our
manufacturing process includes the production of bulk material and performing drug product work for containment and distribution of biological products. For drug product
customers, we receive work in process inventory to be prepared for distribution.

Research and Development ("R&D") Expenses

We expense R&D costs as incurred. Our R&D expenses consist primarily of:

= personnel-related expenses;

= fees to professional service providers for, among other things, analytical testing, independent monitoring or other administration of our clinical trials and obtaining and
evaluating data from our clinical trials and non-clinical studies;

= costs of Bioservices for our clinical trial material; and

= costs of materials intended for use and used in clinical trials and R&D.

In many cases, we seek funding for development activities from external sources and third parties, such as governments and non-governmental organizations, or through
collaborative partnerships. We expect our R&D spending will be dependent upon such factors as the results from our clinical trials, the availability of reimbursement of R&D
spending, the number of product candidates under development, the size, structure and duration of any clinical programs that we may initiate, the costs associated with
manufacturing

and development of our product candidates on a large-scale basis for later stage clinical trials, and our ability to use or rely on data generated by government agencies.

Selling,_General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses consist primarily of personnel-related costs and professional fees in support of our executives, sales and marketing,
business development, government affairs, finance, accounting, information technology, legal, human resource functions and other corporate functions. Other costs include facility
costs not otherwise included in cost of product sales and Bioservices or R&D expense.

Income taxes

Uncertainty in income taxes is accounted for using a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. We recognize in our financial statements the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit,
based on the technical merits of the position.

Changes in tax laws, rulings, policies, or related legal and regulatory interpretations occur frequently and may have significant favorable or adverse impacts on our effective tax
rate. In 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OECD") released model rules for a 15% global minimum tax applied to cross-border profits of certain
large multinational corporations, known as Pillar Two. Pillar Two has now been enacted by approximately 30 countries, including Ireland. This minimum tax is treated as a period
cost beginning in 2024 and its impact is included on the Company's financial results of operations for the current period. The Company is monitoring legislative developments, as
well as additional guidance from countries that have enacted legislation. We anticipate further legislative activity and administrative guidance in 2024.

Management believes that the assumptions and estimates related to the provision for income taxes are critical to the Company’s results of operations.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of our condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.,
requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates, judgments and methodologies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that we believe are reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets, liabilities and equity and the amount
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of revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. There have been no significant changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates contained in
"Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" in the Management's Discussion and Analysis, in Part Il, Item 7, of the 2023 Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC.

New accounting standards

For a discussion of new accounting standards please see Note 2, "Summary of significant accounting policies”, in Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated and Segment Operating Results:
Three Months Ended March 31,

(in millions, except %) 2024 2023 $ Change % Change

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 39/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <



https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

NM - Not meaningful

Revenues
Commercial Product sales, net:

NARCANe

Other Commercial Products

Total Commercial Product sales, net

MCM Product sales, net:
Anthrax MCM
Smallpox MCM
Other Products sales

Total MCM Product sales, net

Services:
Bioservices - Services
Bioservices - Leases

Total Services revenues

Contracts and grants

Total revenues

Operating expenses:
Cost of Commercial Product sales
Cost of MCM Product sales
Cost of Bioservices
Impairment of long-lived assets
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangible assets

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Other income (expense):

Interest expense

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held

for sale
Other, net

Total other income (expense), net

Loss before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net loss

NM - Not meaningful
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 Compared with Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023

Revenues and gross margin

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

% %
(dollars in millions) Change Change

Total
Total revenues Total revenues $ 3004 $ $ 1643 83 83 Y%revenues $ 254.7 $ $337.9 (25) (25) %
Contracts and Contracts and Contracts and
grants grants 8.0 6.5 6.5 23 23 % grants 6.6 6.6 6.6 — — %
Total
segment
Total segment Total segment revenues
revenues (1 revenues (1 $ 2924 $ $ 157.8 85 85 % $ 248.1 $ $331.3 (25) (25) %
Cost of Cost of Cost of
Commercial Commercial Commercial
Product sales Product sales 52.1 458 45.8 14 14 % Product sales 534 54.4 54.4 ) 2)%
Cost of MCM Cost of MCM Cost of MCM
Product sales Product sales 62.2 55.4 55.4 12 12 % Product sales 31.1 80.5 80.5 (61) (61)%
Cost of Cost of Cost of
Bioservices Bioservices 30.3 51.7 51.7 (41) (41) % Bioservices 211.6 55.7 55.7 NM NM
Total cost of sales Total cost of sales Total cost of
or services or services 1446 1529 1529 5) (5) % sales or services 296.1 190.6 190.6 55 55 %
Total segment Total segment Total segment
gross marginy  gross margin@ $ 147.8 $ $ 49 NM NM gross margin ) $ (48.00 $ $ 140.7 (134) (134)%
Total segment
gross margin % (1)
1) We define total segment revenues, which is a non-GAAP financial
measure, as our total revenues, less contracts and grants revenue,
which is also equal to the sum of the revenues of our reportable
operating segments. We define total segment gross margin, which is a
non-GAAP financial measure, as total segment revenues less our
aggregate cost of sales or services. We define total segment gross
margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as total
segment gross margin as a percentage of total segment revenues. We
believe that this non-GAAP operating measure, when reviewed
collectively with our GAAP financial information, provides useful
supplemental information to investors in assessing our operating
performance.
1) We define total segment revenues, which is a non-GAAP financial
measure, as our total revenues, less contracts and grants revenue,
which is also equal to the sum of the revenues of our reportable
operating segments. We define total segment gross margin, which is a
non-GAAP financial measure, as total segment revenues less our
aggregate cost of sales or services. We define total segment gross
margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as total
segment gross margin as a percentage of total segment revenues. We
believe that this non-GAAP operating measure, when reviewed
collectively with our GAAP financial information, provides useful
supplemental information to investors in assessing our operating
performance.
REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 41/408

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

@ We define total segment revenues, which is a non-GAAP financial
measure, as our total revenues, less contracts and grants revenue,
which is also equal to the sum of the revenues of our reportable
operating segments. We define total segment gross margin, which is a
non-GAAP financial measure, as total segment revenues less our
aggregate cost of sales or services. We define total segment gross
margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as total
segment gross margin as a percentage of total segment revenues. We
believe that this non-GAAP operating measure, when reviewed
collectively with our GAAP financial information, provides useful
supplemental information to investors in assessing our operating
performance.

NM - Not meaningful

Total revenues increased $136.1 million decreased $83.2 million, or 83% 25%, to $300.4 million $254.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The
increase decrease was due to increases decreases in MCM Products revenue of $100.9 million and Commercial Products revenue of $118.2 million and $12.3 million $17.9 million,
respectively, coupled with increases partially offset by an increase in Services revenue of $4.1 million and Contracts and grants revenue of $1.5 million $35.6 million.

Total segment gross margin increased $142.9 million decreased $188.7 million, or 134%, to $147.8 million $(48.0) million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30,
2024. Total segment gross margin percentage increased 48 decreased 61 percentage points to 51% (19)% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The
increase decrease in total segment gross margin was due to increases decreases in Services gross margin of $120.3 million, MCM Products gross margin of $111.4 million,
Services gross margin of $25.5 million, $51.5 million and Commercial Products gross margin of $6.0 million $16.9 million. Total segment gross margin and total segment gross
margin percentage exclude Contracts and grants revenues because the related costs are R&D expenses.

See "Segment Results" for an expanded discussion of revenues and gross margin.

Unallocated corporate operating expenses

R&D Expenses

R&D expenses decreased $25.6 increased $6.7 million, or 63% 26%, to $15.1$32.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The increase was
primarily due to write-offs related to program terminations during the period and an increase in R&D overhead and severance costs. The increase was partially offset by the sale of
our development program for CHIKV VLP to Bavarian Nordic and reduction in related overhead costs driven by the headcount reductions and an overall decrease in spend for
funded projects.

SG&A Expenses

SG&A expenses decreased $5.5 million, or 6%, to $85.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to lower employee related expenses
and compensation as a result of restructuring initiatives during 2023, coupled with a decrease in marketing expense. The decrease was patrtially offset by higher legal services fees
for disputes and other corporate initiatives, as well as higher restructuring costs. SG&A expenses as a percentage of total revenue increased 7 percentage points to 34% for the
three months ended June 30, 2024.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets increased $0.2 million, or 1%, to $16.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to an increase in
amortization expense for the intangible asset related to Ebangatm, which was the result of the contingent consideration payment made to Ridgeback in the third quarter of 2023.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Impairment of long-lived assets decreased $279.5 million, or 91%, to $27.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was due to a $27.2 million non-
cash impairment charge in the second quarter of 2024 related to our Bayview and Rockville asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit, compared to a $306.7 million non-
cash impairment charge recorded in the second quarter of 2023 related to our Camden, Bayview and Rockville asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit.

Interest expense

Interest expense decreased $5.0 million, or 17%, to $23.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to lower interest costs related to
our syndicated borrowings and debt service costs attributable to the negotiation of the Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, Waiver and First
Amendment to Amended and Restated Collateral Agreement (the “Credit Agreement Amendment") in the second quarter of 2023, partially offset by higher interest expense related
to the termination of our interest rate swap hedging agreements.

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale was a loss of $40.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to a gain of $74.9 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2023. The loss on sale of business and assets held for sale is related to the held for sale treatment of the Company’s drug product facility in Baltimore-
Camden, which the Company agreed to sell to Bora. The gain on sale of business and assets held for sale in the prior year is attributable to the sale of our travel health business to
Bavarian Nordic during the second quarter of 2023.

Other, net
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Other, net went from $3.6 million in expense to $2.7 million in expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The change of $0.9 million was primarily attributable to lower
interest income, due to lower balances in our money market accounts.

Income tax provision (benefit)

Income tax provision increased $2.1 million, or 19%, to $13.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to an increase in taxable
income in the Company’s profitable jurisdictions.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues and gross margin

Total revenues $ 5551 % 502.2 11 %
Contracts and grants 14.6 13.1 11 %
Total segment revenues (1) $ 540.5 $ 489.1 11 %
Cost of Commercial Product sales 105.5 100.2 5%
Cost of MCM Product sales 93.3 135.9 (BL)%
Cost of Bioservices 241.9 107.4 125 %
Total cost of sales or services 440.7 3435 28 %
Total segment gross margin (1) $ 99.8 $ 145.6 (B1)%
Total segment gross margin % (1) 18 % 30 %

1) We define total segment revenues, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as our total revenues, less contracts and grants revenue, which is also equal to the sum of the
revenues of our reportable operating segments. We define total segment gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as total segment revenues less our aggregate cost
of sales or services. We define total segment gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, as total segment gross margin as a percentage of total segment
revenues. We believe that this non-GAAP operating measure, when reviewed collectively with our GAAP financial information, provides useful supplemental information to investors
in assessing our operating performance.

NM - Not meaningful

Total revenues increased $52.9 million, or 11%, to $555.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was due to increases in Services revenue of $39.7
million, MCM Products revenue of $17.3 million and Contracts and grants revenue of $1.5 million, partially offset by a decrease in Commercial Products revenue of $5.6 million.

Total segment gross margin decreased $45.8 million, or 31%, to $99.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. Total segment gross margin percentage decreased 11
percentage points to 18% for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease in total segment gross margin was due to decreases in Services gross margin of $94.8 million and
Commercial Products gross margin of $10.9 million, partially offset by an increase in MCM Products gross margin of $59.9 million. Total segment gross margin and Total segment
gross margin percentage exclude Contracts and grants revenues because the related costs are R&D expenses.

See "Segment Results" for an expanded discussion of revenues and gross margin.
Unallocated corporate operating expenses

R&D Expenses

R&D expenses decreased $18.9 million, or 28%, to $47.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to the sale of our development
program for CHIKV VLP to Bavarian Nordic in the second quarter of 2023 and reduction in related overhead costs as well as a reduction in overhead costs driven by the headcount
reductions as reductions. The decrease was also driven by a result of restructuring. reduction in spend for certain funded projects, excluding Ebangarm. The decrease was patrtially
offset by write-offs related to program terminations during the period, an increase in expense the allocation of R&D overhead costs, an increase in severance costs and an increase
in funded R&D related to development activities for Ebangarm.

SG&A Expenses

SG&A expenses decreased $16.6 $22.1 million, or 16% 11%, to $84.7 $170.6 million for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily
due to decreases inlower employee related expenses and compensation and other employee costs as a result of the restructuring initiatives that began during the first quarter of
2023 and a reduction inlower professional services fees related to general corporate initiatives, in the prior year, including organizational transformation consulting fees. These
decreases were partially offset by an increase in marketing expenses related to the launch of OTC NARCANe and higher legal services fees.fees for disputes and strategic
corporate initiatives, as well as higher restructuring costs. SG&A expenses as a percentage of total revenue decreased 337 percentage points to 28% 31% for the three six months
ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.
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Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets decreased $0.8 $0.6 million, or 5% 2%, to $16.2 $32.5 million for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The decrease was
primarily due to a decrease in amortization expense resulting from the intangibles sold as partwith our travel health business to Bavarian Nordic, partially offset by an increase in
amortization expense for the intangible asset related to Ebangarm, which was the result of the contingent consideration payment made to Ridgeback in the third quarter of 2023.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Impairment of long-lived assets decreased $279.5 million, or 91%, to $27.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was due to a $27.2 million non-cash
impairment charge in the second quarter of 2024 related to our Bayview and Rockville asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit, compared to a $306.7 million non-cash
impairment charge recorded in the second quarter of 2023 related to our Camden, Bayview and Rockville asset groups within the Bioservices reporting unit.

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $1.4 million, or 3%, to $47.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to interest expense related to the
termination of our interest rate swap hedging agreements and one-time debt service costs attributable to the negotiation of the Forbearance Agreement and Sixth Amendment (the
“Forbearance Agreement and Amendment”) and the Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, partially offset by lower interest costs related to our
syndicated borrowings.

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale

Gain (loss) on sale of business and assets held for sale was a loss of $40.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to a gain of $74.9 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2023. The loss on sale of business and assets held for sale is related to the held for sale treatment of the Company’s drug product facility in Baltimore-
Camden, which the Company agreed to sell to Bora. The gain on sale of business and assets held for sale in the prior year is attributable to the sale of our travel health business to
Bavarian Nordic in during the second quarter of 2023.

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $6.4 million, or 36%, to $24.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The increase was primarily due to an increase in amortization of
debt service costs related to fees incurred in connection with the Third and Fourth Amendments to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, Waiver and First Amendment to
Amended and Restated Collateral Agreement (the “Credit Agreement Amendments") and the Forbearance Agreement and Amendment, partially offset by lower interest costs on the
Company’s syndicated borrowings as a result of principal payments during 2023.

Other, net

Other, net went from $4.9 $1.3 million in income to $3.4 $6.1 million in expense for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The change of $8.3$7.4 million or
169%, iswas primarily attributable to lower interest income, due to lower balances in our money market accounts coupled with and a write-off of an equity method investment.

Income tax provision (benefit)

Income tax provision decreased $22.5%$20.4 million, or 55%, to $3.1$16.4 million for the threesix months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The decrease was
primarily largely due to a change the jurisdictional mix of income and losses. The effective tax rate was (6)% for the six months ended June 30, 2024 as compared with (9)% in 2023.
The effective annual tax rate increased largely due the jurisdictional mix of income and losses.

SEGMENT RESULTS

COMMERCIAL PRODUCTS SEGMENT

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

Revenues Revenues $ 1200 $ $ 1379 (13 (13 %) $2385 $ $244.1 (2 (2 %)

Revenues

Revenues
Cost of sales

Cost of sales
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Cost of sales Cost of sales $ 534 $ 54.4 2 (2 %) $1055 $ $100.2 5 5%

Gross margin ( Grossmargin@w $  66.6 $ 835 (20 (20 %) $133.0 $ $143.9 (8 (8 %)
Gross margin

Gross margin (1)

Gross margin % (1)

Gross margin % (1)

Gross margin % (1)

Segment adjusted gross margin (2

Segment adjusted gross margin (2

Segment adjusted gross margin $ 66.6 $ $ 835 (20 (20 %) $133.0 | ; $143.9 8 (8 %)
Segment adjusted gross margin %

@

Segment adjusted gross margin %

@

Segment adjusted gross margin %

@

@) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin percentage is calculated as
gross margin divided by revenues.

@) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin percentage is calculated as
gross margin divided by revenues.

1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin percentage is calculated as
gross margin divided by revenues.

(2 Segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is calculated as gross

margin plus restructuring costs and non-cash items related to changes in fair value of contingent

consideration. Segment adjusted gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is

calculated as segment adjusted gross margin divided by revenues. The Company’s management

utilizes segment adjusted gross margin and segment adjusted gross margin percentage for purposes of

evaluating our ongoing operations and for internal planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that

these non-GAAP operating measures, when reviewed collectively with our GAAP financial information,

provide useful supplemental information to investors in assessing our operating performance.

(2 Segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is calculated as gross margin plus restructuring costs and non-
cash items related to changes in fair value of contingent consideration, inventory step-up provision and settlement charge, net. Segment
adjusted gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is calculated as segment adjusted gross margin divided by
revenues. The Company’s management utilizes segment adjusted gross margin and segment adjusted gross margin percentage for
purposes of evaluating our ongoing operations and for internal planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that these non-GAAP
operating measures, when reviewed collectively with our GAAP financial information, provide useful supplemental information to investors in
assessing our operating performance. NM - Not meaningful
Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 Compared with Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023

NARCANe sales increased $18.1decreased $13.9 million, or 18% 10%, to $118.5%$120.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The
increase decrease was primarily driven by higher branded NARCANe sales an unfavorable price and volume mix in 2024 to U.S. public interest channels and lower Canadian market
sales, of OTC NARCANGe, partially offset by lower Canadian retail higher sales of branded over-the-counter (“OTC”) NARCANe. through wholesaler channels, which launched in the
third quarter of 2023.

Other Commercial Products

Other commercial products Commercial Products sales decreased $5.8 million $4.0 million, or 100%, to no sales for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.
The During the second quarter of 2023, the Company sold Vivotife and Vaxchoraeto Bavarian Nordic as part of our travel health business during the second quarter of
2023. business.

Cost of Product Sales and Gross Margin

Cost of Commercial Product sales increased $6.3 decreased $1.0 million, or 14% 2%, to $52.1 $53.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The
increase decrease was primarily due to higher sales of OTC NARCAN no current period costs related to Vivotife and Vaxchorae, which launched during the third quarter were sold to
Bavarian Nordic as part of 2023, our travel health business, partially offset by lower Canadian retail sales of branded higher NARCANe. expense as a result of increased unit volume.
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Commercial Products gross margin increased $6.0 million decreased $16.9 million, or 10% 20%, to $66.4 million $66.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June
30, 2024. Commercial Products gross margin percentage decreased 15 percentage point points to 56% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The decrease
was largely due to the higher sales of OTCan unfavorable price and volume mix in 2024 for NARCANe and lower branded NARCAN products, partially offset by the sale of the
products associated with our travel health business to Bavarian Nordic.® sales. Commercial Products segment adjusted gross margin is consistent with gross margin.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
NARCANe

NARCANe sales increased $4.2 million, or 2%, to $238.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily driven by higher NARCANe sales to U.S.
public interest channels and higher sales of OTC NARCANe, partially offset by lower Canadian retail sales.

Other Commercial Products

Other Commercial Products sales decreased $9.8 million, or 100%, to no sales for the six months ended June 30, 2024. During the second quarter of 2023, we sold Vivotife and
Vaxchorae to Bavarian Nordic as part of our travel health business.

Cost of Commercial Product Sales and Gross Margin

Cost of Commercial Product sales increased $5.3 million, or 5%, to $105.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to higher NARCANe
expense as a result of increased unit volume, partially offset by the sale of the products associated with our travel health business to Bavarian Nordic.

Commercial Products gross margin decreased $10.9 million, or 8%, to $133.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. Commercial Products gross margin percentage
decreased 3 percentage points to 56% for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was largely due to an unfavorable price and volume mix in 2024 for NARCANe
products, partially offset by the sale of the products associated with our travel health business to Bavarian Nordic.Commercial Products segment adjusted gross margin is consistent
with gross margin.

MCM PRODUCTS SEGMENT

MCM Products Segment MCM Products Segment

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

$201.5

%

%
(dolas i millons) H
(61 )

Revenues Revenues $63.4 $ $164.3 (61 % $

%
Change
$218.8 9 9

Revenues

Revenues
Cost of sales
Cost of sales

Cost of sales Cost of sales $31.1 $ $ 80.5 (61 (61 %) $ 933 $ $135.9 (31 (31 %)

Gross margin
Gross margin (y () $32.3 $ $ 83.8 (61 (61 %) $125.5 $ $ 65.6 91 91 %
Gross margin
Gross margin @
Gross margin % (1)
Gross margin % (1)
Gross margin % (1)
Add back:
Add back:
Add back:
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Changes in fair value of
contingent consideration

Changes in fair value of
contingent consideration

Changes in fair value of
contingent consideration 0.1

Restructuring
Restructuring costs costs

Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs

Inventory step-up provision —

Segment adjusted gross
margin (2)

Segment adjusted gross
margin (2)

Segment adjusted gross
margin (2) $ 35.1
Segment adjusted gross
margin % (2)

Segment adjusted gross
margin % (2)

Segment adjusted gross
margin % (2)

0.4 0.4 (75 (75 %) 0.6
27— — NM NM
1.9 (100 %) —
$ $86.1 (59 (59 %) $ 1287

1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin
percentage is calculated as gross margin divided by revenues.

1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin
percentage is calculated as gross margin divided by revenues.

1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin
percentage is calculated as gross margin divided by revenues.

(2 Segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is
calculated as gross margin plus restructuring costs and non-cash items ) Segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is calculated
related to changes in fair value of contingent consideration. Segment adjusted as gross margin plus restructuring costs and non-cash items related to changes in fair
gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is value of contingent consideration, inventory step-up provision and settlement charge, net.

0.7 0.7 (14 (14 %)
26 20 2.0 30 30 %
1.9 (100 %)
$ $ 70.2 83 83 %

calculated as segment adjusted gross margin divided by revenues. The Segment adjusted gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is

Company’s management utilizes segment adjusted gross margin and segment calculated as segment adjusted gross margin divided by revenues. The Company’'s
adjusted gross margin percentage for purposes of evaluating our ongoing management utilizes segment adjusted gross margin and segment adjusted gross
operations and for internal planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that margin percentage for purposes of evaluating our ongoing operations and for internal

these non-GAAP operating measures, when reviewed collectively with ourplanning and forecasting purposes. We believe that these non-GAAP operating

GAAP financial information, provide useful supplemental information to measures, when reviewed collectively with our GAAP financial information, provide useful NM - Not

investors in assessing our operating performance.

Anthrax MCM

supplemental information to investors in assessing our operating performance.

meaningful

Anthrax MCM sales increased $34.0 million $17.6 million, or 155% 83%, to $55.9 million $38.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The increase
reflects the impact of timing of sales related to CYFENDUSe and BioThraxe., partially offset by a decrease in Anthrasile sales, due to timing. Anthrax vaccine product sales are
primarily made under annual purchase options exercised by the USG. Fluctuations in revenues result from the timing of the exercise of annual purchase options, the timing of USG
purchases, the availability of governmental funding and Company the Company’s delivery of orders that follow.

Smallpox MCM

Smallpox MCM sales increased $43.0decreased $105.9 million, or 86%, to $50.2 million$17.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The
increase decrease was primarily due to higher VIGIV andtiming of USG purchases of ACAM2000e sales due to timing.and VIGIV. Fluctuations in revenues from Smallpox MCM

result from the timing of the exercise of annual purchase options in the existing procurement contracts, the timing of USG purchases, the availability of governmental funding and

Company delivery of orders that follow.

Other Products
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Other Products sales increased $41.2 decreased $12.6 million, or 65%, to $49.3 million $6.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The decrease
was due to lower BATe and RSDLe product sales, due to timing of deliveries.

Cost of MCM Product Sales and Gross Margin

Cost of MCM Product sales decreased $49.4 million, or 61%, to $31.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to lower sales of
ACAM2000e, BATe, RSDLe and Anthrasile, lower allocations to Cost of MCM Product sales at our Bayview facility and a reduction in Trobigarde related costs, due to the Belgium
FAMHP’s approval of the Company's request to revoke the Market Authorization for Trobigarde (the "Trobigarde revocation"). This decrease was partially offset by higher shutdown
costs, Raxibacumab inventory reserves and overhead allocations at our Winnipeg facility.

MCM Product gross margin decreased $51.5 million, or 61%, to $32.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. MCM Product gross margin percentage was consistent
at 51% for the three months ended June 30, 2024. MCM Products segment adjusted gross margin excludes the impacts of non-cash items related to restructuring costs of $2.7
million and the changes in the fair value of contingent consideration of $0.1 million.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Anthrax MCM

Anthrax MCM sales increased $51.6 million, or 120%, to $94.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was due to the impact of timing of sales related to
CYFENDUSe and BioThraxe, partially offset by a decrease in Anthrasile sales, due to timing. Anthrax vaccine product sales are primarily made under annual purchase options
exercised by the USG. Fluctuations in revenues result from the timing of the exercise of annual purchase options, the timing of USG purchases, the availability of governmental
funding and the Company’s delivery of orders that follow.

Smallpox MCM

Smallpox MCM sales decreased $62.9 million, or 48%, to $68.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was due to timing of USG purchases
ACAM2000e, partially offset by ACAM2000e sales to non-U.S. customers and higher VIGIV sales, due to timing. Fluctuations in revenues result from the timing of the exercise of
annual purchase options in existing procurement contracts, the timing of USG purchases, the availability of governmental funding and Company delivery of orders that follow.

Other Products

Other Products sales increased $28.6 million, or 104%, to $56.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to higher BAT and RSDLe
product sales due to timing. USG and non-U.S. customers.

Cost of MCM Product Sales and Gross Margin

Cost of MCM product Product sales increased $6.8 decreased $42.6 million, or 12% 31%, to $62.2 $93.3 million for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024.
The increase decrease was primarily due to higherlower sales of BAT ACAM2000e, VIGIV, BioThrax lower allocations to Cost of MCM Product sales at our Bayview facility, lower
shut down costs, a reduction in Trobigarde related costs, due to the Trobigarde revocation, partially offset by higher BATe and CYFENDUS BioThraxe, partially offset by a decrease
in shutdown costs. sales.

MCM Product gross margin increased $111.4 $59.9 million, or 91%, to $93.2 $125.5 million for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. MCM Product gross
margin percentage increased 109 24 percentage points to 60% 57% for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The increase in gross margin percentage was
primarily largely due to overall higher sales volumes with a favorable sales product mix which was weighted more heavily towardsto higher margin products coupled with lower
allocations to Cost of MCM Product sales at our Bayview facility and lower shutdown related costs, a decrease reduction in shutdown Trobigarde related costs, compared due to the
prior quarter. Trobigarde revocation, and realization of previously adjusted inventory values. MCM Product Products segment adjusted gross margin excludes the impacts of non-
cash items related torestructuring costs of $2.6 million and the changes in the fair value of contingent consideration of $0.5 million and restructuring costs of $(0.1) million. $0.6
million.

SERVICES SEGMENT

Services Segment Services Segment

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)
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% %
(dollars in millions) 2023 Change 2023 Change

Revenues Revenues $ 647 $ $ 29.1 122 122 % $83.2 $ $43.5 91 91 %

Revenues
Revenues
Cost of services
Cost of services

Cost of
Cost of services services $ 2116 $ $ 55.7 NM NM $ 2419 $ $ 1074 125 125 %

Gross margin (y Gross margin () $ (146.9) $ $ (26.6) NM NM $ (158.7) $ $ (639 (148 (148 %)

Gross margin (1
Gross margin (1
Gross margin % (1)
Gross margin % (1)
Gross margin % (1)
Add back:

Add back:

Add back:

Restructuring
costs

Restructuring
costs

Settlement
charge, net

Settlement
charge, net

Settlement
charge, net 110.2 — NM 110.2 — NM

Restructuring Restructuring

costs costs 04 — — NM NM 0.2 — — NM NM

Segment adjusted
gross margin ()
Segment adjusted
gross margin (2)

Segment adjusted
gross margin $ (36.3) $ $ (26.6) 36 36 % $ (48.3) $ $ (63.9) (24 (24 %)
Segment adjusted
gross margin % (2
Segment adjusted
gross margin % (2)
Segment adjusted
gross margin % (2)

@) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross
margin % is calculated as gross margin divided by revenues.

(1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin percentage is calculated as gross margin divided
by revenues.

1 Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross
margin % is calculated as gross margin divided by revenues.

(1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin percentage is calculated as gross margin divided
by revenues.

1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross
margin % is calculated as gross margin divided by revenues.
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2 Segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial
measure, is calculated as gross margin plus restructuring costs and non-
cash items related to changes in fair value of contingent consideration.
Segment adjusted gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP
financial measure, is calculated as segment adjusted gross margin
divided by revenues. The Company’'s management utilizes segment
adjusted gross margin and segment adjusted gross margin percentage
for purposes of evaluating our ongoing operations and for internal
planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that these non-GAAP
operating measures, when reviewed collectively with our GAAP financial
information, provide useful supplemental information to investors in
assessing our operating performance.

1) Gross margin is calculated as revenues less cost of sales. Gross margin percentage is calculated as gross margin divided
by revenues.

(2 Segment adjusted gross margin, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is calculated as gross margin plus restructuring

costs and non-cash items related to changes in fair value of contingent consideration, inventory step-up provision and

settlement charge, net. Segment adjusted gross margin percentage, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, is calculated

as segment adjusted gross margin divided by revenues. The Company’s management utilizes segment adjusted gross

margin and segment adjusted gross margin percentage for purposes of evaluating our ongoing operations and for internal

planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that these non-GAAP operating measures, when reviewed collectively with

our GAAP financial information, provide useful supplemental information to investors in assessing our operating

performance. NM - Not meaningful
Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 Compared with Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023

Services Revenues

Bioservices revenues increased $5.7 $38.1 million, or 45% 144%, to $18.3 $64.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The increase was driven
by primarily attributable to the $50.0 million arbitration settlement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (“Janssen”), one of the Janssen Pharmaceutical
Companies of Johnson & Johnson, related to the 2022 termination of the manufacturing services agreement with Janssen (the “Janssen Agreement”), coupled with an increase in
production at the Company's Company’'s Camden facility, facility. The increase was partially offset by decreases inlower production at the Company’s Company's Canton and
Winnipeg facilities.

facilities coupled with the prior year quarter recognition of revenue related to the resolution of a customer’s outstanding obligation.

Bioservices lease revenues decreased $1.6 $2.5 million, or 89% 93%, to $0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The decrease was related to the
completion of a lease for a Bioservices customer at our Canton facility.

Cost of Services and Gross Margin

Cost of services decreased $21.4increased $155.9 million or 41%, to $30.3$211.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The increase was
primarily due to the Settlement Agreement with Janssen and resulting write-down of related assets to net realizable value, partially offset by a decrease in production at the
Company's Canton facility and a decrease in overhead costs at our Maryland facilities.

Services gross margin decreased $120.3 million to $(146.9) million for the three months ended June 30, 2024. Services gross margin percentage decreased 136 percentage
points to (227)% for the three months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in overhead costs the Settlement Agreement with Janssen and resulting
revenue and write-down of related assets mentioned above, coupled with lower production at the Company’s Camden Company's Canton and Bayview Winnipeg facilities, coupled
with no production activities at the Company’s Canton facility. The decrease in costs at the Camden facility was partially offset by increases in production activity following the
remediation of matters related to the FDA's warning letter regarding the Camden facility, which was closed out in October 2023.

Services gross margin increased $25.5 million, or 68%, to $(11.8) million for the three months ended March 31, 2024. Services gross margin percentage increased 195
percentage points to (64)% for the three months ended March 31, 2024. The increase was primarily due to a reduction in overhead costs at the Company’s Camden and Bayview
facilities, coupled with an increase in production at ourthe Company’s Camden facility due to the remediation of matters related to the FDA's warning letter referenced above. and a
decrease in overhead costs at our Maryland facilities. Services segment adjusted gross margin excludes the impacts of the settlement charge, net of $110.2 million and restructuring
costs of $(0.2) million. $0.4 million.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Services revenues

Bioservices revenues increased $43.8 million, or 112%, to $82.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily attributable to the $50 million
arbitration settlement with Janssen related to the Settlement Agreement, coupled with increased production at our Camden facility. The increase was partially offset by reduced
production activities at the Company's Canton and Winnipeg facilities.
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Bioservices lease revenues decreased $4.1 million, or 91%, to $0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was related to the completion of a lease for a
Bioservices customer at our Canton facility.

Cost of Services and Gross Margin

Cost of Services increased $134.5 million, or 125%, to $241.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The increase was primarily due to the Settlement Agreement with
Janssen and resulting write-down of related assets to net realizable value, coupled with higher production activities at the Company’'s Camden facility, partially offset by higher
allocations to Cost of MCM Product sales and lower costs associated with production activities at the Company’s Canton facility.

Services gross margin decreased $94.8 million, or 148%, to $(158.7) million for the six months ended June 30, 2024. Services gross margin percentage decreased 44
percentage points to (191)% for the six months ended June 30, 2024. The decrease was primarily due to the Settlement Agreement with Janssen and resulting revenue and write-
down of related assets mentioned above, coupled with lower production at the Company's Canton and Winnipeg facilities, partially offset by an increase in production at the
Company’s Camden facility and a decrease in overhead costs at our Maryland facilities. Services segment adjusted gross margin excludes the impacts of the settlement charge, net
of $110.2 million and restructuring costs of $0.2 million.

OTHER REVENUE

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 Compared with Three Months Ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023
Contracts and Grants
Contracts and grants revenue was consistent at $6.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 Compared with Six Months Ended June 30, 2023

Contracts and Grants

Contracts and grants revenue increased $1.5 million, or 23%11%, to $8.0$14.6 million for the threesix months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The increase was
due related to development work in connection with under the Ebangarw, program, partially offset by the close out wind-down of our other funded development initiatives.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our financial condition is summarized as follows:

(dollars in millions)

(dollars in millions)

Change Change
% %

(dollars in millions)

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 785 $ $111.7 (30) (30) % $ 69.7 $ $111.7 (38) (38) %
Borrowings:
Borrowings:
Borrowings:
Debt, current portion

Debt, current portion

Debt, current portion $459.2 $ $413.7 11 11 %$ 415.2 $ $413.7 — — %
Debt, net of current Debt, net of current Debt, net of current
portion portion 446.7 4465 4465 — — % portion 447.0 446.5 446.5 — — %
e | Total I | I |
Total borrowings Total borrowings $905.9 $ $860.2 5 5 % borrowings $ 8622 $ $860.2 — — %

Working capital:

Working capital:

Working capital:
Current assets
Current assets

Current assets $682.4 $ $679.5 — — %$ 654.5 $ $679.5 (4) 4) %
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Current liabilities Current liabilities 630.2 651.3 651.3 ) )% Current liabilities 619.7 651.3 651.3 (5) 5)%

Total working Total working Total working
capital capital $ 522 $ $ 282 85 85 % capital $ 348 $ $ 28.2 23 23 %
Principal Sources of Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operating and capital expenditures through existing cash and cash equivalents, cash from operations, development contracts and grant
funding and borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility, our Term Loan Facility, and other lines of credit we have established from time to time. We also obtain financing from the
sale of our common stock upon exercise of stock options and participation in an at-the-market equity offering program that we entered into on May 17, 2023 (the "ATM Program").,
which we are currently ineligible to use. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $78.5$69.7 million and remaining capacity under our
Revolving Credit Facility of $0.3 $41.8 million.

Going_Concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis of accounting, which assumes the Company will continue to operate as a going concern
and which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business.

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, there was $264.2$222.7 million outstanding on the Company's senior revolving credit facility (“Revolving Credit Facility”) and
$194.2 $190.3 million on the senior term loan facility (“Term Loan Facility” and together with the Revolving Credit Facility, the “Senior Secured Credit Facilities”) that mature in May
2025 and the Senior Credit Facilities were are subject to a forbearance agreementthe Forbearance Agreement and Amendment as described below, with respect to the Company’s
noncompliance with certain operational and financial covenants. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company had $78.5$69.7 million in cash and cash equivalents. As a
result of these factors, the Company determined that there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. The evaluation considered the potential mitigating effects of management’s plans that have not been fully implemented. Management has evaluated
the mitigating effects of its plans to determine if it is probable that (1) the plans will be effectively implemented within one year after the date the financial statements are issued, and
(2) when implemented, the plans will mitigate the relevant conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management's
plans include (A) further amending the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, and (B) improving operating performance, reducing working capital and the potential of the sale of assets to
pay down the Senior Secured Credit Facilities before they become due. As neither plan is in the complete control of management, neither is probable of occurring. In this regard,
management may not be able to further amend the Senior Secured Credit Facilities or find a buyer for the assets it is willing to divest and may not be able to close on any asset sale
for which management is able to reach an agreement with a buyer. As a result, the Company may be unable to meet its obligations as they become due. In addition, any asset sales
that are completed could have potential negative impacts on the Company's future operating cash flows and profitability.

Debt Covenants

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities mature in May 2025, and provide for (1) revolving credit commitments, (2) a term loan, and (3) the issuance of commercial letters of credit.
As of March 31, 2024, the Company had $458.4 million outstanding under the Senior

Secured Credit Facilities. As of March 31, 2024, the Company was not in compliance with the minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities
and did not expect to satisfy a covenant requiring it to raise not less

than $75.0 million through issuance of equity and/or unsecured indebtedness by April 30, 2024. In addition, the Company was required to deliver audited annual financial statements
without a “going concern” explanatory paragraph with respect to its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, which was not achieved. However, on February 29,
2024, the requisite lenders agreed to enter into athe Forbearance Agreement and Sixth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Forbearance Agreement and
Amendment”) with the Company, which included a limited waiver of certain events of default, including those that resulted from (a) any violation of the financial covenants set forth in
the Senior Secured Credit Facilities with respect to the fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2023 and the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2024 and (b) the going concern explanatory
paragraph contained in the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. This forbearance period (the “Forbearance Period”) expired on April 30, 2024.

On April 29, 2024, the requisite lenders agreed to enter into a Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Seventh
Amendment”) with the Company. The Seventh Amendment, among other things: (a) reduces available commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility to $270.0$240.0 million
through July 30, 2024, to $225.0$210.0 million from July 31, 2024 through September 29, 2024, to $205.0 million from September 30, 2024 through October 30, 2024, to
$180.0 million from October 31, 2024 through November 29, 2024, and to $200.0$170.0 million on October 31, 2024 from November 30, 2024 and thereafter; thereafter (in each
case subject to potential limited additional borrowings from a specified reserve with the consent of the lenders); (b) amends the interest rate benchmark in the definition of Applicable
Margin from (i) 5.00% per annum to 7.00% per annum with respect to Base Rate Loans and (ii) 6.50% per annum to 8.50% per annum with respect to SOFR Loans, RFR Loans and
Eurocurrency Rate Loans; and (c) requires the Company to raise equity or unsecured indebtedness of at least $85.0 million by July 31, 2024 (or such later date on or before
September 29, 2024 as agreed to by the Administrative Agent), provided that such requirement will be reduced by the aggregate net cash proceeds received from certain
dispositions that are applied to reduce amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility. The Company expects to apply the proceeds from the Camden Transaction and the
RSDLe Transaction to reduce borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility in order to satisfy the capital raise requirement, the deadline for which was recently extended to
September 29, 2024. There is no guarantee the Company will be able to meet the capital raise requirement by the stated this deadline.

In addition, pursuant to the Seventh Amendment, the Company is obligated to apply 100% of the aggregate net cash proceeds received from certain dispositions to the
prepayment of amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility, except where such proceeds exceed $85,000,000, in which case such mandatory prepayment of the
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Revolving Credit Facility will no longer be required. Mandatory prepayment of the Term Loan Facility will not be required unless and until the aggregate net proceeds from such
dispositions exceed $85,000,000, at which point 100% of such proceeds must be used toward repayment of amounts outstanding under the Term Loan Facility.

Under the Seventh Amendment, the Company is also subject to (a) a monthly minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant through May 15, 2025 and a monthly maximum capital
expenditures covenant through March 31, 2025, (b) a minimum liquidity requirement, and (c) additional financial statement reporting and business plan forecast obligations. In
connection with the entry into the Seventh Amendment, the Company paid an amendment fee of an aggregate amount equal to 0.5% of the total credit exposure as of the Seventh
Amendment effective date and will be required to pay an additional amendment fee of 1.0% of total credit exposure at December 1, 2024 and each month thereafter. The Senior
Secured Credit Facilities and the Company’s other debt facilities are described in more detail below in Note 9, 10, “Debt.” As of the date of these financial statements, the Company
is in compliance with the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facilities.

If we default under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, the lenders would have the right to accelerate the repayment of borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities,
which would result in a cross-default of the Company’s obligations under the 3.875% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2028 (the “Senior Unsecured Notes”). If the Company would
be were unable to obtain additional waivers or forbearance of such covenants or defaults, to successfully renegotiate the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, or to cure the
potential covenant breach or default, and the lenders enforced one or more of their rights upon default and/or the default resulted in a cross-default under the Senior Unsecured
Notes, the Company would be unable to meet its obligations under those agreements and would likely be forced into insolvency proceedings.

Based on the facts and circumstances described above, there can be no assurance that the Company would be able to comply with its debt covenants in the future. As a result,
the Company continues to evaluate a number of factors related to its ability to continue as a going concern, including its ability to comply with the terms and operating and financial
covenants required by the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, its ability to satisfy the capital raise requirement required by the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, other market conditions,
economic conditions, particularly in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry, and disruptions or volatility caused by factors such as regional conflicts, inflation, and supply
chain disruptions. The Company has engaged legal and financial advisors to assist with a comprehensive review of alternatives to enhance its capital structure, which may include
taking steps to cure any potential defaults or seeking forbearance, waivers, further cost reductions, asset sales, restructurings or other alternatives to avoid an event of default.

At-the-Market Equity Offering_Facility

The Company may, from time to time, sell up to $150.0 million aggregate gross sales price of shares of its common stock through Evercore Group L.L.C. and RBC Capital
Markets, LLC, as sales agents, under the ATM Program that we entered into on May 17,

2023.May 17, 2023. There were no sales of the Company’'s common stock under the ATM Program during the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. AsThe
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 expires on August 9, 2024 and the Company is not eligible to file a result of new Registration Statement on Form S-3 until 2025 due
to the delayed filing of certain of the Company’s periodic reports with Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the SEC in 2023, the period ended September 30, 2023. The Company
iswill not currently be eligible to sell any shares under the ATM Program until a new Registration Statement is filed and becomes effective. During the Company have timely filed
certain periodic reports required under the Securities Exchange Actsecond quarter of 1934 for 12 consecutive months. Between the entry into the ATM Program and March 31,
2024,2023, we sold 1.1 million 1.1 million shares of the Company’s our common stock under the ATM Program for gross proceeds of $9.1 million, representing an average price of
$8.22 per share. As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, $140.9 million aggregate gross sales price of shares of the Company’s common stock remains available for issuance under
the ATM Program. The Company intends to use proceeds obtained from the sale of shares under the ATM Program for general corporate purposes.

Cash Flows

The following table provides information regarding our cash flows for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and 2023:

(in millions) M m

Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities
Operating activities
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Operating Activities:

Net cash used in operating activities for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 decreased $121.4 $283.3 million as compared with the three six months
ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. The decrease in net cash used in operating activities was primarily due to an increase in revenues during the period, partially offset by
negative positive working capital changes of $97.5 $287.3 million, driven primarily by changes in prepaid and other assets related to the write down to net realizable values of the
assets classified within “Other long term assets” related to the Janssen Agreement and Settlement Agreement, and higher cash collection not keeping pace with the increase in
revenues and a decrease in accrued compensation balances. collections on accounts receivable.
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Investing Activities:

Net cash used in investing activities for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 decreased $4.3 June 30, 2024 increased $258.0 million as compared with the three six
months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. The decrease increase in net cash used in investing activities was attributable due to $270.2 million in proceeds from the sale of our
travel health business in 2023, partially offset by a $4.3 million reduction in purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Financing Activities:

Net cash provided by used in financing activities for the three six months ended March 31, 2024 increased $51.2 June 30, 2024 decreased $487.2 million as compared with the
three six months ended March 31, 2023 June 30, 2023. The increase decrease in net cash provided by used in financing activities was primarily due to a reduction of principal
payments of $286.3 million on our Revolving Credit Facility and $148.9 million on our Term Loan Facility, partially offset by an increase in proceeds of $50.0 $65.0 million under our
Revolving Credit Facility a reductionin the current period and proceeds of $4.5$8.2 million from the sale of stock under the ATM Program in principal payments on our Term Loan
Facility and a $1.7 million reduction in taxes paid for share-based comp activity, partially offset by increased principal payments of $5.0 million on our Revolving Credit Facility. the
prior period.

Debt

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, the Company has $909.2 $863.8 million of fixed and variable rate debt with varying maturities. See Note 9,10, “Debt” in the Notes to
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1, of this Form 10-Q for further discussion.

Uncertainties and Trends Affecting Funding Requirements

We expect to continue to fund our short-term and long-term anticipated operating expenses, capital expenditures and debt service requirements from the following sources:

* existing cash and cash equivalents;
¢ net proceeds from the sale of our products and Bioservices;
* development contracts and grant funding;

* proceeds from the sale of our common stock through the ATM Program;

* proceeds from potential asset sales; and

e our Senior Secured Credit Facilities and any replacement or other lines of credit we may establish from time to time.

There are numerous risks and uncertainties associated with product sales and with the development and commercialization of our product candidates. We may seek additional
external financing to provide additional financial flexibility. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including (but not limited to):

¢ the level, timing and cost of product sales and Bioservices;

* the extent to which we acquire or invest in and integrate companies, businesses, products or technologies;

* the acquisition of new facilities and capital improvements to new or existing facilities;

* the payment obligations under our indebtedness;

* the scope, progress, results and costs of our development activities;

e our ability to obtain funding from collaborative partners, government entities and non-governmental organizations for our development programs; and

* the costs of commercialization activities, including product marketing, sales and distribution.

If our capital resources are insufficient to meet our future capital requirements, we will need to finance our cash needs through public or private equity or debt offerings, bank
loans, collaboration and licensing arrangements, cost reductions, assets sales or a combination of these options.

If we raise funds by issuing equity securities, including through the ATM Program, our stockholders may experience dilution. Public or bank debt financing, if available, may
involve agreements that include covenants, like those contained in our Senior Unsecured Notes and the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, which could limit or restrict our ability to
take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures, pursuing acquisition opportunities, buying back shares or declaring dividends. If we raise funds
through collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it may be necessary to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies or product candidates or grant licenses on
terms that may not be favorable to us.

Economic conditions, including market volatility and adverse impacts on financial markets, may make it more difficult to obtain financing on attractive terms, or at all. Any new
debt funding, if available, may be on terms less favorable to us than our Senior Secured Credit Facilities or the Senior Unsecured Notes. If financing is unavailable or lost, our
business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows would be adversely affected, and we could be forced to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate many of our planned
activities.
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Unused Credit Capacity

Available room under the Revolving Credit Facility as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 was:

(in millions) December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023

Total Capacity
Less:
Outstanding Letters of Credit
Outstanding Letters of Credit
Outstanding Letters of Credit
Outstanding Indebtedness
Unused Capacity
@ As of June 30, 2024, excludes $30.0 million subject to consent of the lenders.
@ As of June 30, 2024, excludes $30.0 million subject to consent of the lenders.

@ As of June 30, 2024, excludes $30.0 million subject to consent of the lenders.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of additional risks arising from our operations, see the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, under the heading
“Item 1A. Risk Factors” in addition to updates contained in “ltem 1A-Risk Factors” of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Market risk

We have interest rate and foreign currency market risk. Because of the short-term maturities of our cash and cash equivalents, we believe that an increase in market rates
would likely not have a significant impact on the realized value of our investments.

Interest rate risk

We have debt with a mix of fixed and variable rates of interest and we are satisfied with the current fix-float mix of the Company's debt portfolio. Floating rate debt carries
interest based generally on the eurocurrency rate, as defined in our Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, as amended from time to time, plus an applicable margin. Increases
in interest rates could result in an increase in interest payments for our floating rate debt. See Note 9,10, "Debt" in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, Item 1.
of this Form 10-Q.

From time to time, we may use derivative instruments to manage our interest rate risk and market risk exposure.

We have assessed our exposure to changes in interest rates by analyzing the sensitivity to our operating results assuming various changes in market interest rates. A
hypothetical increase of one percentage point in the eurocurrency rate as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 would increase our interest expense by approximately $4.1 million
annually.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

We have exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations worldwide and primarily with respect to the Euro, Canadian dollar, Swiss franc and British pound. We manage
our foreign currency exchange rate risk primarily by either entering into foreign currency hedging transactions or incurring operating expenses in the local currency in the countries in
which we operate, to the extent practical. We currently do not hedge all of our foreign currency exchange exposure and the movement of foreign currency exchange rates could
have an adverse or positive impact on our results of operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of
March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The term "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
"Exchange Act"), means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company's management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on
the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of such date,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act that occurred during the three
months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
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ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 15, 16, “Litigation” in Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 contains disclosure regarding the risks and uncertainties related to the Company’s
business under the heading Item 1A. Risk Factors. There have been no material changes to the Company’s risk factors as presented in the Company’s 2023 Form 10-K, except as
described below:

We have incurred significant indebtedness in connection with our acquisitions and servicing our debt requires a significant amount of cash. We may not have sufficient cash flow
from our operations to pay our substantial debt.

Our ability to make scheduled payments of the principal of, to pay interest on or to further refinance, our indebtedness depends on our future performance, which is subject to
economic, financial, competitive and other factors beyond our control. We may also seek additional debt financing to support our ongoing activities or to provide additional financial
flexibility. Debt financing can have significant adverse consequences for our business, including:

* requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to payment on our debt, which would reduce available funds for other corporate initiatives;

¢ increasing the amount of interest that we have to pay on debt with variable interest rates, if market rates of interest increase, to the extent we are unable to offset such risk
through our hedging instruments;

¢ subjecting us, as under our Senior Secured Credit Facilities and the indenture governing the Senior Unsecured Notes, to restrictive covenants that reduce our ability to take
certain corporate actions, acquire companies, products or technology, or obtain further debt financing;

* requiring us to pledge our assets as collateral, which could limit our ability to obtain additional debt financing;

* limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, general adverse economic and industry conditions; and

* placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt, better debt servicing options or stronger debt servicing capacity.

We may not have sufficient funds or be able to obtain additional financing to pay the amounts due under our indebtedness. In addition, failure to comply with the covenants
under our Senior Secured Credit Facilities and other debt agreements, including the maintenance of a specified consolidated net leverage ratio, debt service coverage ratio,
consolidated EBITDA level, minimum liquidity level, maximum capital expenditure level and required liquidity raise under our Senior Secured Credit Facilities, the additional terms
and conditions imposed by the Seventh Amendment could result in an event of default under those agreements. An event of default could result in the acceleration of amounts due
under a particular debt agreement and a cross-default and acceleration under other debt agreements, and we may not have sufficient funds to pay or be able to obtain additional
financing to make any accelerated payments.

Our current indebtedness restricts and any additional debt financing may restrict the operation of our business and limit the cash available for investment in our business
operations.

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities include the Term Loan Facility, which had an outstanding principal balance of $194.2 million $190.3 million as of March 31, 2024 June 30,
2024, and the ability to borrow up to $270.0 million $240.0 million under our Revolving Credit Facility, which excludes $30.0 million subject to consent of the lenders, under which we
had $264.2 million $222.7 million of outstanding borrowings as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024. The available commitments under our Revolving Credit Facility will
decrease decreased to $225.0 million on July 31, 2024, and will decrease to $200.0 million on October 31, 2024. In addition, on August 7, 2020, we completed an offering of
$450.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Unsecured Notes. We may also seek additional debt financing to support our ongoing activities or to provide additional financial
flexibility. Debt financing can have significant adverse consequences for our business, including:

¢ the level, timing and cost of product sales and bioservices;

* the extent to which we acquire or invest in and integrate companies, businesses, products or technologies;

* the acquisition of new facilities and capital improvements to new or existing facilities;

* the payment obligations under our indebtedness;

* the scope, progress, results and costs of our development activities;

* our ability to obtain funding from collaborative partners, government entities and non-governmental organizations for our development programs;
¢ the extent to which we repurchase common stock under any future share repurchase program; and

* the costs of commercialization activities, including product marketing, sales and distribution.

In addition, our Senior Secured Credit Facilities and our Senior Unsecured Notes each contain cross-default provisions whereby a default under one agreement would likely
result in cross defaults under agreements covering other indebtedness. For example, if we default under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, the lenders would have the right to
accelerate the repayment of borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, which would result in a cross-default and acceleration of the Company’s obligations under the
Senior Unsecured Notes. The occurrence of a default under any of these arrangements would permit the holders of the notes or the lenders under our Senior Secured Credit
Facilities to declare all amounts outstanding under those borrowing arrangements to be immediately due and payable, and there is no assurance that we would have sufficient funds
to satisfy any such accelerated obligations.

We require significant additional funding to be able to continue as a going concern and we may be unable to raise capital when needed or on acceptable terms, which would
harm our ability to grow our business, and our results of operations and financial condition. In addition, any capital we raise may result in dilution to our current stockholders.

As of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $78.5 million $69.7 million and remaining capacity under our Revolving Credit Facility of
$0.3 million $41.8 million. Also as of March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, there was $264.2 million $222.7 million outstanding on our Revolving Credit Facility and $194.2 million $190.3
million on our Term Loan Facility that mature in May 2025. As of March 31, 2024, we were not in compliance with the minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant under the The Senior
Secured Credit Facilities are subject to the Forbearance Agreement and did not expect to satisfy a covenant requiring us to raise not less than $75.0 million through the issuance of
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equity and/or unsecured indebtedness by April 30, 2024. In addition, we were required to deliver audited annual financial statements without a “going concern” explanatory
paragraph Amendment with respect to ourthe Company’s noncompliance with certain operational and financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, which was not
achieved. covenants. As a result of these factors, the Company determined that there is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one
year after the date that the financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q were are issued.

On April 29, 2024, the requisite lenders agreed to enter into the Seventh Amendment with the Company. The Seventh Amendment, among other things: (a) reduces available
commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility from $270.0to $240.0 million through July 30, 2024, to $225.0$210.0 million from July 31, 2024 through September 29, 2024, to
$205.0 million from September 30, 2024 through October 30, 2024, to $180.0 million from October 31, 2024 through November 29, 2024, and to $200.0$170.0 million on October
31, 2024 from November 30, 2024 and thereafter; thereafter (in each case subject to potential limited additional borrowings from a specified reserve with the consent of the lenders);
(b) amends the interest rate benchmark in the definition of Applicable Margin from (i) 5.00% per annum to 7.00% per annum with respect to Base Rate Loans and (ii) 6.50% per
annum to 8.50% per annum with respect to SOFR Loans, RFR Loans and Eurocurrency Rate Loans; and (c) in lieu of the $75.0 million capital raise referenced above, requires the
Company to raise equity or unsecured indebtedness of at least $85.0 million by July 31, 2024 (or such later date on or before September 29, 2024 as agreed to by the
Administrative Agent), provided that such requirement will be reduced by the aggregate net cash proceeds received from certain dispositions that are applied to reduce amounts
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility. Under the Seventh Amendment, the Company is also subject to (a) a monthly minimum consolidated EBITDA covenant through May
15, 2025 and a monthly maximum capital expenditures covenant through March 31, 2025, (b) a minimum liquidity requirement and (c) additional financial statement reporting and
business plan forecast obligations.

The Company may be unable to comply with debt covenants in future periods without additional sources of liquidity or future amendments to or forbearance arrangements under
the Credit Agreement. We will need to obtain substantial additional funding in connection with our continuing operations, which cannot be assured.

If our capital resources are insufficient to meet our future capital requirements, we will need to finance our cash needs through public or private equity or debt offerings, bank
loans or collaboration and licensing arrangements. In August 2021, we filed a shelf registration statement, which immediately became effective under SEC rules. As a result of the
delayed filing of certain of our periodic reports with the SEC, Our Registration Statement on Form S-3 expires on August 9, 2024 and we are not currently eligible ineligible to register
the offer and sale of our securities using the shelf registration statement or sell any shares under the ATM Program, and we will not become eligiblefile a new Registration
Statement on Form S-3 until we have timely filed certain periodic reports required under the Exchange Act for 12 consecutive calendar months. 2025. There can be no assurance
that we will be become eligible to file a shelf registration statement or to have such a shelf registration statement become effective after such period, which may inhibit our ability to
access the capital markets to raise funds.

If we raise funds by issuing equity securities, including through our ATM Program, our stockholders may experience dilution. Debt financing, if available, may involve
agreements that include covenants, like those contained in our Senior Secured Credit Facilities and the indenture governing the Senior Unsecured Notes, limiting or restricting our
ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures, pursuing acquisition opportunities or declaring dividends. If we raise funds through
collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it may be necessary to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies or product candidates or grant licenses on terms
that may not be favorable to us. Our Senior Secured Credit Facilities as well as the indenture governing the Senior Unsecured Notes restrict our ability to incur additional
indebtedness.

Economic conditions may make it difficult to obtain financing on attractive terms, or at all. If financing is unavailable or lost, our business, operating results, financial condition
and cash flows would be adversely affected, and we could be forced to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate many of our planned activities.

We may not realize the expected benefits of the sale of our travel health business to Bavarian Nordic, the sale of RSDLe to SERB, and the pending sale of our drug product
facility in Baltimore-Camden to Bora.

On May 15, 2023, pursuant to the Purchase and Sale Agreement, we completed the previously announced sale to Bavarian Nordic of our travel health business, including rights
to Vaxchorae and Vivotife, as well as our development-stage chikungunya vaccine candidate CHIKV VLP, our manufacturing site in Bern, Switzerland and certain of our
development facilities in San Diego, California for a cash purchase price of $270.2 million, subject to certain customary adjustments. In addition, we may receive milestone
payments of up to $80.0 million related to the development of CHIKV VLP and receipt of marketing approval and authorization in the U.S. and Europe, and sales-based milestone
payments of up to $30.0 million based on aggregate net sales of Vaxchora® and Vivotife in calendar year 2026.

On June 20, 2024, Cangene bioPharma LLC (“Cangene”), a subsidiary of the Company (together with Cangene, the “Seller”), entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with
Bora, under which the Seller will sell its drug product facility in Baltimore-Camden for a total value of approximately $30 million. Approximately 350 of the Seller's employees are
expected to join Bora as part of the transaction.

On July 31, 2024, the Company entered into a Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement with SERB Pharmaceuticals, through its wholly owned subsidiary BTG International Inc.
(collectively, “SERB”), pursuant to which, among other things, the Company sold its worldwide rights to RSDLe, to SERB (the “RSDLe Transaction”) for a cash purchase price of $75
million, which was paid at closing and will be subject to customary adjustments based on inventory value at closing. In addition, SERB will pay the Company a $5 million payment
upon achievement of a milestone relating to sourcing of a certain component of RSDLe decontamination lotion. The Transaction also included the sale to SERB of all the
outstanding capital stock of Emergent Protective Products USA Inc. (“EPPU”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which leases a manufacturing facility in Hattiesburg,
Mississippi, as well as certain assets related to RSDLe, including intellectual property rights, contract rights, inventory and marketing authorizations. In addition, the employees of
EPPU are expected to join SERB in connection with the RSDLe Transaction.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to realize in full the expected benefits of these transactions. If we are unable to or do not realize the expected strategic,
economic, or other benefits of these transactions, it could adversely affect our business and financial position.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES, USE OF PROCEEDS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Recent sales of unregistered securities

Not applicable.
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Use of proceeds
Not applicable.
Purchases of equity securities
Not applicable.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
Not applicable.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

During the three months ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, none of the Company's directors or Section 16 reporting officers adopted or terminated any Rule 10b5-1 trading
arrangement or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement (as such terms are defined in ltem 408 of Regulation S-K).

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits hereto.

Exhibit Index

Exhibit

Number Description

10.1# Seventh Amendment to the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated April 29, 2024, among_Emergent BioSolutions Inc., the guarantors party thereof,
the lenders party thereof, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent.

10.2 # Award/Contract, effective January 9, 2024 (BioThrax IDIQ_Contract), from the United States Department of Defense to Emergent Biodefense Operations Lansing
LLC.

10.3 # Delivery Order 1, effective January 22, 2024 to the BioThrax IDIQ Contract.

10.4 #10.11 Modification No. 1,11, effective February 13, 2024 April 29, 2024, to the BioThrax IDIQ Contract. ACAM2000 Contract (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on May 1, 2024).

10.5#10.2t Modification No. 2,12 effective March 21, 2024 June 28, 2024, to the BioThrax IDIQ Contract. ACAM2000 Contract (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 2, 2024).

10.31 Modification No. 17 effective June 26, 2024, to the BARDA AV7909 Contract (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed on July 2, 2024).

10.4* Form of Amendment to Letter Agreement, dated April 23, 2024 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
April 26, 2024).

10.5* Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-
K, filed on May 29, 2024).

311# Certification of the Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a).

312# Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a).

32.1# Cetrtification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2# Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101 # The following financial information related to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024, formatted in

iXBRL (Inline Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Operations, (iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), Loss, (iv) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,
(v) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity; and (vi) the related Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

104 # Cover Page Interactive Data File, formatted in iXBRL and contained in Exhibit 101.
# Filed herewith.
T Certain confidential portions of this exhibit were omitted by means of marking such portions with asterisks because of the identified confidential portions (i) are

not material and (i) are items the Company customarily and actually treats such information as private or confidential.

[ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001367644/000136764424000053/kerpamendment2024.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001367644/000136764424000093/sipfollowing2024am.htm

EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS INC.

By: /s/JJOSEPH C. PAPA

Joseph C. Papa

President. Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: May 1, 2024 August 6, 2024

By: /s/RICHARD S. LINDAHL

Richard S. Lindahl

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: May 1, 2024 August 6, 2024
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[EXECUTION VERSION CONSENT, WAIVER AND SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT CONSENT, WAIVER AND SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT]

Agreement, dated as of October 15, 2018 (as amended by the First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated
edit Agreement dated as of August 7, 2020, as further amended by the Con: imi i ir
ent to Amended and Restated

Li

U n onsent, Limited Waiver, Third Amendment to Amended and Re:
ment, Waiver and First Amendment to Amended and Restated Collateral Agreement dated
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2 187986513 7 WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders part have agreed, to (i) waive the Events of

[~ slide3
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187986513 7 provided that the aggregate amount of transaction expenses in connection with the [**] and the [**] shall not exceed in the aggregate [**]. SECTION 5. Conditions of Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment, thej
such date, the “Amendment Effective Date”) when the followini

lamendments set forth in Sections 1 and 2 above, the waiver set forth in Section 3 above, and the consent set forth in Section 4 above shall become effective on the date
to the Administrative Agent: (i) this Amendment, duly executed by a]

conditions shall have been satisfied or waived: (a) The Administrative Agent shall have received the following, each in form and substance reasonably satisfactof

62/408
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Responsible Officer of each of the Credit Parties, the Administrative Agent and Consenting Lenders constituting Super Majority Required Lenders; (ii) a certificate from a Responsible Officer of the Borrower to the effect that: (A) the]
representations and warranties of each Credit Party set forth in the Credit Agreement and in each other Loan Document to which it is a party are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Amendment Effective Date with thej
lsame effect as though made on and as of such date, except to the extent such re| resentations and warramies exress\ relate to an earlier date, in which case the shall be true and correct in all material respects as of such earlier dale;

below) and (ii) reasonable fees, charges and disbursements of the Administrative A ent, McGuireWoods LLP, counsel for the Administrative Agent, Goodmans LLP)
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4 187986513 7 Canadlan counsel for the Administrative A ent and of RPA Adwsors LLC flnanmal adwsor enaed on behalf of the Admmlstrauve A ent SECTION 6. Sa\e Covenants. The Borrower hereb covenants and agrees: (a

Existing Collateral Agreement Schedules. Within five (5) days after the Amendment Effective Date (or such later date as the Administrative Agent may agree to in its reasonable discretion), the Credit Parties shall deliver to the]
JAdministrative Agent updated Schedules 3.8 and 3.12 to the Existing Collateral Agreement and, upon receipt by the Administrative Agent, each such schedule shall be deemed amended and restated in its entirety as of the Amendment]

Effective Date and each such schedule shall set forth the information required therein as of the Amendment Effective Date.|
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foregoing covenant, Borrower and other Credit Parties, each for itself and its successors, assigns and legal representatives, agrees to pa
ttorneys’ fees and costs incurred by any Releasee as a result of such violation. (c) Each

Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreement and the Loan Documents. Except as expressly provided herein, the Existin:
Amendment shall not be deemed (a) to be a waiver of, or consent to, or a modification or amendment of, any other term or condition of the Existin

, in addition to such other damages as an Releasee may sustain as a result of such violation, all
arty’s obligations under this Section shall survive the termination of the Loan Documents and payment of the obligations thereunder. SECTION 12 ]
g Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect. Thi:
Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document other than as expressly set forth herein |
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b) to prejudice any right or rights which the Administrative Agent or the Lenders may now have or may have in the future under or in connection with the Existing Credit Agreement or the other Loan Documents or any of the instruments ol

lagreements referred to therein, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented or modified from time to time, or (c) to be a commitment or any other undertaking or expression of any willi i further discussion|
with the Borrower, any of its Subsidiaries or any other Person with respect to any other waiver, amendment, modification or any other change to the Existing Credit Agreement or the Loan|
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Assigns. This Amendment shaII be binding on and inure to the benefit of the arties hereto and their successors and permitted assigns. [The remainder of this page is intentionall Ieﬁ blank.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their duly authorized officers to execute and deliver this Amendment as of the date first above written. EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS ., as Borrower By: Name: Richard S. Lindahl
itle: Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer ::Nrn-~RMm =ror Name: Richard S. Lindahl Tltle Treasurer EMERGENT BIODEFENSE OPERATIONS LANSING :~c-w~ till Name: Richard S Lindahl Tltle Treasure

Treasurer Emergent BmSolutlons Inc. Consent Waiver and Sevemh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page|
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.~Rm RNDJT me., M G=m< Name: Richard S. Lindahl Title: Treasurer Name: Richard S. Lindahl Title: Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer EMERGENT DEVICES INC. (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ::Awz-)rn:r Name: Richard S. Lindahl
itle: Treasurer EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS CAN DA INC., as Guarantor By ;,L\ s « N~iiie: Richard S. Lindahl Title: Treasurer Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credif

[Agreement Signature Page]
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orized Signatory]

aiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page 187986513 Royal Bank of Canada, as a Lender By: Name: Juliet K. M. Eck Title:

[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent,
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[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page 187986513 BMO Bank National Association , as a Lender By: Name: Drew Feller Title: Vice President]
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[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page 187986513 Internal Use REGIONS BANK, as Lender By: Name: Title: Daniel Johnson Vice President}
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itle: Dania Hinedi Senior Vice]

President Bret Douglas Senior Vice President
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IManagement, LLC By: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead|
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[Management, LLC By: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead
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[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page 187986513 Confidential (C) Nuveen Multi-Asset Income Fund, as a Lender By: Symphony Alternative]

Asset Management LLC - Series 1 - Management Series, as collateral manager By: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead
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[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page 187986513 Confidential (C) Nuveen Senior Loan Fund,

: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead
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Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature P 187986513 Confidential (C) PENSIONDANMARK PENSIONSFORSIKRINGSAKTIESELSKAB, as

Lender By: Nuveen Asset Management, LLC By: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead
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Amended and Rest:
IManagement, LLC By: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead|
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Management LLC By: Name: Patrice Pippins-Boardraye Title: Lead|
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Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Signature Page Future Fund Board of Guardians, as a Lender By: Oak Hill Advisors, L.P,, as Investment Manager By]

Name Gregory S. Rubin Title: Authorized Signatory Indiana Publlc Retirement System, as a Lender By: Oak HlllAdwsors L.P., as Investment Mana erB Name Gregory S. Rubin Title: Authorized Signatory OHA Centre Streef]

LLP, its ceneral artner By: OHA Global BE GenPar LLC, its managing partner By: Name: Gregory S. Rubin Title: Authorized Sig nator
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187986513 STRATEGIC VALUE SPECI.
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[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Annex A 187986513 7 ANNEX A To Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credif

[Agreement [see attached
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IANNEX A TO CONSENT, WAIVER AND SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT 168204187 7188290905 7 Published CUSIP Number: 29100YAFO Revolving Credit CUSIP Number:|
29100YAG8 Term Loan CUSIP Number: 29100YAH6 AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT dated as of October 15, 2018, (as amended by (i) First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June]

27, 2019 and (ii) Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 7, 2020, (iii) Consent, Limited Waiver and Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 14
2023, (iv) Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 15, 2023, (v) Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of July 14, 2023, and (vi) Forbearance Agreement and|
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Lenders 6364 SECTIO|

168204187 7188290905 7 SECTION 3.6 Obligations Absolute 6162 SECTION 3.7 Effect of Letter of Credit Documents 6364 SECTION 3.8 Resignation of Issuin:

3.9 Reporting of Letter of Credit Information and L/C Commitment 6364 SECTION 3.10 Letters of Credit Issued for Subsidiaries 6365 ARTICLE IV TERM LOAN FACILITY 6465 SECTION 4.1 Initial Term Loan 6465 SECTION 4.2
Procedure for Advance of Term Loan 6465 SECTION 4.3 Repayment of Term Loans 6465 SECTION 4.4 Prepayments of Term Loans 6566 ARTICLE V GENERAL LOAN PROVISIONS 6768 SECTION 5.1 Interest 6768 SECTION 5.2}
i i L 6970 SECTION 5.3 Fees 7071 SECTION 5.4 M f P: 7071 SECTION 5.5 Evid f Indebtedi 7172 SECTION 5.6 Sk f P: by Lenders 7273]

for Losses 7778 SECTION 5.10 Increased Costs 7879 SECTION 5.11 Taxes 7981 SECTION 5.12 Mitigation}

N d M f C f
[SECTION 5.7 Administrative Agent's Clawback 7273 SECTION 5.8 Changed Circumstances 7374 SECTION 5.9 Indemni
Obligations; Replacement of Lenders 8384 SECTION 5.13 [Reserved] 8485 SECTION 5.14 Cash Collateral 8485 SECTION 5.15 Defaulting Lenders 8486 ARTICLE VI CONDITIONS OF CLOSING AND BORROWING 8788 SECTION 6.1}
and Initial Extensions of Credit 8788 SECTION 6.2 Conditions to All Extensions of Credit 8990 ARTICLE VII REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE CREDIT PARTIES 9091 SECTION 7.1 Existence

onditions to Closin iti i
Qualification and Power 9091 SECTION 7.2 Authorization; No Contravention 9092
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106108 SECTION 8.13 Compliance With Environmental Laws 107109 SECTION]
nti-Money Laundering Laws and Sanctions 107109 SECTION 8.15 Further Assurances 107109 SECTION 8.16 Compliance with Terms of Material Contractd]
107109 SECTION 8.17 Cash Management 107109 SECTION 8.18 Post-Closing Matters 108110 SECTION 8.19 Lender Calls 108110 SECTION 8.20 Junior Capital Raise 108110 SECTION 8.21 Collateral Matters 110 SECTION 8.22}
9.5 Dispositions 118120 SECTION 9.6 Restricted Payments 119121 SECTION 9.7 Change in Nature of Business 120122 SECTION 9.8 Transactions with Affiliates 120122 SECTION 9.9 Burdensome Agreements 121122 SECTION 9.10

Use of Proceeds 121123 SECTION 9.11 Financial Covenants 121123 SECTION 9.12 Amendments to Or

Indebtedness 122 124 SECTION 9.15 Amendments, Etc. of Indebtedness 123 125 SECTION 9.16 Use of Proceeds 123125 ARTICLE X DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 123125 SECTION 10.1 Events of Default 123125 SECTION 10.2]

Remedies 126128
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of Payments and Proceeds 127129 SECTION 10.5]

ights and Remedies Cumulative; Non-Waiver; etc 127128 SECTION 10.4 Cre
[Administrative Agent May File Proofs of Claim 128130 SECTION 10.6 Credit Bidding 129130 ARTICLE XI| THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT 129131 SECTION 11.1 Appointment and Authori

130131 SECTION 11.3 Exculpatory Provisions 130132 SECTION 11.4 Reliance by the Administrative Agent 131133 SECTION 11.5 Delegation of Duties 132133 SECTION 11.6 Resignation of Administrative Agent 132134 SECTION|

11.7 Non-Reliance on Administrative Agent and Other Lenders 133135 SECTION 11.8 No Other Duties, Etc 134135 SECTION 11.9 Collateral and Guaranty Matters 134136 SECTION 11.10 Secured Hedge Agreements and Secured
[12.3 Expenses; Indemnity 142144 SECTION 12.4 Right of Setoff 144146 SECTION 12.5 Governing Law; Jurisdiction, Etc 145146 SECTION 12.6 Waiver of Jury Trial 145147 SECTION 12.7 Reversal of Payments 146147 SECTION 12.8
Injunctive Relief 146148 SECTION 12.9 Successors and Assigns; Participations 146148 SECTION 12.10 Treatment of Certain Information; Confidentiality 150151 SECTION 12.11 Performance of Duties 150152 SECTION 12.12 All|

Powers Coupled with Interest 151152 SECTION 12.13 Survival 151152 SECTION 12.14 Titles and Captions 151153}
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[TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) Page -vi- 168204187 7188290905 7 SECTION 12.15 Severability of Provisions 151153 SECTION 12.16 Counterparts; Integration; Effectiveness; Electronic Execution 151153 SECTION 12.17 Term off
[Agreement 152154 SECTION 12.18 USA PATRIOT Act; Anti-Money Laundering Laws 152154 SECTION 12.19 Independent Effect of Covenants 152154 SECTION 12.20 No Advisory or Fiduciary Responsibility 153154 SECTION 12.21}
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated as of October 15, 2018, by and among EMERGENT BIOSOLUTIONS INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Borrower”), the lenders who are party to this Agreement and the
lenders who may become a party to this Agreement pursuant to the terms hereof, as Lenders, and WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, as Administrative Agent for the Lenders. STATEMEN
lamended, modified, restated or supplemented immediately prior to the date hereof, the “Existing Credit Agreement”). The Borrower has requested, and the Administrative Agent and Lenders have agreed, to amend and restate thef

Existing Credit Agreement pursuant to the terms hereof. WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the Administrative Agent and the Lenders have agreed to extend, a
term loan facility and a revolving credit facility to the Borrower. NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, such parties hereby agree asj
ollows: ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS SECTION 1.1 Definitions. The following terms when used in this Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to them below: “2028 Senior Notes” means the 3.875% Senior Notes due 2028, issued by]
the Borrower. “Account Control Agreements” means each Deposit Account Control Agreement, Securities Account Control Agreement and each other account control agreement entered i i

red into pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or an
he amount for such period of Consolidated EBITDA of any such Person or business so acquired (determined using such definitions as if references to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries therein were to such Person or business), a:
historical financial statements; provided, that, notwithstanding , in determining Acquired EBITDA for any Person or businesd
p plicable definitions shall be deemed|
to mean the same relevant period as the applicable period of determination for the Borrower and its Subsidiaries and (b) to the extent the commencement of any such Measurement Period shall occur during a fiscal guarter of suchl
CqUir n or business (such that on uarter s e included in such Measurement Period), Acquirt DA for the rter so included in such Measurement Period shall be deemed
0 be an amount equal to (x) Acquired EBITDA otherwise attributable to the entire fiscal quarter (determined in a manner consistent with the terms set forth above) multiplied b a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number 2)

188290905 7]
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of months of such fiscal quarter included in the relevant Measurement Period and the denominator of which shall be actual months in such fiscal quarter. “Acquired Interest Charges” means, with respect to any Person or busines

lacquired pursuant to a Permitted Acquisition for any period, the amount for such period of Consolidated Interest Charges of any such Person or business so acquired (determined using such definitions as if references to the Borrower and|
I

‘Adapt Target” means Adapt Pharma Limited, an Irish private compan! poration. “Adapt US/Canada Integration” means, on or after the Closin
ntemporaneous (&) assignment, transfer, dividend or distribution of all of the Adal I the Adapt Target to the Irish Newco Subsidiary, (b) assignment, transfer, dividend or distribution of the Adap anada
by Irish Newco Subsidiary to Emergent International, (c) assignment, transfer, dividend or distribution of the Adapt US/Canada Shares by Emergent International to the Borrower and (d) related interim or series of related transactions |
lsuch that, after the consummation of each of the foregoing transactions, the Borrower shall own all of the Adapt US/Canada Shares. “Adapt US/Canada Shares” means the issued and outstanding Equi

interests) of Adapt US and Adapt Canada from time to time. “Additional Guarantor Trigger Event” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 8.12. 3 188290905 7]
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ns, for oses of any calculation, the rate per annum egual to (a) Daily Sim such calculation b) the ustment; provided that i usted Daily Simple]
ISONIA as so determined shaII ever be less than the Floor, then Adjusted Daily Simple SONIA shaII be deemed to be me Flour Ad usted Eurocurrenc Rate” means, as to any Loan denominated in any applicable Currency not bearingy

even date herewith between the Borrower and Wells Fargo. ‘Admlnlstlanve Agent's Offlce” means, W|th resect o an

UK Financial Institution. “Affiliate” means, with respect to a specified Person, another Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, Controls or is Controlled by or is under common Control with the Person specified.|
‘Agent Parties” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 12.1(e). “Agreement” means this Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. “Alternative Currency” means (a) each of Euro, Sterling

and Canadian Dollars and (b) each other]
urrency (other than Dollars) that is approved in accordance with Section 1.13, in each case to the Adjusted Eurocurrency Rate = Eurocurrenc

Rate for such Currency for such Interest Period 1.00-Eurocurrency Reserve Percentagej
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lextent such currencies are (i) readily available and freely transferable and convertible into Dollars, (i) dealt with in the London interbank deposit market and (iii) for which no central bank or other governmental authorization in the country]
of issue of such currency is required to give authorization for the use of such currency by any Revolving Credit Lender for making Loans unless such authorization has been obtained and remains in full force and effect. “Alternativel

Imeans (a) each of Euro, Sterling, and Canadian Dollars and (b) each other currenc other than Dol\ars that is ap roved b the applicable Issuing Lender in accordance with Section 1. 13 in each case to the extent such currencies are (i
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6 188290905 7 necessary for timely settlement on the relevant date in accordance with normal banking procedures in the

er and joint bookrunner. “Assignment and Assum|
by the Administrative Agent, in substantially the form attached as Exhibit G or any other form app
of any Capitalized Lease of any Person, the capitalized amount thereof that would appear on a balance sheet of such Person prepared as of such date in accordance with GAAP, and (b) in respect of any Synthetic Lease Obligation, the}

[capitalized amount of the remaining lease payments under the relevant lease that would appear on a balance sheet of such Person prepared as of such date in accordance with GAAP if such lease were accounted for as a Capitalized

levelopment and procurement contract (Contract No. HHS010020160(
@ B ministration, as the same may be amended, restated, supplemented, replaced.|
account in which payments from the Federal Government (or any subdivision or agency thereof) on account of the AV7909)

or such Benchmark that is then-removed from the definition of “Interest Period” pursuant to Section 5.8(c)(iv). 21 RBC Capital Markets is a brand name for the capital markets businesses of Royal Bank of Canada and its affiliates]
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Benchmark Transition Event has occurred with respect to EURIBOR or CDOR as applicable, or the then-current Benchmark for such Currency, then “Benchmark” means, with respect to such Obllatmns interest, fees COMMISSIons ol

other amounts, the applicable Benchmark Replacement to the 7 188290905 7,
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extent that such Benchmark Replacement has replaced such prior benchmark rate pursuant to Section 5.8(c)(i).
sum of: (a) the alternate benchmark rate that has been selected by the Administrative Agent and the Borrower as the replacement for such Benchmark giving due consideration to (i) any selection or recommen placer

benchmark rate or the mechanism for determining such a rate by the Relevant Governmental Body or (i) any evolving or then-prevailing market convention for determining a benchmark rate as a replacement for such Benchmark foi
syndicated credit facilities denominated in the applicable Currency at such time and (b) the related Benchmark Replacement Adjustment; provided that, if such Benchmark Replacement as so determined would be less than the Floor, suct
Benchmark Replacement will be deemed to be the Floor for the purposes of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents. “Benchmark Replacement Adjustment” means, with respect to an:

then-current Benchmark, t
ation of a replacemen

replacement of any then-current Benchmark
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occurrence of the applicable event or evems set forth therein with respect to all then-current Available Tenors of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof). 8 188290905
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[the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such Benchmark (or the ubllshed component used in the calculatlon thereof), the FRB,Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (or any successor), the Federal Reserve Bank]
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Lendel and the Swin I|ne Lender, as applicable. 10 188290905
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“Cash Collateral” shall have a meanin correlauve to the foregoing and shall include the proceeds of such cash collateral and other credit support. “Cash Equivalents” means any of the foIIowm types of Investments to the extent owned

cash insurance proceeds or condemnation award payable by reason of theft, loss, physical destruction or damage, taking or similar event with respect to any of their respective Property. “CDOR” has the meaning assigned thereto in the]
efinition of “Eurocurrency Rate”. “CERCLA” means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980. 11 188290905
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income (however denominated) or that are franchise Taxes or branch profits Taxes. “Consolidated” means, when used with reference to financial statements or financial statement items of any Person, such statements or items on &
lconsolidated basis in accordance with applicable principles of consolidation under GAAP. 13 188290905 7]
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good fanh to be reasonably anticipated to be realizable within 12 months following any such Permmed Acquisition as set forth in reasonable detail on a certificate of a responsible officer of the Borrower delivered to the Administrative
Agent and (i) no such amounts shall be added pursuant to this clause to the extent duplicative of any expenses or charges otherwise added to consolidated EBITDA, whether through a pro forma adjustment or otherwise; (vii) to the extent
insurance and actuall events or business interruption; (viii) any net after-tax effect of loss for such period attributable to the earl

extinguishment of any Hedge]

Agreement; minus (c) without duplication, the following to the extent included in calculating such Consolidated Net Income: 14 188290905
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i) Federal, state, local and foreign income tax credits of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for such period: (ii) all non-cash items increasing Consolidated Net Income for such period; (iii) any net after-tax effect of income for such period|
attributable to the early extinguishment of any Hedge Agreement; and (iv) any cash expense made during such em)d which reresems me reversal uf an non-cash expense thal was added in a prior period pursuant to clause (b)(iv;
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lsoftware, patents, trademarks !rade names, copyrights, service marks, brand names, unamortized deferred chares unamortized debt discount and caj \ta\ized research and development costs. "Comrac!ual Obligation” means, as to anyj

ISONIA without notice to the Borrower. 17 188290905 7
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including, without limitation, any and all 20 188290905 7]
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e ————————————
under Title IV of ERISA, other than for PBGC premiums due but not delinguent under Section 4007 of ERISA, upon the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate. “Erroneous Payment” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 11.11(a)]
"Erroneous Payment Deficiency Assw nment has the meaning assit ned lhereto in Section 11.11(d). “Erroneous Pa) ment Impacted Class” has the meaning assigned !hereto in Section 11.11(d). “Erroneous Pa ment Return Deflclenc £

including any 22 188290905
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effect on the date on which (i) such Lender acquires such interest in the Loan or Revolving Credit Commitment (other than pursuant to an assignment request by the Borrower under Section 5.12(b)) or (i) such Lender changes its Lending
Office, except in each case to the extent that, pursuant to Section 5.11, amounts with respect to such Taxes were payable either to such Lender’s assignor immediately before such Lender became a party hereto or to such Lende!

immediately before it changed its Lending Office, 23 188290905
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land (e) the Biggert-Waters F\ood Insurance Reform Act of 2012, as each of the foregoing is now or hereafter in effect and any successor statute to any of the foregoing. “Floor” means a rate of interest equal to 0%. 24 188290905 7]
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‘Forbearance Agreement and Sixth Amendment” means tha! certain Forbearance A reement and Sixth Amendment dated as of Fehruar 29, 2024. “Foreign Government Scheme or Arrangement” has the meaning assigned thereto in|

purchase or payment of) such Indebtedness or other monetary obligation 25 188290905 7]
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ransactions, interest rate options, forward foreign exchange transactions, cap transactions, floor transactions, collar transactions, currency swap transactions, cro: Jrrency rate swap transactions, currency options, spot contracts, o
lany other similar transactions or any combination of any of the foregoing (including any options to enter into any of the foregoing), whether or not any such transaction is governed by or subject to any master agreement, and (b) any andj

the extent applicable to the relevant financial statements delivered und
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and (c) has been designated as such on Schedule 7.13 (as su nted from
such Subsidiary as to which the Borrower has revoked such designation by written to the Administrative]

nthetic Lease Obligations of such Person nthetic Debt of such Person; (g) all obligations of such Person in respect of Disqualified Equi
or any other Person, valued, in the case of a redeemable preferred interest, at the greater of its voluntary or involuntary liguidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends, in each case to the extent required to be included as a
i j j in which such Person is a general partner or a joint venturer, unless such Indebtednes:
is expressly made non-recourse to such Person and (y) shall not include (i) prepaid or deferred revenue 27 188290905
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rising in the ordi e of business and (i) end ments of checks or drafts arising in the ordinary course of business. The amount of any net obligation under any Hedge Agreement on any date shall be deemed to be the Swi
than Excluded Taxes, imposed on or with respect to any payment made by or on account of any obligation of any Credit Party under any Loan|

e ordinary course of bu:
on Value thereof as of such date.

rovided, that each such three-month interval
i occurs in such month, in which case sucl

Period of more than three (3) months’ duration, each da 0 the last day of such Interest Period that occurs at three-moni
shall be the immediately succeeding Business Day if such day is not a Business Day, unless such day is not a Business Da onth after which no further Business Da
day shall be the immediately preceding Business Day and the Applicable Maturity Date. “Interest Period” means, as to eachany Eurocurrency Rate Loan, Term CORRA Loan or Term SOFR Loan, the period commencing on the date such
b J B
on the next succeedin: i

lcommence on the date on which the immediatel! ing Interest Period expires; i
Day; provided that if any Interest Period would otherwise expire on a day that is not a Business Day but is a day of the month after which no further Business Day occurs in such month, such Interest Period shall expire on the immediatel
lend on the last Business Day of the relevant calendar month at the end of such Interest Period; 28 188290905 7|
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ithout payment of any amounts pursuant to Section 5.9; (e) there shall be no more than six (6) Interest Periods in effect at any time; and (f) no tenor that has been removed from this definition pursuant to Section 5.8(c)(iv)5.8(c)(iv) shall
be available for specification in any Notice of Borrowing or Notice of Conversion/Continuation. “Investment” means, with respect to any Person, that such Person (a) purchases, owns, invests in or otherwise acquires (in one transaction ol
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by such Affiliate. or Capital R: the meaning assigned thereto in Section 8.20. “L/C Commitrr ns, as to a
to issue Letters of Credit for the account of the Borrower from time to time in an aggregate amount equal to 29 188290905 7]
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a) for each of the initial Issuing Lenders, the amount set forth opposite the name of each such initial Issuing Lender on Schedule 1.1(c) and (b’ for any other Issuin Lender becoming an Issum Lender after the Closing Date, suchf

30 188290905
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this Agreement, a Person shall be deemed to own subject to a Lien any asset which it has acquired or holds subject to the interest of a vendor or lessor under any conditional sale agreement, Capitalized Lease or other title retention|
ed on the availability of, or on i

redit Loans, the aggregate principal
SA is in effect, amounts held in conn

d as a “Loan Document”.
regate amount of Capital Expenditures made during such period for the purpose of maintaining, or extending the useful life of, any capital asset (which do not otherwise]

constitute normal replacements and maintenance which are properly charged to current operations). “Material Adverse Effect” means (a) a material adverse effect on the operations, business assets, properties, liabilities (actual o
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owned in fee that is subject to a Mortgage. “Mortgages” means the collective reference to each mortgage, deed of trust or other real

lemented or mherwise modifled from time to time. “Multiemployer Plan” means any Employee Benefif

ributiol e Employ lan which has two or more contributing sponsors (including the Borrower or an iliate) at least two of whom are not under common control, as such a plan is describe C
4064 of ERISA “Net Cash Proceeds” means () with respect to each Disposition and Casualty Event, the gross cash proceeds received by the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries in respect of such event (including any cash or cash
lequivalents received by way of deferred payment pursuant to, or by monetization of, a note receivable or otherwise, but only as and when so received) net of the sum of (i) all fees and expenses incurred in connection with such event by

[the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, (i) the amount of all payments 32 188290905 7|
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NS, 1311986 Lender that is not a Defaulting Ler at such tir arantor Su ns any Sul iary of the BlWet(l ans the ective reference to the
NOlES the Swingline NO(E and the Term Loan Notes. lNOlICE of ACCOUI’]( De5|nat|on" has the meaning assned IthEtO in Section 2.3(b). “Notice of Borrowing” has the meaning assig ned thereto in SECUOH 2.3(a).

evol Ci
"NOUCS Off

[Conversion/Continuation” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 5.2. “Notice of Prepayment” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 2.4(c). “NPL" means the National Priorities List under CERCLA. 33 188290905
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A usiness entity, the partnership, joint venture or other applicable agreement of formation or organization and any agreem g or notice with respect thereto filed in connection with it
[formation or organization with the applicable Governmental Authority in the jurisdiction of its formation or organization and, if applicable, an: certlflcate or amcles of formatlon or oramzatlon of such entity. “Other Connection Taxes’

snttet an assignment I suant to Section 5.12). rnight ran wit ett am nte'l'ntlDat eater of (i) the Federal Funds Rate overnight raf
[determined by the Admlmsnatlve Agent (or to the extent payable to an Issum Lender or 1he Swml\ne Lendel such Issum Lender or Swingline Lender as ap ||cab|e in each case, with notice to the Admlnlstlallve Agent to bej

[determined by the Administrative Agent (or to the extent payable to an Issuing Lender or the Swingline Lender, such Issuing Lender or Swingline Lender, as applicable, in each case, with notice to the Administrative Agent) to be}
in the place of disbursement or payment for the settlement of international banking transactions. 34 188290905 7]
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‘Panama Merger Sub” means Panama Merger

(Corporation or any successor agency. “Pension Act” means the Pension Protection Act of 2006. 35 188290905 7]
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'Pension Funding Rules” means the rules of the Code and ERISA regarding minimum required contributions (including any installment payment thereof) to Pension Plans and set forth in, with respect to plan years ending prior to the
effective date of the Pension Act, Section 412 of the Code and Sectlon 302 of ERISA, each as in effect prior to the Pension Act and thereafter Sectlon 412 430, 431, 432 and 436 of the Code and Sectlons 302 303, 304 and 305 of

standards under Section 412 of the Code. “Permitted AC LIISIIIDI'\" has the meaning assigned thereto in SECUOH 9.2
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transaction class exemption issued by the U.S. Department of Labor, as any such exemption may be amended from time to time. “Public Lenders” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 8.2. “Qualified Equity Interests” means an’

Interests that are not Disqualified Equity Interests. “Rate Determination Date” means, with respect to any Interest Period, two (2) Eurocurrency Banking Days prior to the commencement of such Interest Period (or such other day a:
is generally treated as the rate fixing day by market practice in the applicable interbank market, as determined by the Administrative Agent; provided that to the extent that such market practice is not administratively feasible for the|

IAdministrative Agent, such other day as otherwise reasonably determined by the Administrative Agent). 36 188290905 7]
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Reimbursement Obligation” means the obligation of the Borrower to

Issuing Lender, as applicable. “Register” has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 12.9(c
Issuing Lender pursuant to Section 3.5 for amounts drawn under Letters of Credit issued by such Issuing Lender. “Related Parties” means, with respect to any Person, such Person’s Affiliates and the partners, directors.
" means (a) with respect to a Benchmark Replacement in respeci

‘Recipient” means (a) the Administrative Agent,
fflcers em) Io ees, agents, trustees, admlnlstrators managers, advisors and representatives of such Person and of such Person’s Affiliates. “Relevant Governmental Bod
sions or other amounts denominated in, or calculated wi

Reserve” means (i) from the Seventh Amendment Effective Date throu

Lender shall be disregarded in determining Required Revolving Credit Lenders at any time
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‘Resolution Authority” means an EEA Resolution Authority or, with respect to any UK Financial Institution, a UK Resolution Authority. “Responsible Officer” means the chief executive officer, president, vice president, chief financial officer}
manager or executive manager (in the case of any limited liability company), treasurer, assistant treasurer or controller of a Credit Party, solely for purposes of the delivery of incumbency certificates pursuant to Section 6.1, the secretan

redit is amended to increase the face amount of such Letter of Credit but only as to the amount of such increase[reserved], (iii) in the case of all Existing Letters of Credit denominated in Alternative Currencies, the Closing Date, bu
only as to such Existing Letters of Credit and (iv) such additional dates as the Administrative Agent or the applicable Issuing Lender (with notice thereof to the Administrative Agent) shall determine or the Required Lenders shall require,
“Revolving Credit Commitment” means (a) as to any Revolving Credit Lender, the obligation of such Revolving Credit Lender to make Revolving Credit Loans to, and to purchase participations in L/C Obligations and Swingline Loans for]
he account of, the Borrower hereunder in an aggregate principal Dollar Amount at any time outstanding not to exceed the amount set forth opposite such Revolving Credit Lender's name on the Register, as such Dollar amount may be]
Imodified at any time or from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof and (b) as to all Revolving Credit Lenders, the aggregate commitment of all Revolving Credit Lenders to make Revolving Credit Loans, as such Dollar Amount may be]
Imodified at any time or from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof. The aggregate Revolving Credit Commitment of all the Revolving Credit Lenders on the Fourth Amendment Effective Date shall be $300,000,000. The Revolvin:
Credit Commitment of each Revolving Credit Lender on the FourthSeventh Amendment Effective Date is set forth opposite the name of such Lender on 38 188290905
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recommends that the 39 188290905
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r 0ses of notice requirements In Sections 2.3(a), 2.4(C), 4. , 4.4(a) an , IN each case, such day Is also a Business Day. an or a Dal imple oan, a ferm oan oraferr
[SOFR Loan, as the context may require. “RFR Rate Day” means any da LHSLIam IO WhICh an ca\culaﬂon of on RFR is made “S&P" means Standard & Poor’s Ratm Service, a dIVISI0l1 of S&P Global Inc. and any successor thereto.
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. ns a rate eq ecured overnight financing rate as administere the ministri E minists ns the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (or a rator of the secure:
lovernight financing rate). “Solvent” and “Solvency” mean, with respect to any Person on any date of detenmmaﬂon that on such date (a) the fair value of the property of such Person is greater than the total amount of liabilities, including

Imatured, (c) such Person does not intend to, and does not believe that it will, incur debts or liabilities beyond such Person’s ability to pay such debts and liabilities as they mature, (d) such Person is not engaged in business or
ransaction, and is not about to engage in business or a transaction, for which such Person’s property would constitute an unreasonably small capital, and (e) such Person is able to pay its debts and liabilities, contingent obligations an
other commitments as they mature in the ordinary course of business. The amount of contingent liabilities at any time shall be computed as the amount that, in the light of all the facts and circumstances existing at such time, represents|
he amount that can reasonably be expected to become an actual or matured liability. 41 188290905 7]
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'SONIA” means a rate equal to the Sterling Overnight Index Average as administered by the SONIA Administrator. “SONIA Adj percentage equal to 0.0326% per annum. “SONIA Administrator” means the Bank of
Enland Or any successor administramr of the Sterling Overnight Index Average). “SONIA Administramr's \Website” means the Bank of En land's webslte currently at htt] '//www bankofengland.co.uk, or any successor source for thej

e Iministrative Agent) on the date of determinati ing ns the lawful currency of the . ect Indebtedr the meaning assigned thereto in Section 9.14. rdinated Indebte
he collective reference to an Indebtedness incurred b the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries that is contractually subordinated in right and time Of ayment to the Obligations on terms and conditions reasonably satisfactory to thel
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by reason of the happening of any contingency). Unless otherwise qualified, references to “Subsidiary” or “Subsidiaries” herein shall refer to those of the Borrower. “Super Majority Required Lenders” means, at any time, Lenders having
Total Credit Exposure representing more than 66.6% of the Total Credit Exposure of all Lenders. The Total Credit Exposure of any Defaulting Lender shall be disregarded in determining Super Majority Required Lenders at any time. “Swap
Ob| ation" means, with respect to any Guarantor, any obligation to pay or perform under any agreement, contract or transaction that constitutes a"swa" within the meanin of Section 1a(47) of the Commodity Exchange Act. “Swap|

ereto in Section jii). “Synthetic ns, Wlt'l respect to an ate of determ nat gat in respect of transactions entered into by such Person that are intended to functio

rimarily as a bDrrowm of funds (including any minority interest transactions that function primarily as a borrowing) but are not otherwise included in the definition of “Indebtedness” or as a liability on the consolidated balance sheet of]
uch Person and its Subsidiaries in accordance with GAAP. “Synthetic Lease Obligation” means the monetary obligation of a Person under (a) a so-called synthetic, off-balance sheet or tax retention lease, or (b) an agreement for the use
or possession of property (including sale and leaseback transactions), in each case, creating obligations that do not appear on the balance sheet of such Person but which, upon the insolvency or bankruptcy of such Person, would be]

characterized as the indebtedness of such Person (without regard to accounting treatment). 43 188290905 7]
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the Eurosystem, or any successor system. “TARGET Day” means any day or
, assessments, fees or other charges imposed by any

IAdministrator on the first preceding RFR Business Da
. “Term CORRA Loan’

of the CanDeal/TMX Term CORRA benchmark that is administered by CanDeal (or a successor administrator of the Term CORRA Reference Rate selected by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion
Imeans a Loan that bears interest at a rate based on Adjusted Term CORRA. “Term CORRA Reference Rate” means the forward-looking term rate based on CORRA. “Term Loan Commitment” means () as to any Term Loan Lender, the]
obligation of such Term Loan Lender to make a portion of the Initial Term Loan to the account of the Borrower hereunder on the Closing Date in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the amount set forth opposite such Lender’s]

name on Schedule 1.1(c), as such amount may be increased, reduced or otherwise modified at any time or from time to time pursuant to the terms hereof and (b) as to all Term Loan Lenders, the aggregate commitment of all Term Loan)|
Lenders to make such Term Loans. The aggregate Term Loan Commitment with respect to the Initial Term Loan of all Term Loan Lenders on the Closing Date shall be $450,000,000. The Term Loan Commitment of each Term Loan|
Lender as of the Closing Date is set forth opposite the name of such Term Loan Lender on Schedule 1.1(c),
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“Term Loan Facility” means the term loan facility established pursuant to Article IV. “Term Loan Lender” means any Lender with a Term Loan
of (a) May 15, 2025, and (b) the date of acceleration of the Term Loans pursuant to Section 10.2(a). “Term Loan Note” means a promissor
Loans made by such Term Loan Lender, substantiall

ays prior to the first day of such Interest Period, as such rate is published by the Term SOFR Administrator; provided, however, that if as of 5:00 p.m.

Day the Term SOFR Reference Rate for the applicable tenor has not been published by the Term SOFR Administrator and a Benchmark Replacement Date with respect to the Term SOFR Reference Rate has not occurred, then Term

[SOFR will be the Term SOFR Reference Rate for such tenor as published by the Term SOFR Administrator on the first preceding RFR Business Day for which such Term SOFR Reference Rate for such tenor was published by the Term|

prior to such Base Rate Term SOFR Determination Day; provided, further, that if Term SOFR determined as provided above (including pursuant to the proviso under clause (a) or clause (b) above) shall ever be less than the Floor, then|
Term SOFR shall be deemed to be the Floor. “Term SOFR Adjustment” means a percentage equal to 0.10% per annum. 45 188290905 7|
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reem nect with a Specifie ale |ansact\on provided that the term of any transition services agreement described in this clause (i) shall not excee 1we ve months. ans the Uniform Commercial Co
as in effect in the State of NEW York. “UCP” means the Umform Customs and Pract\ce for Documentary Credits, International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 600 (or such later version thereof as may be in effect at the applicable]

damages, costs, expenses or liabilities resulting from property damage or casualty, 46 188290905 7]
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ordinary course of business to Persons engaged in the same or similar business as the Borrower and its Subsidlaries “United States” means the United States of Amenca "Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents” means, as of an

. “Wells Fargo” means Wells Faro Bank, National Association, a national banking association. “Wholly-Owned” means, with respect to a Subsidiary,

0 powers of the applicable Resolution Authority under the Bail-| egislation to cancel, C o] or change the form of a liability of an: K Finan contract or instrument under
hich that liability arises, to convert all or part of that liability into shares, securities or obligations of that person or any other person, to provide that any such contract or instrument is to have effect as if a right had been exercised under if]
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or to suspend any obligation in respect of that liability or any of the powers under that Bail-In Legislation that are related to or ancillary to any of those powers. SECTION 1.2 Other Definitions and Provisions. With reference to thi

Agreement and each other Loan Document, unless otherwise specified herein or in such other Loan Document: (a) the definitions of terms herein shall apply equally to the singular and plural forms of the terms defined, (b) whenever the]

refer to Articles and Sections of, and Exhibits and Schedules to, this Agreement, (h the words “asset” and 47 188290905 7]
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land all instruments, documents, agreements, certificates, notices, reports, financial statements and other writings, however evidenced, whether in physical or electronic form and (j of periods of time from a specified|
date to a later specified date, the w i ing; words “to” and “until” each mean “to but excluding; the wor ug nd including”. SECTION 1.3 Accounting Terms. (&) All accounting term:

not specifically or completely defined herein shall be construed in conformity with, and all financial data (including financial ratios and other financial calculations) required to be submitted pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared i
Jl

financial ratio or requirement set forth in any Loan Document, and either the Borrower or the Required Lenders shall so request, the Administrative Agent, ti
i requi r original intent thereof in light of such change in GAAP (subject to the aj uired Lenders); provi i

I pproval of the Req ; provided that, until
rovide to the Administrative Agent and the Len: statements and ot

definitions and calculations for purpose of this Agreement (whether or not such operating lease obligations were in effect on such date) notwithstanding the fact that such obligations are required in accordance with FASB ASC 842 (on
rospective or retroactive basis or otherwise) to be treated as Capitalized Leases in the financial statements and (B) all financial statements delivered to the Administrative Agent hereunder shall contain a schedule showing the

modifications necessary to reconcile the adjiustments made pursuant to clause (A) above with such financial statements. (c) Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. All references herein to Consolidated financial statements of the]
Borrower and its Subsidiaries or to the determination of any amount for the Borrower and its Subsidiaries on a Consolidated basis or any similar reference shall, in each case, be deemed to include each variable interest entity that the]
Borrower is required to consolidate pursuant to FASB ASC 810 as if such variable interest entity were a Subsidiary as defined herein. SECTION 1.4 UCC Terms. Terms defined in the UCC in effect on the Closing Date and not otherwise|
[defined herein shall, unless the context otherwise indicates, have the meanings provided by those definitions. Subject to the foregoing, the term “UCC" refers, as of any date of determination, to the UCC then in effect. 48 188290905
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ontained in such Sections shall be deemed to have occurred solely as a result of changes in rates of exchange occurring after the time such Indebtedness or Investment is incurred; provided that for the avoidance of doubt, the foregoing
rovisions of this Section 1.10 shall otherwise apply to such Sections, including with respect to determining whether any Indebtedness or Investment may be incurred at any time under such Sections. SECTION 1.11 Exchange Rates;
rrency Equivalents; Daily Simple SONIA Loans. 49 188290905 7]
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such Issuing Ler e to e rates determ e metho Istor such Issuing Len e. SECTION 1.12 Chal of Currel a) The ation of the Borrower
make a pa mem denommated in the nauonal currency unit Df an membel state Of the Eulcean Unlon that ado ts the EulD as its Iawfu\ currenc after the date hereof shall be redenommated mto ELIID at the time Of SUCh adoption (in|

market conventions or practices relating to the Euro. (c) Each provision of this Agreement also shal
Administrative Agent may from time to time specify to be appropriate to reflect a 50 188290905 7]
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onsents, in its sole discretion, to the issuance of Letters of Credit in such re and the usage of such benchmark rate. (c) Any failure by a Revolving Credit Lender or the applic: ender(s), as the case may be,

respond to such request within the time period specified in the preceding sentence shall be deemed to be a refusal by such Lender or the applicable Issuing Lender(s), as the case may be, to permit Revolving Credit Loans to be made ol
Letters of Credit to be issued in such requested currency and such benchmark rate to be used. If the Administrative Agent and all the Revolving Credit Lenders consent to making Revolving Credit Loans in such requested currency and

using such benchmark rate, the Administrative Agent shall so notify the Borrower and such currency shall thereupon be deemed for all purposes to be an Alternative Currency hereunder for purposes of any borrowings of Revolving Credi]
Loans; and if the Administrative Agent, all the Revolving Credit Lenders and the applicable Issuing Lender(s) consent to the issuance of Letters of Credit in such requested currency, the Administrative Agent shall so noti

and such currency shall thereupon be deemed for all purposes to be an 51 188290905
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burchase agreement, merger a er acquisition agreement governing such Acquisition and (ii) no Event o
effect to such AcLusmon and an Indebtedness incurred in connectlon therewith (includin: such additional Indebtedness

rovided in the next sentence, in ct guent calculation of any ratio or basket on or following the relevant dat: greement with respect to such Limited Condition Acg LIISI[ on a1d prior
he earlier of (i) the date on which such Limited Condition Acquisition is consummated or (i) the date that the definitive agreement for such Limited Condition Acquisition is terminated or expires without consummation of such Limited|
ion Acqu any 52 188290905
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ro forma basis assuming such Limited Condition Acquisition and other transactions in connection therewith (including the incurrence or assumption of Indebtedness) have been|
consummated an assuming such Limited Condition Acquisition and other transactions in connection therewith (including the incurrence or assumption of Indebtedness) have not been consummated. Notwithstanding the foregoin
ny calculation of a ratio in connection with determining the Applicable Margin and determining whether or not the Borrower is in compliance with the requirements of Section 9.11 shall, in each case be calculated assuming such Limite

ion sources or services in its reasonable discretion to ascertain any Benchmark, any component definition thereof or rates referred to in the definition thereof, in each case
ili I r rp entif damages of any kind, including direct or indirect, special, punitive, incidental or conseguential damages.
error or calculation of an

g g
such rate (or ct h information source or service. SECTION 1.1

Person becomes the asset, right, obligation or liability of a different Person, then it shall be deemed to have been transferred from the original Person to the subsequent Person, and (b) if any new Person comes into existence, such ne
Person shall be deemed to have been organized on the first date of its existence by the holders of its Equity Interests at such time. ARTICLE Il REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY 53 188290905
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54 188290905 _7 SECTION 2.1 Revolving Credit Loans. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each Revolving Credit Lender severally agrees to make Revolving Credit Loans to the Borrower in Dollars or one or more;

JAlternative Currencies from time to time from the Closing Date to, but not including, the Revolving Credit Maturity Date as requested by the Borrower in accordance with the terms of Section 2.3; provided, that (a) the Revolving Credi
Outstandings shall not exceed the Revolving Credit Commltmem 3 less the Reserve, (b) the Revolving Credit Exposure of an: Revolvin Credit Lender shall not at any time exceed such Revolvin

Credit Lender’s Revolvin Cred\

n writing by Required Revolvmt Credit Lenders.
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ii) The Borrower shall pay to the Swingline Lender on demand, and in any event on the Revolving Credit Maturity Date, in Same Day Funds the amount of such Swingline Loans to the extent amounts received from the Revolving Credit]
Lenders are not sufficient to repay in full the outstanding Swingline Loans requested or required to be refunded. In addition, the Borrower irrevocably authorizes the Administrative Agent to charge any account maintained by the Borrowel
ith the Swingline Lender (up to the amount available therein) in order to immediately pay the Swingline Lender the amount of such Swingline Loans to the extent amounts received from the Revolving Credi ici

{
repay in full the outstanding Swingline Loans requested or required to be refunded. If any portion of any such amount paid to the Swingline Lender shall be recovered by or on behalf of the Borrower from the Swingline Lender in|

n outstanding. Each Revolving Credit Lender will immediatel e amount of its]
rom any Revolving Credit Lender such Revolving Credit Lender’s Swingline Participation Amount, the Swingline Lender receives an

ursuant to Section 2.2(b)(iii) shall be absolute and unconditional and shall not be affected b i i i i im, ment, defense or other right that such Revolving Credit Lender or the Borrower]
ve against the Swingline Lender, the Borrower or any other Person for any reason wh: continuance of a Default or an Event of Default or the failure to satisfy any of the other conditions specified in|
s £ , (D

Article VI, (C) any adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower, any breach of this Agreement or any other Loan Document by the Borrower, any other Credit Party or any other Revolving Credit Lender or (E

[from such Revolving Credit Lender (acting through the Administrative Agent), on demand, such 55 188290905 7|
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56 188290905 7 amount with interest thereon for the period from the date such payment is required to the date on which such payment is immediately available to the Swingline Lender at a rate per annum equal to the Overnight Rate,
plus any administrative, processing or similar fees customarily charged by the Swingline Lender in connection with the foregoing. If such Revolving Credit Lender pays such amount (with interest and fees as aforesaid), the amount so paid|
Ishall constitute such Revolving Credit Lender’s Revolving Credit Loan or Swingline Participation Amount, as the case may be. A certificate of the Swingline Lender submitted to any Revolving Credit Lender (through the Administrative]
[Agent) with respect to any amounts owing under this clause (iii) shall be conclusive absent manifest error. (c) Defaulting Lenders. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, this Section 2.2 shall be subject to
he terms and conditions of Section 5 14 and Section 5.15. SECTION 2.3 Procedure 1or Advances of Revolving Credlt Loans and Swingline Loans.4 (a) Requests for Borrowing. The Borrower shall give 1he Administrative Agen

2 slide107

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 188/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

, then the applicable Loans shall be made in Dollarsas Base Rate Loans denominated in Dollars; provided, however, with respect to a Loan denominated in an Alternative Currency, such
Rate Loans with an Interest Period of one month, Term CORRA Loans with an Interest Period of one month, or Daily Simple SONIA Loans, as applicable. If the Borrower fails to speci e of Lo
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Loans. Not later than 1:00 p.m. in the case of any Loan denominated in Dollars, and not later than the Applicable Time specified by the Administrative Agent in the case of any Loan denominated in an Alternative Currency, in each case on|
he proposed borrowing date, (i) each Revolving Credit Lender will make available to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Borrower, at the Administrative Agent's Office in Same Day Funds for the applicable Currency, such|

Revolving Credit Lender’s Revolving Credit Commitment Percentage of the Revolving Credit Loans to be made on such borrowing date and (i) the Swingline Lender will make available to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the
Borrower, at the Administrative Agent's Office in Same Day Funds, the Swingline Loans to be made on such borrowing date. The Borrower hereby irrevocably authorizes the Administrative Agent to disburse the proceeds of each

orrowin ursuant to this Section in Same Day Funi iting or wiring suf oceeds to the deposit account of the Borrower identified in the most recent notice substantially in the form attacl s Exhibit C Ce O
Account DSSIE nation” dellvered by the BOI’I’DWEF to 1he Admlnlstlatlve A em or as ma be DIthWISe agreed upon b the BO”OWEI and the Adm|n|stratlve A ent fme time to time. Subject to SECIIOn 57 hereof the Admwstrauve Agent

evolving Cre aturity Date), in each case, (A) in the Currency in which such Loan ogether with all accrued but unpaid interest thereon. andatory Prepayments. (i) If at any time the Revolving Credif
Outstandlncs exceed the Revolving Credn Commitment less the Reserve, the Borrower agrees to repa |mmed|atel upon notice from the Administrative Agent, by payment to the Admlmstratlve Agent for the account of the Revolvm

Loans and third, with respect to any Letters of Credit then outstanding, a payment of Cash Collateral into a Cash Collateral account opened by 57 188290905 7|
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opene t Al ent, for the benefit of the Revolving Credit Lenders ollateral t e aj in a ance witl b any time the aggregate amount of Unrestricted Cash and Cash|
Equivalents (excluding any (x) cash on deosn in accounts the excluswe functlon of wh|ch is to serve as a pa) ID|| account and Ilmlted to amounts in the aggregate reasonabl estimated to cover payroll for a two-week period and (y) to thel

to, and in accor with, Section excluding Section 9. i) and (0))). including the Specified Sale Transactions, by the Borr after the Seventh Amendment Effective Date;)
brovided, that, to the extent the aggregate Net Cash Proceeds from such Dispositions exceed $85, ODO 000, the Borrower shaII not be reuued to make any further mandatory principal prepayments pursuant to this clause (iv) (it being|
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least four (4) Eurocurrency BankingRFR Business Days before the intended prepayment of such Eurocurrency Rate Loan (or five (5) Eurocurrency Banking Days in the case of a prepayment of Eurocurrency Rate Loans denominated in a

jof $100,000 in excess thereof with respect to Base Rate Loans (other than Swini 0 in excess thereof with respect to Eurocurrency Rate Loans, Term SOFR Loans or Dail
ISONIA and RFR Loans and $100,000 or a whole multiple of $100,000 in excess thereof with respect to Swingline Loans. A Notice of Prepayment received after 11:00 a.m. shall be deemed received on the next Business Day, RFR)

Business Day or Eurocurrency Banking Day, as applicable. Each such repayment shall be accompanied by any amount required to be paid pursuant to Section 5.9 hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Notice of a Prepayment

Section shall affect any of the Borrower's obligations under any Hedge Agreement entered into with respect to the Loans. SECTION 2.5 Permanent Reduction of the Revolving Credit Commitment. (a) Voluntary Reduction. The Borrower

reduction of the Revolving Credit Commitment shall be applied to the Revolving Credit 59 188290905 7]
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[Commitment of each Revolving Credit Lender according to its Revolving Credit Commitment Percentage. All Commitment Fees accrued until the effective date of any termination of the Revolving Credit Commitment shall be paid on thej

h permanent reduction permitted pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by a
applicable, after such reduction to the Revolving Credit Commitment as so reduced and if the aggre
to deposit Cash Collateral in a Cash Collateral account open an al
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required to be paid pursuant to Section 5.9 hereof. SECTION 2.6 Termination of Revolving Credit Facility. i i ility and the Revolving Credit Commitments shall terminate on the Revolving Credit Maturity Date |
JARTICLE IIl LETTER OF CREDIT FACILITY SECTION 3.1 L/C Facility. ilability. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, each Issuing Lender, in reliance on the agreements of the Revolving Credit Lenders set forth in Section|

3.4(a), agrees to issue standby Letters of Credit in Dollars Or one or more Alternative L/C Currencles in the Dollar Euivalem of an aggregate amount not to exceed its L/IC Commilmem for the account of the Borrower or, subject to Section|

Lender would exceed its L/C Commitment, (i) the L/C Oblla'uons would exceed the L/C Sublimit, (iii) the Revolving Credit Outstandings would exceed the Revolving Credit Commitment less the Reserve or (iv) the Dollar Equivalent of th

laggregate principal amount of all outstanding Revolving Credit Loans denominated in 60 188290905 7]
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A Iternatlve Currencies and Leners of Credit denominated in Alternative L/C Currencies would exceed the Alternative Currency Sublimit. (b) Terms of Letters of Credit. Each Letter of Credlt shall (i) be denommated in Dollars or one or more]

slide112

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 195/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Letter of Credit issued by such Issuing Lender. Such issuance fee shall be payable in Dollars guarterly in arrears on the last Business Day of each calendar 62 188290905
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jguarter commencing with

the first such date to occur after the issuance of such Letter of Credit, on the Revolving Credit Maturity Date and thereafter on demand of the applicable Issuing Lender. For the avoidance of doubt, such issuance]

such Issuing Lender, the amount specified on the app

licable due date. If any such amount is paid to such Issuing Lender after the date such payment is due, such L/C Participant shall

ay such Issuing Lender, in the applicable currency in which such Letter of Credit is denominated, on demand, in addition to such amount, the
[Administrative Agent during the period from and including the date such payment is due to the date on which such payment is immediatel
that elapse during such period and the denominator of which is 360, administrative, processing or similar fees customaril?

ay to the Administrative Ac ent, which in turn shall
roduct of (i) such amount, times (i) the applicable Overnight Rate as determined by the}
available to such Issuing Lender, times (iii) a fraction the numerator of which is the number of days}
charged by such Issuing Lender in connection with the foregoing. A certificate of such Issuing Lender with|
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respect to any amounts owing under this Section shall be conclusive in the absence of manifest error. With respect to payment to such Issuing Lender of the unreimbursed amounts described in this Section, if the L/C Participants receivel
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Percentage of such payment in accordance with this Section, such Issuing Lender receives any payment related to such Letter of Credit (whether directly from the Administrative Agent or otherwise), or any payment of interest on account

hereof, such Issuing Lender will distribute to such L/C Participant its pro rata share thereof;
L/C Participant shall return to the Administrative Agent, which shall in turn pay to such Issuing Lender the portion thereof istri ing Lender to it. (d) Each L/C Participant’s obligation to make the Revolving Credif]

including non-satisfaction of the conditions set forth in il 188290905
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[Section 2. 3 a) or Article VI. If the Borrower has elected to pay the amount of such drawing with funds from other sources and shall fail to reimburse such Issul g Lender in the applicable Currency as provided above, or if the amount of
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or Finance and Trade (BAFT) or the Institute of International Banking Law & Practice, whether or not any Letter of Credit chooses such laws or practice rules. SECTION 3.7 Effect of Letter of Credit Documents. To the extent that anyj

whether arising by contract, at law, in equity or otherwise) against such Subsidiary in resect of such Letter of Credit, the Borrower (a) shall be obligated to relmburse. or to cause the applicable Subsidiary to reimburse, the applicabl:

Issuing Lender hereunder for any and all drawings 67 188290905 7
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68 188290905 7 March 31, 2024 $3,937,500 $3,937,500 PAYMENT DATE June 30, 2024 $3,937,500 September 30, 2023 PRINCIPAL INSTALLMENT September 30, 2024 $3,937,500 $3,937,500 under such Letter of Credit as if such|
Letter of Credit had been issued solely for the account of the Borrower and (b) irrevocably waives any and all defenses that might otherwise be available to it as a guarantor or surety of any or all of the obligations of such Subsidiary in|
respect of such Letter of Credit. The Borrower hereby acknowledges that the issuance of Letters of Credit for the account of any of its Subsidiaries inures to the benefit of the Borrower and that the Borrower’s business derives substantial
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reduce the scheduled amortization payments on the Term Loan Facility as directed by the Borrower (or in the absence of such direction, in direct order of maturi

make mandatory principal prepayments of the Term Loans in the manner set forth in clause (vi) below in amounts|
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p
romptly take all actions reasonably required by Applicable Law to permit such application) or (ii) result in material adverse tax consequences to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, as determined in good faith by the Borrower (taking int
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Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries (in each case, to the extent not excluded pursuant to Section 4.4(b)(ii)), and so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, at the option of the Borrower, the Borrower or such Subsidiaryj

relating to a Credit Party shall be reinvested in assets of a Credit Party. i i icati such Subsidiary may invest an amount equal to such Net Cash Proceeds in
manner that is not prohibited by this Agreement. (iii) [Reserved]. (iv) Project Emerald Milestone Payments. Until the outstanding Term Loans are paid in full, the Borrower shall make mandatory principal prepayments of the Term Loans in|

he manner set forth in clause (vi) below in amounts equal to one hundred percent i i the Borrower and its Subsidiaries pursuant to the Project Emerald Transaction within three (3) Busines:

Days after the date of receipt of such payments. 70 188290905 7]
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ROVISIONS SECTION 5.1 Interest. (a) Interest Rate Options. Revolving Credit Loans and Term Loans may be (i) with respect to Revolving Credit Loans denominated in Dollars or Term Loans denominated in Dollars, (A) Base Rate]
i Credit Loans denominated in Euros, Canadian Dollars or other Currencies (other than Dollars or Sterling), Eurocurrency Rate, Term CORRA Loans, or (iii) with respect toj
Revolving Credit LoanLoans denominated in Euros, Eurocurrency Rate Loans or (iv) with respect to Revolving Credit Loans denominated in Sterling, Daily Simple SONIA Loans, each as further provided herein. Subject to the

his Section, (x) at the election of the 71 188290905
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Borrower (where applicable), Revolving Credit Loans and Term Loans that are (1) Base Rate Loans shall bear interest at the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, and (2) Term SOFR Loans shall bear interest at Adjusted Term SOFR]
plus the Applicable Margin, at the election of the Borrower (where applicable), Revolving Credit Loans that are (1) Base Rate Loans shall bear interest at the Base Rate plus the Applicable Margin, (2) Term SOFR Loans shall bea

of the Administrative Agent. Interest shall continue to accrue on the Obligations after the filing by or against the Borrower of an
[Computation. Interest on each Loan shall be due and payable in arrears on each Interest Payment Date applicable thereto; provided that (i) in the event of any repayment or prepayment of any Eurocurrency Rate Loan, Term CORRA
Loan or Term SOFR Loan, accrued interest on the principal amount repaid or prepaid shall be payable on the date of such repayment or prepayment and (ii) in the event of any conversion of any Eurocurrency Rate Loan, Term CORRA

Loan or Term SOFR Loan prior to the end of the Interest Period therefor, accrued interest on such Loan shall be payable on the effective date of such conversion. All computations of interest for Base Rate Loans shall be made on the
basis of a year of 365 or 366 days, as the case may be, and actual days elapsed. All computations of interest for Daily Simple SONIA Loans shall be made on the basis of a year of 365 days 72 188290905 7
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land actual days elapsed. All other computations of fees and interest provided hereunder shall be made on the basis of a 360-day year and actual days elapsed (which results in more fees or interest, as applicable, being paid than iff

computed on the basis of a 365/366-day year), except that interest on Loans denominated in any Alternative Currency as to which market practice differs from the foregoing shall be computed in accordance with market practice for such
Loans. (d) Maximum Rate. In no contingency or event whatsoever shall the aggregate of all amounts deemed interest under this Agreement char

[Changes. In connection with the use or administration of any Benchmark, the Administrative Agent will have the right to make Conformin

Changes from time to time and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any other
to this Agreement or any other Loan Document. The Administrative Agent will
Conforming Changes in connection with the use or administration of any Benchmark. (f) Interest Act (Canada). For the purposes of the Interest Act (Canada), (i
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multiple of $100,000 in excess thereof (or such lesser amount as shall represent all of the Term SOFR Loans then outstanding) into Base Rate Loans (other than Swingline Loans) or (i) continue any Term SOFR Loans as Term SOFR]

Loans, (c) upon the expiration of any Interest Period therefor, continue any Term CORRA Loan as Term CORRA Loans, (d) upon expiration of any Interest Period therefor, continue any Eurocurrency Rate Loans as Eurocurrency Rate]

on the occurrence of the Interest Payment Date therefor, continue any such Daily Simple SONIA Loans as a Daily Simple SONIA LoansLoan. Whenever the Borrower desire:

0 convert or continue Loans as provided above, the 73 188290905 7|
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Borrower shall give the Administrative Agent irrevocable prior written notice in the form attached as Exhibit E (a “Notice of Conversion/Continuation”) not later than 11:00 a.m. (i) in the case of a Loan denominated in Dollars, at least three|
3) RFR Business Days before the day on which a proposed conversion or continuation of such Loan is to be effective, (ii) in the case of a Loan denominated in Sterling, at least five (5) RFR Business Days before the day on which a
roposed conversion or continuation of such Loan is to be effective, and (iii) in the case of a Loan denominated in any Alternative Currency that is to be a Eurocurrency Rate Loan, at least four (4) Eurocurrency Banking Days (or five (5

subject to Section 5.15(a)(iii)(A), the Borrower shall pay to the Administrative Agent, for the account of the Revolving Credit Lenders, a non-refundable commitment fee (the “Commitment Fee”) in Dollars at a rate per annum equal to the]
plicable Margin on the average daily unused portion of the Revolving Credit Commitment of the Revolving Credit Lenders (other than the Defaulting Lenders, if any); provided, that the amount of outstandin
onsidered usage of the Revolving Credit Commitment for the purpose of calculating the Commitment Fee. The Commitment Fee shall be payable in arrears within fifteen (15) days after the last Business Day of each calendar guarte!
during the term of this Agreement commencing December 31, 2018 and ending on the date upon which all Obligations (other than contingent indemnification obligations not then due) arising under the Revolvin
been indefeasibly and irrevocably paid and satisfied in full, all Letters of Credit have been terminated or expired and the Revolving Credit Commitment has been terminated. The Commitment Fee shall be distributed by the Administrative]
[Agent to the Revolving Credit Lenders (other than any 74 188290905 7|
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p
Alternative Currency or the Alternative L/C Currency payment amount. (v) Upon receipt by the Administrative Agent of each such payment, the Administrative Agent shall distribute to each such Lender at its address for notices set forth 7.

188290905 7]

slide126

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 213/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

[Extensions of Credit. The Extensions of Credit made by each Lender and each Issuing Lender shall be evidenced by one or more accounts or records maintained by such Lender or such Issuing Lender and by the Administrative Agent i
the ordinary course of business. The accounts or records maintained by the Administrative Agent and each Lender or the applicable Issuing Lender shall be conclusive absent manifest error of the amount of the Extensions of Credit madej

the Lenders or such Issuing Lender to the Borrower and its Subsidiaries and the interest and payments thereon. Any failure to so record or any error in doing so shall not, however, limit or otherwise affect the obligation of the Borrower]
hereunder to pay any amount owing with respect to the Obligations. In the event of any conflict between the accounts and records maintained by any Lender or any Issuing Lender and the accounts and records of the Administrative Agent
in respect of such matters, the accounts and records of the Administrative Agent shall control in the absence of manifest error. Upon the request of any Lender to the Borrower made through the Administrative Agent, the Borrower shall
execute and deliver to such Lender (through the Administrative Agent) a Revolving Credit Note, a Term Loan Note and/or a Swingline Note, as applicable, which shall evidence such Lender’s Revolving Credit Loan, Term Loans and/ol
ISwingline Loans, as applicable, to the Borrower in addition to such accounts or records. Each Lender may attach schedules to its Notes and endorse thereon the date, amount, currency and maturity of its Loans and payments with
respect thereto. (b) Participations. In addition to the accounts and records referred to in subsection (a), each Revolving Credit Lender and the Administrative Agent shall maintain in accordance with its usual practice accounts or recordg
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proportion of the aggregate amount of its Loans and accrued interest thereon or other such obligations (other than pursuant to Sections 5.9, 5.10, 5.11 or 12.3) greater than its pro rata share thereof as provided herein, then the Lende

Lender’s Loan included in such borrowing. Any payment by the Borrower shall be without prejudice to any claim the Borrower may have against a Lender that shall have failed to make such payment to the Administrative Agent. (b
[Payments by the Borrower; Presumptions by Administrative Agent. Unless the Administrative Agent shall have received notice from the Borrower prior to the date on which any payment is due to the Administrative Agent for the account off
he Lenders, the Issuing Lenders or the Swingline Lender hereunder that the Borrower will not make such payment, the Administrative Agent may assume that the Borrower has made such payment on such date in accordance herewith|

a in 77 188290905 7|
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reliance upon such assumption, distribute to the Lenders, the Issuing Lenders or the Swingline Lender, as the case may be, the amount due. In such event, if the Borrower has not in fact made such payment, then each of the Lenders,
leach of the Issuing Lenders or the Swingline Lender, as the case maybe, severally agrees to repay to the Administrative Agent forthwith on demand the amount so distributed to such Lender, such Issuing Lender or the Swingline Lender,
in Same Day Funds in the applicable Currency with interest thereon, for each day from and including the date such amount is distributed to it to but excluding the date of payment to the Administrative Agent, as the applicable Overnight

Rate. (c) Nature of Obligations of Lenders Regarding Extensions of Credit. The obligations of the Lenders under this Agreement to make the Loans, to issue or participate in Letters of Credit and to make payments under this Section,|

Imanifest error) that (x) if Adjusted Daily Simple SONIA is utilized in any calculations hereunder or under any other Loan Document with respect to any Obligations, interest, fees, commissions or other amounts, reasonable and adequate;

thereof to the Borrower. Upon notice thereof by the 78 188290905 7|
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ending request for a borrowing of, conversion to or continuation of RER Loans or Eurocurrency Rate Loans in each such affected Currency (to the extent of the affected RFR Loans or]

Loan or Eurocurrency Rate Loan denominated in an Alternative Currency, then such request shall be ineffective and (B)(I) any outstanding affected Term SOFR Loans will be deemed to have been converted into Base Rate Loans at thej

lend of the applicable Interest Period and (II) any outstanding affected Loans denominated in an Alternative Currency, at the Borrower’s election, shall either be converted into Base Rate Loans denominated in Dollars (in an amount equall
o the Dollar Equivalent of such Alternative Currency) immediately or, in the case of Eurocurrency Rate Loans or Term CORRA Loans, at the end of the applicable Interest Period or be prepaid in full immediately or, in the case off

[Eurocurrency Rate Loans or Term CORRA Loans, at the end of the applicable Interest Period; provided that if no election is made by the Borrower by the date that is the earlier of (x) three (3) Business Days after receipt b

the Borrower
lof such notice or

with respect to a Eurocurrency Rate Loan or Term CORRA Loan the last day of the current Interest Period, the Borrower shall be deemed to have elected clause (1)(1) above. Upon any such prepayment orf
conversion, the Borrower shall also pay accrued interest (except with respect to any prepayment or conversion of a Daily Simple SONIA Loan) on the amount so

repaid or converted, together with any additional amounts required|
pursuant to Section 5.9. (b) Laws Affecting Eurocurrency Rate or RFR Availability. If, after the date hereof, the introduction of, or any change in, an:

Applicable Law or any change in the interpretation or administration thereof by anyj

hereunder to make or maintain any Daily Simple SONIA Loan, Term SOFR Loan, Term CORRA Loan or Eurocurrency Rate Loan, or to determine or charge interest based upon any applicable RFR, Daily Simple SONIA, the Term SOFR

suspended and (i) if necessary to avoid such illegality, the Administrative Agent shall compute the Base Rate without reference to clause (c) of the definition of “Base Rate”. Upon receipt of an lllegalif

Notice, the Borrower shall, if
necessary to avoid such illegality, upon demand from any Lender (with a copy to the Administrative 79 188290905 7|
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[Agent), prepay or, if applicable, (A) convert all Term SOFR Loans to Base Rate Loans or (B) convert all RFR Loans or Eurocurrency Rate Loans denominated in an affected Alternative Currency to Base Rate Loans denominated in Dollars|

in each case, if necessary to avoid such illegality, the Administrative Agent shall compute the Base Rate without reference to clause (c) of the definition of “Base]

lawfully continue to maintain such Daily Simple SONIA Loans to such day or (II) with respect to Eurocurrency Rate Loans, Term CORRA Loans or Term SOFR Loans, on the last day of the Interest Period therefor, if all affected Lenders|

affected Lenders and the Borrower so long as the Administrative Agent has not received, by such time, written notice of objection to such amendment from Lenders comprising the Required Lenders. No replacement of a Benchmark with}

he commencement of any Benchmark Unavailability Period. Any determination, decision or election that may be made by the Administrative Agent or, if applicable, any Lender (or group of Lenders) pursuant to this Section 5.8(c)|
including any determination with respect to a tenor, rate or adjustment or of the occurrence or non-occurrence of an event, circumstance or date and any decision to take or refrain from taking any action or any selection, will be conclusive}
land binding absent manifest error and may be made in its or their sole discretion and without consent from any other party to 80 188290905 7|
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Currency) immediately or, in the case of Eurocurrency Rate Loans or Term CORRA Loans, at the end of the applicable Interest Period or (2) be prepaid in full immediately or, in the case of Eurocurrency Rate Loans or Term CORRA|
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ime that a tenor for any then-current Benchmark is not an Available Tenor, the component of the Base Rate based upon the then-current Benchmark that is the subject of such Benchmark Unavailability Period or such tenor for such
Benchmark, as applicable, will not be used in any determination of Base Rate. (d) Alternative Currencies and Alternative L/C Currencies. If, after the designation by the Revolving Credit Lenders of any currency as an Alternative Currenc:

Dollar Equivalent no longer being readily calculable with respect to such currency, (ii) such currency being impracticable for the Lenders to loan or the applicable Issuing Lender(s) to issue or extend a Letter of Credit or (iv) such currenc
i in which the Required Revolving Credit Lenders are willing to make Extensions of Credit or the applicable Issuing Lender(s) are willing to issue or extend Letters of Credit (each of clauses (i), (ii), (i) and (iv),
an Alternative]

3 g
liquidation or reemployment of funds or from any fees payable) which may arise, be attributable to or result due to or as a consequence of (a) any failure by the Borrower to make any payment when due of any amount due hereunder in|
connection with an RFR Loan or a Eurocurrency Rate Loan, (b) any failure of the Borrower to borrow or continue an RFR Loan or a Eurocurrency Rate Loan or convert to an RFR Loan or a Eurocurrency Rate Loan on a date specified|

Event of Default) or (e) the assignment of any Daily Simple SONIA Loan other than on the Interest Payment Date therefor or any Eurocurrency Rate Loan, Term CORRA Loan or Term SOFR Loan other than on the last day of the Interest
Period applicable thereto as a result of a request by the Borrower pursuant to Section 5.12(b). In the case of a Eurocurrency Rate Loan, the amount of such loss or expense shall be determined, in the applicable Lender’s sole discretion,

Eurocurrency Rate Loan was in fact so funded, and using any reasonable attribution or averaging methods which such Lender deems appropriate and practical. A certificate of such Lender setting forth the basis for determining such|
lamount or amounts necessary to compensate such Lender shall be forwarded to the Borrower through the Administrative Agent and shall be conclusively presumed to be correct save for manifest error. All of the obligations of the Credif
Parties under this Section 5.9 shall survive the resignation or replacement of the Administrative Agent or any assignment of rights by, 82 188290905 7|
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or the replacement of, a Lender, the termination of the Revolving Credit Commitments and the repayment, satisfaction or discharge of all obligations under any Loan Document. SECTION 5.10 Increased Costs. (a) Increased Costs]

[deposits, reserves, other liabilities or capital attributable thereto; or (iii) impose on any Lender or any Issuing Lender or (with respect to Eurocurrency Rate Loans) the London or other applicable offshore interbank market any other

suffered. (b) Capital Requirements. If any Lender or any Issuing Lender determines that any Change in Law affecting such Lender or such Issuing Lender or any Lending Office of such Lender or such Lender’s or such Issuing Lender’

issued by such Issuing Lender, to a level below that which such Lender or such Issuing Lender or such Lender’s or such Issuing Lender’s holding company could have achieved but for such Change in Law (taking in
Lender’s policies and the policies of such Lender’s or such Issuing Lender’s holding compan
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Lender’s or such Issuing Lender’s or such other Recipient's right to demand such compensation; provided that the Borrower shall not be required to compensate any Lender or an Issuing Lender or any other Recipient pursuant to thig}

188290905 7]
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Agent, then the applicable Withholding Agent shall be entitled to make such deduction or withholdin

and shall timely pay the full amount deducted or withheld to the relevant Governmental Authority in accordance with Applicable Law and, if such Tax is an Indemnified Tax, then the sum payable by the applicable Credit Party shall be
increased as necessary so that, after such deduction or withholding has been made (including such deductions and withholdings applicable to additional sums payable under this Section), the applicable Recipient receives an amoun
lequal to the sum it would have received had no such deduction or withholding been made. (c) Payment of Other Taxes by the Credit Parties. The Credit Parties shall timely pay to the relevant Governmental Authority in accordance witl

required to be withheld or deducted from a payment to such Recipient and any reasonable expenses arising therefrom or with respect thereto, whether or not such Indemnified Taxes were correctly or legally imposed or asserted by the
relevant Governmental Authority. A certificate as to the amount of such payment or liability delivered to the Borrower by a Recipient (with a copy to the Administrative Agent), or by the Administrative Agent on its own behalf or on behalf of

attributable to such Lender (but only to the extent that any Credit Party has not already indemnified the Administrative Agent for such Indemnified Taxes and without limiting the obligation of the Credit Parties to do so), (ii) any Taxes]

JAgent the original or a certified copy of a receipt issued by such Governmental Authority evidencing such payment, a copy of the return reporting such payment or other evidence of such payment reasonably satisfactory to the|

JAgent, at the time or times reasonabl

applicable law or 85 18829 7|
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reasonably requested by the Borrower or the Administrative Agent as will permit such payments to be made without withholding or at a reduced rate of withholding. In addition, any Lender, if reasonabl
Administrative Agent, shall deliver such other documentation prescribed by Applicable Law or reasonabl

requested by the Borrower or thej

uested by the Borrower or the Administrative Agent as will enable the Borrower or the Administrative Agent to determing]

Borrower or the Administrative Agent), executed copies of IRS Form W-9 certifying that such Lender is exempt from United States federal backup withholding tax; (B) any Foreign Lender shall, to the extent it is legally entitled to do so,|

on the reasonable request of the Borrower or the Administrative Agent), whichever of the following is a|

licable: (1) in the case of a Foreign Lender claiming the benefits of an income tax treaty to which the United States is al
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profits” or “other income” article of such tax treaty; (2) executed copies of IRS Form W-8ECI; (3) in the case of a Foreign Lender claiming the benefits of the exemption for portfolio interest under Section 881(c) of the Code, (x) a certificate|
substantially in the form of Exhibit H-1 to the effect that such Foreign Lender is not a “bank” within the meaning of Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code, a “10 percent shareholder” of the Borrower within the meaning of Section 881(c)(3)(B) off
he Code, or a “controlled foreign corporation” described in Section 881(c)(3)(C) of the Code (a “U.S. Tax Compliance Certificate”) and (y) executed copies of IRS Form W-8BEN-E; or 86 188290905
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in United States federal withholding Tax, duly completed, together with such supplementary documentation as may be prescribed by Applicable Law to permit the Borrower or the Administrative Agent to determine the withholding o

IAgreement. Each Lender agrees that if any form or certification it previously delivered expires or becomes obsolete or inaccurate in any respect, it shall update such form or certification or promptly notify the Borrower and thel

ill 87 188290905
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in a less favorable net after-Tax position than the indemnified party would|

Survival. Each party’s obligations under this Section 5.11 shall survive the resignation or replacement of the Administrative Agent or any assignment of rights by, or the replacement of, a Lender, the termination of the Revolving Credit

ICommitments and the repayment, satisfaction or discharge of all obligations under any Loan Document. SECTION 5.12 Mitigation Obligations; Replacement of Lenders. (a) Designation of a Different Lending Office. If any Lender requests|
lcompensation under Section 5.10, or requires the Borrower to pay any Indemnified Taxes or additional amounts to any Lender or any Governmental Authority for the account of any Lender pursuant to Section 5.11, then such Lender shall,
at the request of the Borrower, use reasonable efforts to designate a different Lending Office for funding or booking its Loans hereunder or to assign its rights and obligations hereunder to another of its offices, branches or affiliates, if, il
the judgment of such Lender, such designation or assignment (i) would eliminate or reduce amounts payable pursuant to Section 5.10 or Section 5.11, as the case may be, in the future and (i) would not subject such Lender to an
unreimbursed cost or expense and would not otherwise be disadvantageous to such Lender. The Borrower hereby agrees to pay all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by any Lender in connection with any such|
designation or assignment. (b) Replacement of Lenders. If (i) any Lender requests compensation under Section 5.10, (i) the Borrower is required to pay any Indemnified Taxes or additional amounts to any Lender or any Governmental

for the account of any Lender pursuant to Section 5.11, and, in each case, such Lender has declined or is unable to designate a different Lending Office in accordance with Section 5.12(a) or (iii) if any Lender is a Defaulting|
Lender or a Non-Consenting Lender, then the Borrower may, at its sole expense and effort, upon notice to such Lender and the Administrative Agent, require such Lender to assign and delegate, without recourse (in accordance with and}
Isubject to the restrictions contained in, and consents required by, Section 12.9), all of its interests, rights (other than its existing rights to payments pursuant to Section 5.10 or Section 5.11) and obligations under this Agreement and the

related Loan Documents to an Eligible Assignee that shall assume such obligations (which assignee may be another Lender, if a Lender accepts such assignment); : (i) the Borrower shall have paid to the Administrative Agentf
the assignment fee (if any) specified in Section 12.9; (i) such Lender shall have received payment of an amount equal to the outstanding principal of its Loans and funded participations in Letters of Credit and Swingline Loans, accrued|

interest thereon, accrued fees and all other amounts payable to it hereunder and under the other Loan Documents (including any amounts under Section 5.9) from the assignee (to the extent of such outstanding principal and accrue

nterest and fees) or the Borrower (in the case of all other amounts); 88 188290905 7|
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lamendment, waiver or consent. A Lender shall not be required to make any such assignment or delegation if, prior thereto, as a result of a waiver by such Lender or otherwise, the circumstances entitling the Borrower to require such|

0 (2) Business Days after receipt of such notice, the Borrower shall provide Cash Collateral for the amount by which the L/C Obligations exceeds the L/C Sublimit. (a) Grant of Security Interest. The Borrower, and to the extent provided]

Defaulting Lender’s obligation to fund participations in respect of L/C Obligations (including, as to Cash Collateral provided by a Defaulting Lender, any interest accrued on such obligation) for which the Cash Collateral was so provided,)
as may otherwise be provided for herein. 89 188290905
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lexcess Cash Collateral; provided that, subject to Section 5.15, the Person providing Cash Collateral, the Issuing Lenders may agree that Cash Collateral shall be held to support future anticipated Fronting Exposure or other obligations

time or times as mayj
ro rata basis of any amounts owing by

lof any Loans or funded participations in Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans in respect of which such Defaulting Lender has not fully funded its appropriate share, and (2) such Loans were made or 90 188290905 7]
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he related Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans were issued at a time when the conditions set forth in Section 6.2 were satisfied or waived, such payment shall be applied solely to pay the Loans of, and funded participations in Letters of]
Credit or Swingline Loans owed to, all Non-Defaulting Lenders on a pro rata basis prior to being applied to the payment of any Loans of, or funded participations in Letters of Credit or Swingline Loans owed to, such Defaulting Lender until|

be entitled to receive letter of credit commissions pursuant to Section 3.3 for any period during which that Lender is a Defaulting Lender only to the extent allocable to its Revolving Credit Commitment Percentage of the stated amount off

Percentages (calculated without regard to such Defaulting Lender’s Revolving Credit Commitment) but only to the extent that such reallocation does not cause the aggregate Revolving Credit Exposure of any Non-Defaulting Lender to]
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Q).
leach Credit Party certifying as to the incumbency and genuineness of the signature of 92 188290905
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matters as the Administrative Agent shall request (which such opinions shall expressly permit reliance by permitted successors and assigns of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders, subject to customa gualifications). (c) Collateral}
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recordations under the Uniform Commercial Code should be made to evidence or perfect security interests in all assets of such Credit Party, indicating among other things that the assets of each such Credit Party are free and clear of an:

except for Permitted Liens). (d) Financial Matters. (i) Solvency Certificate. The Borrower shall have delivered to the Administrative Agent a certificate, in the fori
attached hereto as Exhibit J, and certified as accurate by the chief financial officer of the Borrower. (ii) Financial Statements. The Administrative Agent shall have received: (A) [reserved]; (B

slide144

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 237/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

C) projections

repared by management of cash and debt balances, income statements and cash flow statements of the Borrower and its subsidiaries, on an annual basis for each fiscal year after the Closing Date through the term of the
Credit Facility. (iii) Payment at Closing. The Borrower shall have paid or made arrangements to pay contemporaneously with closing (A) to the Administrative Agent, the Arranger and the Lenders the fees set forth or referenced in Section|
5.3 and any other accrued and unpaid fees or commissions due hereunder, (B) all reasonable fees and out-of-pocket expenses of McGuireWoods LLP, as counsel to the Administrative Agent, to the extent accrued and unpaid prior to ol

B =
Closing Date, the documentation and other information requested by the Administrative Agent or any Lender at least ten (10) Business Days prior to the Closing Date in order to comply with requirements of the PATRIOT Act, applicable]

requested by the Administrative Agent or any Lender at least fifteen (15) Business Days

prior to the Closing Date. (iv) Investment Policy. The Administrative Agent shall have received a copy of the Investment Policy. (f) [Reserved
Reserved]. Without limiting the generality of the provisions of Section 11.3(c), for p

urposes of determining compliance with the conditions specified in this Section 6.1, the Administrative Agent and each Lender that has signed this]
Agreement shall be deemed to have consented to, approved or accepted or to be 94 188290905 7]
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95 188290905 7 satisfied with, each document or other matter required thereunder to be consented to or approved by or acceptable or satisfactory to a Lender unless the Administrative Agent shall have received written notice from such

lany representation and warranty that is qualified b

materiality or reference to Material Adverse Effect, which such representation and warranty shall be true and correct in all respects, on and as of such borrowing, continuation,|

issuance or extension date with respect to such Letter of Credit or after giving effect to the issuance or extension of such Letter of Credit on such date., (i) demonstrates compliance with the financial covenants set forth in Section 9.11 a
lof the last day of the applicable Measurement Period for which financial statements have been delivered pursuant to Section 8.2(a), and (iii) demonstrates compliance with Section 2.4(b)(iii). (c) Notices. The Administrative Agent or thel
[Swingline Lender, as applicable, shall have received a Notice of Borrowing or Notice of Conversion/Continuation, as applicable, from the Borrower in accordance with Section 2.3(a) or Section 5.2, as applicable, or the applicable Issuin
Lender shall have received a Letter of Credit Application from the Borrower in accordance with Section 3.2, as applicable. (d) New Swingline Loans/Letters of Credit. So long as any Lender is a Defaulting Lender, (i ingli
Ishall not be required to fund any Swingline Loans unless it is satisfied that it will have no Fronting Exposure after giving effect to such Swingline Loan and (ii) the Issuing Lenders shall not be required to issue, extend, renew or increase
Letter of Credit unless it is satisfied that it will have no Fronting Exposure after

iving effect thereto. 5 Note: Required Revolving Credit Lenders consented to making further Loans or Extensions of Credit during the Forbearance Period|
subject to the satisfaction of all conditions in Section 6.2 other than the failure to satisfy conditions solely as a result of the occurrence of the Specified Events of Default,
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roperties of such Person or any of its Subsidiaries or (i) any order, injunction, writ or decree of any Governmental Authority or any arbitral award to which such Person or its property is subject; or (d) violate any Applicable Law in any]

Collateral as contemplated under the Loan Documents and which filings, registrations and deliveries have either (x
erfection of a security interest in i located outside of the United States) or (d) the exercise, in all material respects, by the Administrative Agent of its rights under the Loan Documents or the remedies in respect]
of the Collateral pursuant to the Collateral Documents (other than with respect to any 96 188290905
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[Collateral located outside of the United States and except for filings, notices or similar actions that may be reguired in connection with enforcement of any security interest under A
thereto. This Agreement constitutes, and each other Loan Document when|

[Agreement has been, and each other Loan Document, when delivered hereunder, will have been, duly executed and delivered by each Credit Party that is pa
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so delivered will constitute, a legal, valid and binding obligation of such Credit Party, enforceable against each Credit Party that is party thereto in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptc

in accordance with GAAP consistently applied throughout the period covered thereby, except as otherwise expressly noted therein, and (ii) fairly present the financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, in all material respects,
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[SECTION 7.7 No Default. No Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. SECTION 7.8 Ownership of Property; Liens; Investments. (a) Each Credit Party and each of its Subsidiaries has good record and marketable title in|
‘ee simple to, or valid leasehold interests in, all real property necessary or used in the ordinary conduct of its business, except for such defects in title as would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have

complete and accurate list of all Investments (other than Investments permitted under Sections 9.2(a) through (e) and (g) through (i)) held by any Credit Party or any Subsidiary of a Credit Party on the date hereof (or such later date as|

ws and 98 188290905 7]
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levels or asbestos-containing material as that term is defined under Environmental Laws on any property currently owned or operated by the Borrower and its Subsidiaries; and Hazardous Materials have not been released, discharged of]

p
Federal or state laws, except where any failure to comply would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Each Pension Plan that is intended to be a qualified plan under Section 401(a) 99 188290905 7]
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d a favorable determination, opinion ol isory letter from the IRS to the effect that the form of such Plan is gualified under Section a) of the Code and the trust related thereto has been determined by thej

rohibited transaction or violation of the fiduciary responsibility rules with respect to any Plan that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. (c) Except as would not reasonably be expected to]

Inor any ERISA Affiliate has engaged in a transaction that could be subject to Section 4069 or Section 4212(c) of ERISA; and (vi) no Pension Plan has been terminated by the plan administrator thereof nor by the PBGC, and no event o

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 245/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

not subject to United States law (a “Foreign Plan”): i the terms of any Foreign Government Scheme or Arrangement or any Foreign Plan have been made, or, if applicable,
laccrued, in accordance with normal accounting practices, except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; (i) the fair market value of the assets of each funded Foreign Plan, the liability of each insurer fol

jany Foreign Plan funded through insurance or the book reserve established for any Foreign Plan, together with any accrued contributions, is sufficient to procure or provide for the accrued benefit obligations, as of the date hereof, witl
respect to all current and former participants in such Foreign Plan according to the actuarial assumpti i used to account for such obligations in accordance with applicable generally accepted accountin

principles, except as would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; and 100 188290905 7]
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Adverse Effect. No report, financial statement, certificate or other information furnished (in writing) by or on behalf of any Credit Party to the Administrative Agent or any Lender in connection with the negotiation
pther Loan Document (taken as a whole with any other information so furnished) contains any material misstatement of fact or 101 188290905

of this Agreement and anyj
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product developed, produced, manufactured, tested, packaged.
roduced, manufact

p
roduced, manufactured, tested, packaged, labeled, marketed, sold, and/or distributed by a Credit Party or any of its Subsidiaries has been recalled directly or]

informal) or claim commenced, brought, 102 188290905
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p
ossible, or potential obligation on the part of any such Person to undertake, or to bear all or any portion of the cost of, any remedial action of any nature, in each case of any citation, notification, limitation, warning, audit finding, request or

respective Related Parties. (i) Each Credit Party and each Subsidiary of any Credit Party, in each case, that is party to a contract with the Federal Government of the United States has an ethics and compliance program that complies withi

D
aggregate, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 103 188290905
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JAnti-Money Laundering Laws or Sanctions by a governmental authority that enforces Sanctions or any Anti-Corruption Laws or Anti-Money Laundering Laws, or (D) directly or indirectly derives revenues from investments in, of]
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notice or show cause notice, in each case, would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. (d) No material amount due to any Credit Party or any Subsidiary of any Credit Party or any predecessor of any of the foregoing

, Or prime contractor or subcontractor (at any tier) in each case with respect to any Material Contract. (e) No Credit Party nor any Subsidiary of any Credit Part
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changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for such fiscal year, including detail showing revenue by product type, setting forth in each case in comparative form the figures for the previous fiscal year, all in reasonable detail and]

prepared in accordance with GAAP, audited and accompanied by a report of an independent certified public accountant of nationally recognized standing, which report shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted auditing

g
revious fiscal year and the corresponding portion of the previous fiscal year, all in reasonable detail, certified by the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, treasurer, assistant treasurer or controller of the Borrower as fairly}
presenting the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the Borrower and its 106 1882909
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Subsidiaries, on a Consolidated basis, in accordance with GAAP, subject only to normal year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes. (d) (c) Annual Business Plan and Budget. As soon as available, but in any event within|

ear prepared by management, in form reasonably]
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent, provided, that the annual business plan and budget for the 2025 fiscal year shall be delivered on or before September 1, 2024. (e) (d) Additional Financial Statements. As soon as available, but in|

chief financial officer, treasurer, assistant treasurer or controller of the Borrower as fairly presenting the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries, on a Consolidated basis, in accordance]
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ith GAAP, subject only to normal year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes. (f) (e) Monthly Financial Statements. Within thirty (30) days after the end of each of the first two (2) calendar months of each fiscal quarter of the]

Borrower, a consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as at the end of such month, related consolidated statements of income or operations, and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, including detail

romptly make such information available to the Lenders in accordance with its customary practice) or agree to participate in conferences described below, as applicable: (a) concurrently with the delivery of the financial statements}

Jstatements, (iii) demonstrates the calculation of Immaterial Subsidiaries and compliance with Section 8.12(b) and (iv) in the event of any change in generally accepted accounting principles used in 107 188290905
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he preparation of such financial statements, the Borrower shall also rowde if necessary for the delermmauon of compliance with Sectlon 9.11, a statement of reconclllallon conforming such financial statements to GAAP to the extent

regarding financial or other operational results of any Credit Party or any Subsidiary thereof; promptly after the assertion or occurrence thereof‘ notice of any action or proceeding against or of any noncompliance b an Credn Pa

laddress, county or other relevant jurisdiction, state, record owner and, in the case of leases of property, lessor, lessee, and lease expiration date) of all 108 188290905
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p
as from time to time reasonably requested by the Administrative Agent or any Lender; and (m) promptly, such additional information regarding the business, financial, legal or corporate affairs of any Credit Party or any Subsidiary thereof,
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Borrower or its securities) (each, a “Public Lender”). The Borrower hereby agrees that it will use commercially reasonable efforts to identify that portion of the Borrower Materials that may be distributed to the Public Lenders and that (w) all

obligation to mark any Borrower Materials “PUBLIC”. SECTION 8.3 Notice of Litigation and Other Matters. Promptly (but in no event later than ten (10) days after any Responsible Officer of any Credit Party obtains knowledge thereof)

'Warning Letter”, or similar notification, (ii) any notification of a mandated or requested recall affecting the products manufactured, sold or distributed by such Credit Party or such Subsidiary, or (iii) any other material correspondence whichf

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 258/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

; (e) the occurrence of any event or the existence of any other matter that has resulted or could reasonably be expected to result in Environmental Liability to the Borrower or any Subsidiary in excess of the]

hreshold Amount; 110 188290905

Governmental Authori
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the occurrence of any event or the existence of any other matter that has resulted or would reasonably be expected to result in a recall affecting (x) BioThrax, AV7909 or any other product which is sold or distributed by a Credit Partyl
under a Material Government Contract or (y) other products manufactured, sold or distributed by a Credit Party or a Subsidiary of a Credit Party with a fair market value in the case of this clause (y) in excess of the Threshold Amount; and]
of any material change in accounting policies or financial reporting practices by any Credit Party or any Subsidiary thereof. Each notice pursuant to Section 8.3 shall be accompanied by a statement of a Responsible Officer of the]
Borrower setting forth details of the occurrence referred to therein and stating what action the Borrower has taken and proposes to take with respect thereto. Each notice pursuant to Section 8.3(a) shall describe the provisions of this]
lAgreement and any other Loan Document that have been breached. Each notice pursuant to Section 8.3(d) shall be accompanied by the applicable “Warning Letter", notification or correspondence received by the Borrower or such
roperties or assets, unless the same|

jaction to maintain all rights, privileges, permits, licenses and franchises necessary or desirable in the normal conduct of its business, except to the extent that failure to do so would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse]

receipt by the Administrative Agent of written notice thereof, (b) name the Administrative Agent as an additional insured party thereunder and (c) in the case of each casualty insurance policy, name the Administrative Agent as lender’
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cooperate with the Administrative Agent and provide information reasonably required by the Administrative Agent and the Lenders to comply with the Flood Insurance Laws, (iii) deliver to the Administrative Agent evidence of suchf

ompliance in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Administrative Agent, including evidence of annual renewals of such insurance and (iv) furnish to the Administrative Agent prompt written notice of any re-designation of anyj
licable Laws and all orders, writs,

such improvements located on a Mortgaged Property into or out of a special flood hazard area. SECTION 8.8 Compliance with Laws. Comply in all material respects with the requirements of all A
injunctions and decrees applicable to it or to its business or property, except (to the extent not constituting a breach of any representation or warranty ursuant to Section 7.16) in such instances in which (a) such requirement off
Applicable Law or order, writ, injunction or decree is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted; or (b) the failure to compl! rewi be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect]
ISECTION 8.9 Books and Records. (a) Maintain proper books of record and account, in which full, true and correct in all material respects entries in conformity with GAAP consistently applied shall be made of all financial transactions and

Imaterial matters involving the assets and business of the Borrower or such Subsidiary (subject to year-end audit adjustments and the absence of footnotes), as the case may be; (b) maintain such books of record and account in materiall

g
pay or reimburse fees, commissions and expenses in connection with the Transactions and (b) the Revolving Credit Facility to (i) finance the Transactions, (i) provide ongoing
orking capital, (iii) finance Permitted Acquisitions, (iv) finance Capital 112 188290905

he Closing Date to (i) finance the Transactions and (ii
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[Subsidiary is an Immaterial Subsidiary) as necessary for the total assets and total revenue of all Domestic Subsidiaries that are not Guarantors, taken as a whole, to constitute less than ten percent (10%) of Consolidated total assets and}

S|
Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing and (ii) all outstanding Investments 113 188290905
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acquisition by

roper proceedings and appropriate reserves are being maintained with respect
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a) BioThrax Receivables Account. Maintain the BioThrax Receivables Account with (i) a Lender or (ii) another depository bank that is not a Lender, subject to a customary Account Control Agreement in favor of the Administrative Agent

Schedule 8.18, in each case within the applicable corresponding time limits specified on such schedule. SECTION 8.19 Lender Calls. Upon the reasonable request of the Administrative Agent, participate in status calls with thel

lAmount”), and shall consummate the Junior Capital Raise by April 30July 31, 2024; provided (or such later date as agreed to by the Administrative Agent in its reasonable discretion but, in any event, no later than September 29, 2024)}

p
incurrence of such Indebtedness through the Revolving Credit Maturity Date (including, for the avoidance of doubt, and notwithstanding the covenant commencement date under Section 9.11(a), compliance with the Consolidated Debtf
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IAdministrative Agent in its reasonable discretion. SECTION 8.22 Flood Insurance Matters. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that, if there is an a increase, extension, or renewal of any of the Loans ol
[Commitments (excluding (a) any continuation or conversion of borrowings, (b) the making of any 116 188290905 7]

3 slide167

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 266/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

[Revolving Credit Loans or Swingline Loans or (c) the issuance, renewal or extension of Letters of Credit) may, in the sole discretion of the Administrative Agent, be subject to (and conditioned upon): (i i i of all flood zone
determination certifications, acknowledgements and evidence of flood insurance and other flood-related documentation with respect to such Mortgaged Property reasonably sufficient to evidence compliance with Flood Insurance Laws|

and as otherwise reasonably required by the Administrative Agent and (ii) the earlier to occur of (A) the date that occurs thirty (30) days after the Borrower has delivered the documentation set forth in clause (i) of this Section to thej
or (B) the Administrative Agent's receipt of written confirmation from each of the Lenders that flood insurance due diligence and flood insurance compliance has been complete
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by such Lender (such written confirmation not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed). ARTICLE IX NEGATIVE COVENANTS Until all of the Obligations (other than contingent, indemnification obligations not then due) havel
been paid and satisfied in full in cash, all Letters of Credit have been terminated or expired (or been Cash Collateralized) and the Revolving Credit Commitments terminated, the Credit Parties will not, and will not

respective Subsidiaries to. SECTION 9.1 Liens. Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any Lien upon any of its propel i i i imitation, |IP Rights or owned real property) or revenues, whether now owned oi
hereafter acquired, or sign or file or suffer to exist under the Uniform Commercial Code of any jurisdiction a financing statement that names the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries as debtor

other than precautionary lease filings in respect

benefited thereby is not increased except as contemplated by Section 9.3(c), (iii) the direct or any contingent obligor with respect thereto is not changed, and (iv) any renewal or extension of the obligations secured or benefited thereby is|

lof business in connection with workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance and other social security legislation, other than any Lien imposed by ERISA; 117 188290905 7]
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on the Collateral securing the Secured Obligations, Liens securing obligations in respect of Indebtedness under any economic development incentive program from any State or any subdivision (including an

connection with such Person becoming a Subsidiary, (i) such Liens do not attach to any Property of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries other than those of the Subsidiary acquired or the property or assets so acquired (and property ol
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k) and (). SECTION 9.2 Investments. Make an

officers, directors and employees of the Borrower
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hereof, so long as the amount of any Investment made pursuant to this clause (f) is not increased at any time above the amount of such Investment set forth on Schedule 7.8(d); (g) Acquisitions which meet the following requirements
each a “Permitted Acquisition”) which, in the case of a Permitted Acquisition that is a Limited Condition Acquisition, shall be subject to Section 1.14; (i) the lines of business of the Person to be (or the property of which is to be) so

ay of the most recently ended Measurement Period for which financial statements have been delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(a), (b) or (d) on a pro forma basis (after giving effect to such Acquisition, including any Extensions of Credif
to be made to fund any such Acquisition) as though such Acquisition had been consummated as of the first day of such Measurement Period, and (B) the Borrower shall have provided to the Administrative Agent not less than five (5
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average life to maturity of such refinancing, refunding, renewal or extension shall not be prior to or shorter than that applicable to the Indebtedness prior to such refinancin , renewal or extension and (iv) the terms relating tof
principal amount, amortization, maturity, collateral (if any) and subordination (if any), and other material terms taken as a whole, of any such refinancin ing, r i r Indebtedness, and of any agreement entered into
and of any instrument issued in connection therewith, are no less favorable in any material respect to the Credit Parties or the Lenders than the terms of any agreement or instrument governing the Indebtedness being refinanced|)
refunded, renew extended 121 188290905 7
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of all such Indebtedness, together with any Indebtedness incurred pursuant to Section 9.3(1), at any one time outstanding shall not exceed the greater of $50,000,000 and 5% of Consolidated Tangible Assets; Indebtedness of the

Borrower or any other Credit Party arising in connection with any economic development incentive program or grant from any State or any subdivision thereof (including any city or county) in connection with the Borrower’s or such Credif
Party’s business development activities in such State or subdivision; provided that the aggregate principal amount of such Indebtedness outstanding at any time shall not exceed $15,00: 0; (h) unsecured Indebtedness or Subordinated|
rovided that (i) if the proceeds of such Indebtedness are used to fund all or a portion of a Permitted Acquisition, the Borrower is in compliance, as of the|
date of incurrence (if not a Limited Condition Acquisition or, if a Limited Condition Acquisition and the Borrower has elected to test on such date) or as of the date of entering into a definitive agreement for such Permitted Acquisition (if
Limited Condition Acquisition and the Borrower elects to test on such date), as applicable, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the incurrence of such Indebtedness and the use of proceeds thereof with Section 9.11 as of the last day
of the most recently ended Measurement Period for which financial statements have been delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(a), (b) or (d), (ii) if the proceeds of such Indebtedness are not to fund all or a portion of a Permitted Acquisition |
he Borrower is in compliance, as of the date of incurrence, on a pro forma basis after giving effect to the incurrence of such Indebtedness with (A) a Consolidated Leverage Ratio 0.25 inside of the applicable level re
Section 9.11(b) and (B) the other covenants set forth in Section 9.11, in each case, as of the last day of the most recently ended Measurement Period for which financial statements have been delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(a), (b) o
(d), (iii) no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would be caused by the incurrence of such Indebtedness, (iv) such Indebtedness does not mature prior to the date that is one hundred eighty (180) days afte
he then latest Revolving Credit Maturity Date or maturity date of any Term Loan, as applicable, at the time of the incurrence of 122 188290905
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lconditions of this Agreement, taken as a whole and (viii) the aggregate principal amount of such Indebtedness outstanding at any time shall not exceed $10,000,000; for the purpose of satisf

of, Section 8.20; ) ent payment obligations incurred in connection with (i) any Permitted Acquisition or (ii) other Acquisition to which the re

such Indebtedness, together with an Indebtedness incurred pursuant to Section 9.3(f), at any one time outstanding shall not exceed the greater of $50,000,000 and 5% of Consolidated Tangible Assets; (m) unsecured Indebtedness|

pbligations of the Borrower or any Subsidiary under letters of credit, banker’s acceptances or bank guarantee denominated in a currency other than Dollars issued for the account of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, provided that i

laggregate amount of all such obligations (including 123 188290905 7]
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Loan may]

be forgiven, reduced or cancelled upon the consummation of the Adapt US/Canada Integration; (u) any intercompany loan payable to Emergent International b

Irish Newco Subsidiary (the “Irish Newco/Adapt Intercompany Loan")]
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Acquisition Investment (the “PaxVax Intercompany Loan"), the principal amount of which PaxVax Intercompan
lor distribution of the PaxVax US Shares, directly or indirectly, to a Credit Part

Loan may be forgiven, cancelled or reduced by the fair market value of PaxVax US, upon the assignment, transfer, dividend
x) Indebtedness of the Credit Parties under the 2028 Senior Notes in an aggregate outstandin

rincipal amount not to exceed $450,000,000 at any time and|

renewal or extension, the principal amount (excluding interest paid]
remiums and defeasance costs, fees, commissions and expenses|
associated with such refinancing, refunding, renewal or extension[reserved)], (i) no obligors, other than any direct or any contingent obligor with respect to such Indebtedness or any obligor that would have been required to become an|
obligor with respect to the Indebtedness being refinanced, refunded, renewed or extended, shall be an obligor under such refinancing, refunding, renewal or extension, (iii) the final maturity date of such refinancing
lextension, at the time of incurrence thereof, shall not be prior to the date that is one hundred eight

refunding, renewal o
180) days after the then latest Revolving Credit Maturity Date or Term Loan Maturit
other than fees, interest rate, rate floors, i i

Date, as applicable, and (iv) the material term:
repayment, redemption 124 188290905 7
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form of the Junior Capital Raise. In the event that an item of Indebtedness meets the criteria of more than one of the categories of Indebtedness described in clauses (f), (g), (), (I). (p

, in its sole discretion, divide and reallocate the Indebtedness among multiple available categories pursuant to more than one

one or more other Subsidiaries, provided that when any Credit Party (other than the Borrower) is merging or amalgamating with another Subsidiary, such Credit Pal

rger to which any]
other than the Borrower) is a party, such Credit Party is the surviving Person; (e) so long as no Default or Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or would result therefrom, each of the Borrower and any of its|

hich the Borrower is a 125 188290905
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ssets in accordance with Section 9.4(b) or (c) or has substantially no assets may be dissolved; (g) any Immaterial Subsidiaries may merge, amalgamate, dissolve, liquidate, consolidate with or into the Borrower or any Domestid]
, or Dispose of (whether in one transaction or in a series of transactions) all or substantially all of its assets (whether now owned or hereafter acquired) to or in favor of the Borrower or any Domestic Subsidiary; j

han Section 9.4(h)) and any Disposition constituting a Restricted Payment permitted under Section 9.6; (f) non-exclusive licenses of IP Rights (other than any IP Rights related to BioThrax or AV7909) on customary terms consistent withf

lor condemnation awards or that gives rise to a taking by a Governmental 126 188290905
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b) the Borrower and each Subsidiary may declare and make dividend payments or other distributions payable solely in the common stock or other Qualified Equity Interests of such Person|
including in connection with any stock split, combination or reclassification of common stock or other Qualified Equity Interests of such Person); (c) so long as no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or woul
result therefrom, the Borrower may purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire its common Equity Interests issued b j i concurrent issue of new shares of its common stock or other common|

27 188290905 7|
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d) so long as no Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing or would result therefrom, the Borrower may make Restricted Payments (including, without limitation, an

Borrower's common Equity Interests pursuant to stock purchase programs entered into by the Borrower from time to time); provided that the aggregate amount of Restricted Payments made pursuant to this Section 9.6(d) shall not exceed|
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$1,000,000 per calendar year; (e) for the avoidance of doubt, the Borrower may issue and sell its common Equity Interests or any warrants or options with respect thereto pursuant to any executive compensation or stock option plan; (f

transaction with a Person other than an Affiliate; provided that the foregoing restriction shall not apply to () transactions between or among the Credit Parties, (b) emplo

128 188290905 7|

ment and severance arrangements between the Borrower or any
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and other benefits and indemnification arrangements, (f) Adapt US/Canada Integration and (g) the PaxVax US Integration. SECTION 9.9 Burdensome Agreements. Enter into or permit to exist any Contractual Obligation (other than this]

extent any such negative pledge relates to the property financed by or subject of such Indebtedness, (iii) any agreement in effect at the time any Subsidiary becomes a Subsidiary of the Borrower, so long as such agreement was not

in violation of Applicable Law. SECTION 9.11 Financial Covenants. (a) [Reserved)]. (b) [Reserved]. (a) Consolidated Debt Service Coverage Ratio. Commencing with the fiscal
Debt Service Coverage Ratio as of the last day of any Measurement Period of the Borrower to be less than (x) with respect to the fiscal quarters ending March 129 188290905 7|
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130 188290905 7 September 30, 2024 May 31, 2024 April 30, 2023 May 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 July 31, 2023 August 31, 2023 September 30, 2023 October 31, 2023 November 30, 2023 December 31, 2023 JanuaryMarch 31, 2024
[February 29, 2024 [**] Period Commencing on January 1, 20232024 and Ending on the Dates Set Forth Below: October 31, 2024 [**] [**] November 30, 2024 June 30, 2024 [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] $[**] [**] [**] December 31

2024 [**] [**] 31, 2024, June 30, 2024, September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2024, 2.25 to 1.00 and with respect to each fiscal quarter ending thereafter, 2.50 to 1.00. (b) Consolidated Leverage Ratio. Commencing with the fiscall

uarter ending on March 31, 2024, permit the Consolidated Levera i Measurement Period of the Borrower to be greater than 4.50 to 1.00. (c) Consolidated EBITDA. Permit Consolidated EBITDA to be less]

than the amounts set forth below for the periods set forth below: January 31, 2025 July 31, 2024 April 30, 2024 [**] Cumulative Minimum EBITDA February 28, 2025 [**] [**] March 31, 2025 August 31, 2024 [**] [**] (d) Maximum Capital
[Expenditures. Permit cumulative Capital Expenditures (excluding any customer rebates or reimbursements) to be i

**] Cumulative C I
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131 188290905 7 April 30, 2023 May 31, 2023 June 30, 2023 July 31, 2023 August 31, 2023 September 30, 2023 October 31, 2023 November 30, 2023 December 31, 2023 JanuaryMarch 31, 2024 February 29, 2024 May 31, 2024
September 30, 2024 Ending on the Dates Set Forth Below: [**] [**] October 31, 2024 [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**] [**][**] June 30, 2024 November 30, 2024 [**] [**] December 31, 2024 Expenditures [**] April 30, 2024 July 31|
2024 January 31, 2025 [**] [**] February 28, 2025 [**] [**] August 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 [* ity as of March 8, 2024, and as of the last Business Day of each two-week period thereafter, to be lesd

than $75,000,000. [*
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[Section 163(i) of the Code or any successor provision. 132 188290905
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lanything to the contrary contained herein, with respect to the first two (2) occasions that aany single violation of Section 9.11(c) may occur during the period from the Fourth Amendment Effective Date through February 29, 2024, any such|

licable grace periods, in respect of any Indebtedness or G

slide184

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 288/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

remains unremedied or is not waived by the counterparty to such Hedge Agreement prior to any termination of the Revolving Credit Commitments or acceleration of the Loans pursuant to Section 10.2; or (f) Insolvency Proceedings, Etc|

9
ay its debts as they become due, or (i) any writ or warrant of attachment or execution or similar process is issued or levied against all or any material part of the property of any such Person and is not released, vacated or fully bonded

occurs with respect to a Pension Plan or Multiemployer Plan which has resulted or would reasonably be expected to result in liability of the Borrower under Title 134 188290905
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IV of ERISA to such Pension Plan, such Multiemployer Plan or the PBGC in an aggregate amount in excess of the Threshold Amount, or (ii) the Borrower or any ERISA Affiliate fails to pay when due, after the expiration of any applicable]
installment payment with respect to its withdrawal liability under Section 4201 of ERISA under a Multiemployer Plan in an aggregate amount in excess of the Threshold Amount; or (j) Invalidity of Loan Documents. Any|

lany provision of any Loan Document, or purports to revoke, terminate or rescind any provision of any Loan Document; or (k) Change of Control. There occurs any Change of Control; or (I) Collateral Documents. Any Collateral Documenf]

not entered into by the Borrower or such Subsidiary within thirty (30) days after such termination or expiration of, or receipt of notice to terminate, such Material Contract or, if on the termination of such 30-day period, the parties to such
Material Contract are engaging in active negotiations to extend or replace such Material Contract (as determined by the Borrower in

termination or expiration occurred on the first day of such Measurement Period, to the loss of Consolidated EBITDA attributable to such terminated or expired Material Contract(s), including income statement items attributable to such
Material Contract or the products subject thereto, as determined by the Borrower in good faith and believed by the Borrower to be reasonable; or (0) Subordination. (i) The subordination provisions of the documents evidencing ol
lgoverning any Subordinated Indebtedness (the “Subordination Provisions™) shall, in whole or in part, terminate, cease to be effective or cease to be legally valid, binding and enforceable against any holder of 135 188290905
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of any of the Subordination Provisions, (B) that the

the applicable Subordinated Indebtedness; or (ii) the Borrower or an!
ubordination Provisions exist for the benefit of the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and the Issuing Lenders or (C) that all payments of principal of or premium and interest on the applicable Subordinated Indebtedness, or realized from
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upon the occurrence of an Event of Default specified in Section 10.1(f) or (g), the Credit Facility shall be automatically terminated and all Obligations shall automatically become due and payable without presentment, demand, protest ol

IAdministrative Agent an amount equal to the Minimum Collateral Amount of the aggregate then undrawn and unexpired amount of such Letters of Credit. Amounts held in such Cash Collateral account shall be applied by thej
Administrative Agent to the payment of drafts drawn under such Letters of Credit, and the unused portion thereof after all such Letters of Credit shall have expired or been fully drawn upon, if any, shall be applied to repay the othe
Secured Obligations in accordance with Section 10.4. After all such Letters of Credit shall have expired or been fully drawn upon, the Reimbursement Obligation shall have been satisfied and all other Secured Obligations shall have been|

Documents and Applicable Law, in order to satisfy all of the Secured Obligations. SECTION 10.3 Rights and Remedies Cumulative; Non-Waiver; etc. (a) The enumeration of the rights and remedies of the Administrative Agent and the]
Lenders set forth in this Agreement is not intended to be exhaustive and the exercise by the Administrative Agent and the Lenders of an shall not preclude the exercise of any other rights or remedies, all of which shall be

cumulative, and shall be in addition to any other right or remedy given hereunder or under the other Loan Documents or that may now or hereafter exist at law or in equity or by suit or otherwise. No delay or failure to take action on the;

part of the Administrative Agent or any Lender in 136 188290905
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lexercising any right, power or privilege shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power ol

exercising on its own behalf the rights and remedies that inure to its benefit (solely in its capacity as Administrative Agent) hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, (i) any Issuing Lender or the Swingline Lender from exercising

q
Administrative Agent or any Lender has exercised any remedy set forth in this Agreement or any other Loan Document, all payments received on account of the Secured Obligations and all net proceeds from the enforcement of the

g
in proportion to the respective amounts described in this clause Third payable to them; Fourth, to payment of that portion of the Secured Obligations constituting unpaid principal of the Loans, Reimbursement Obligations and paymenf]
obligations tl owing under Secured Hedge 137 188290905 7]
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Agreements and Secured Cash Management Agreements and to Cash Collateralize any L/C Obligations then outstanding, ratably among the holders of such obligations in proportion to the respective amounts described in this clau
Fourth payable to them; and Last, the balance, if any, after all of the Secured Obligations have been indefeasibly paid in full, to the Borrower or as otherwise required by Applicable Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Secured Obligations|
rising under Secured Cash Management Agreements and Secured Hedge Agreements shall be excluded from the application described above if the Administrative Agent has not received written notice thereof, together with such

lsupporting documentation as the Administrative Agent may request, from the applicable Cash Management Bank or Hedge Bank, as the case may be following such acceleration or exercise of remedies and at least three (3) Businesd

unpaid and to file such other documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Lenders, the Issuing Lenders and the Administrative Agent (including any claim for the reasonable compensation, expenses}
isbursements and advances of the Lenders, the Issuing Lenders and the Administrative Agent and their respective agents and counsel and all other amounts due the Lenders, the Issuing Lenders and the Administrative Agent undel
[Sections 3.3, 5.3 and 12.3) allowed in such judicial proceeding; and (b) to collect and receive any monies or other ayable or deliverable on any such claims and to distribute the same; and any custodian, receiver, assignee|
trustee, liuidator, sequestrator or other similar official in any such judicial proceeding is hereby authorized by each Lender and each Issuing Lender to make such payments to the Administrative Agent and, in the event that the]
Administrative Agent shall consent to the making of such payments directly to the Lenders and the Issuing Lenders, to pay to the Administrative Agent any amount due for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements an
the Secured Parties, shall have the right, exercisable at the direction of the Required Lenders, to credit bid and purchase for the benefit of the Administrative Agent and the Secured Parties all or any portion of Collateral at any sale thereof
conducted by the Administrative Agent under the provisions of the UCC, includini rsuant to Sections 138 188290905 7|
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9-610 or 9-620 of the UCC, at any sale thereof conducted under the provisions of the United States Bankruptcy Code, including Section 363 thereof, or a sale under a

lan of reorganization, or at any other sale or foreclosure conducted by}
the Administrative Agent (whether by judicial action or otherwise) in accordance with Applicable Law. Such credit bid or

urchase may be completed through one or more acquisition vehicles formed by the Administrative Agent to make]
documents providing for the governance of the acquisition vehicle or vehicles, and|

Isuch credit bid or purchase and, in connection therewith, the Administrative Agent is authorized, on behalf of itself and the other Secured Parties, to ad

Lenders contained in Section 12.2. (b) Each Lender hereby agrees, on behalf of itself and each of its Affiliates that is a Secured Party, that, except as otherwise provided in any Loan Document or with the written consent of the]
[Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders, it will not take any enforcement action, accelerate obligations under any of the Loan Documents, or exercise any right that it might otherwise have under Applicable Law to credit bid af]
foreclosure sales, UCC sales or other similar dispositions of Collateral. ARTICLE X| THE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT SECTION 11.1 Appointment and Authority. (a) Each of the Lenders and each Issuing Lender hereby irrevocabliy]
lappoints, designates and authorizes Wells Fargo to act on its behalf as the Administrative Agent hereunder and under the other Loan Documents and authorizes the Administrative Agent to take such actions on its behalf and to exercise}
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such powers as are delegated to the Administrative Agent by the terms hereof or thereof, together with such actions and powers as are reasonably incidental thereto. The provisions of this Article are solely for the benefit of the]

lany of the Secured Obligations, together with such powers and discretion as are reasonably incidental thereto (including, without limitation, to enter into additional Loan Documents or supplements to existing Loan Documents on behalf of]
the Secured Parties). In this connection, the Administrative Agent, as “collateral agent” and any co-agents, sub-agents and attorneys-in-fact appointed by the 139 188290905 7]
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[Documents) as if set forth in full herein with respect thereto. SECTION 11.2 Rights as a Lender. The Person serving as the Administrative Agent hereunder shall have the same rights and powers in its capacity as a Lender as any otherl
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b) The Administrative Agent, the Arrangers and their respective Related Parties shall not be liable for any action taken or not taken by it under or in connection with this Agreement or any other Loan Document or the transactiong]
contemplated hereby or thereby (i) with the consent or at the request of the Required Lenders (or such other number or percentage of the Lenders as shall be necessary, or as the Administrative Agent shall believe in good faith shall be}

J
upon any statement made to it orally or by telephone and believed by it to have been made by the proper Person, and shall be fully protected in relying and shall not incur any liability for relying thereon. In determining compliance with an:

[Document pursuant to which it is to become a Lender or Issuing Lender hereunder shall be deemed to have consented to, approved and accepted and shall deemed satisfied with each document or other matter required thereunder to bej
onsented to, approved or accepted by such Lender or Issuing Lender or that is to be acceptable or satisfactory to such Lender or Issuing Lender. 141 188290905
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SECTION 11.5 Delegation of Duties. The Administrative Agent may perform any and all of its duties and exercise its rights and powers hereunder or under any other Loan Document by or through any one or more sub-agents appointed|
by the Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent and any such sub-agent may perform any and all of its duties and exercise its rights and powers by or through their respective Related Parties. The exculpatory provisions of this}
Article shall apply to any such sub-agent and to the Related Parties of the Administrative Agent and an ly to their respective activities in connection with the syndication of the Credit Facili
activities as Administrative Agent. The Administrative Agent shall not be responsible for the negligence or misconduct of any sub-agents except to the extent that a court of competent jurisdiction determines in a final and nonappealable]
udgment that the Administrative Agent acted with gross negligence or willful misconduct in the selection of such sub-agents. SECTION 11.6 Resignation of Administrative Agent. (a) The Administrative Agent may at any time give notice o
its resignation to the Lenders, the Issuing Lenders and the Borrower. Upon receipt of any such notice of resignation, the Required Lenders shall have the right, in consultation with the Borrower, to appoint a successor, which shall be
bank with an office in the United States, or an Affiliate of any such bank or financial institution with an office in the United States. If no such successor shall have been so ap olmed b the Required Lenders and shall have acce ted such

Administrative Agent is appointed) and (i) except for any indemnity payments or other amounts then owed to the retiring or removed Administrative Agent, all payments, communications and determinations provided to be made by, to or|
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payments or other amounts owed to the retiring or removed Administrative Agent as of the Resignation Effective Date or the Removal Effective Date, as applicable), and the retiring or removed Administrativel
[Agent shall be discharged from all of its duties and obligations hereunder or under the other Loan Documents. The fees payable by the 142 188290905 7
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Parties in respect of any actions taken or omitted to be taken by any of them while the retiring or removed Administrative Agent was acting as Administrative Agent or relating to its duties as Administrative Agent that are carried out|

satisfactory to the retiring Issuing Lender to effectively assume the obligations of the retiring Issuing Lender with respect to such Letters of Credit. SECTION 11.7 Non-Reliance on Administrative Agent and Other Lenders. Each Lendel

ordinary course and is entering into this Agreement and the other Loan Documents to which it is a party as a Lender for the purpose of making, acquiring, purchasing and/or holding the commercial loans set forth herein as may be

D ospec! pel pp
Laws relating to the Transactions and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other Loan Documents and (e) it has made its own independent decision to enter into this Agreement and the other Loan Documents tol
hich it is a party and to extend credit hereunder and thereunder. Each Lender and each Issuing Lender also acknowledges that (i) it will, independently and without reliance upon the Administrative Agent, any 143 188290905
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Arranger or any other Lender or any of their respective Related Parties (A) continue to make its own credit analysis, appraisals and decisions in taking or not taking action under or based upon this Agreement, any other Loan Document ol

[Section 11.9, the Administrative Agent will, at the Borrower'’s expense, execute and deliver to the applicable Credit Party such documents as such Credit 144 188290905 7]
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roperty}
constituting Collateral in a transaction constituting a Disposition permitted pursuant to Section 9.5 to a Person other than a Credit Party, the Liens created by any of the Collateral Documents on such property shall be automatically]

its capacity as a Lender and, in such case, only to the extent expressly provided in the Loan Documents. The Administrative Agent shall not be required to veri

payment, prepayment or repayment sent by the Administrative Agent (or any of its Affiliates) with respect to such payment, prepayment or repayment, as aj that was not preceded or accompanied by a notice of payment,
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defense based on “discharge for value” or any similar doctrine. (b) Without}
the Administrative Agent in writing of such occurrence. (c) In the case of either clause (a)(i) o!
a)(ii) above, such Erroneous Payment shall at all times remain the property of the Administrative Agent and shall be segregated by the Payment Recipient and held in trust for the benefit of the Administrative Agent, and upon deman
the Administrative Agent the amount of any such Erroneous Pa ortion thereof) as to which such a demand was made in Same Day Funds and in the currency so received, together with interest thereon in re:
from and including the date such Erroneous Payment (or portion thereof) was received by such Payment Recipient to the date such amount is repaid to the Administrative Agent at the Overnight Rate. (d) In the event that an Erroneous|
is not recovered by the Administrative Agent for any reason, after demand therefor by the Administrative Agent in accordance with immediately preceding clause (c), from any Lender that is a Payment
Recipient or an Affiliate of a Payment Recipient (such unrecovered amount as to such Lender, an “Erroneous Paj ici , then at the sole discretion of the Administrative Agent and upon the Administrative Agent's written|

notice to such Lender (i) such Lender shall be deemed to have made a cashless assignment of the full face amount of the portion of its Loans (but not its Commitments) of the relevant Class with respect to which such Erroneous Paymen{]

lwas made (the “Erroneous Payment Impacted Class”) to the Administrative Agent or, at the option of the Administrative Agent, the Administrative Agent's applicable lending affiliate in an amount that is equal to the Erroneous Payment

overn in the event of any conflict with the terms and conditions of Section 12.9 and (3) the Administrative Agent may reflect such assignments in the Registe
r i r porti r i r ipi s received such Erroneou

ereto hereby agrees that (x) in the event an Erroneous Payment (or portion thereof) is not recovered from any Payment Reci i J
Agent (1) shall be subrogated to all the rights of such Payment Recipient with respect to such amount and (2) is authorized to set o any and all amounts af
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lany time credited as payment or satisfaction of any of the Obligations, the Obligations or any part thereof that were so credited, and all rights of the Payment Recipient, as the case may be, shall be reinstated and continue in full force and|
effect as if such payment or satisfaction had never been received. (f) Each party's obligations under this Section 11.11 shall survive the resignation or replacement of the Administrative Agent or any transfer of right or obligations by, or the]
replacement of, a Lender, the termination of the Commitments or the repayment, satisfaction or discharge of all Obligations (or an i under any Loan Document. (g) Nothing in this Section 11.11 will constitute a waiver ol
Notices.

release of any claim of the Administrative Agent hereunder arising from any Payment Reci s receipt of an Erroneous Payment. ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS SECTION 12.1 a) Notices Generally. Except in the case o
or overnight courier service, mailed by certified or registered mail or sent by facsimile as follows: If to the Borrower: With copies to: Emergent BioSolutions Inc. 400300 Professional Drive Gaithersburg, land 20879 Attention of:|
General Counsel Telephone No.: imi **] E-mail: [**] Emergent BioSolutions Inc. 400300 Professional Drive Gaithersburg, Maryland 20879 Attention of: Chief Financial Officer Telephone No.: [**] Facsimile No.:
**] and Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP 200 Crescent Court, Suite 300 Dallas, Texas 75201 Attention of: Vynessa Nemunaitis 147 188290905 7]
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[Telephone No.: [**] Facsimile No.: [**] Email: If to Wells Fargo as Administrative Agent, Swingline Lender or Issuing Lender (for payments and requests for Extensions of Credit): With copies to: If to any Lend
National Association MAC D1109-019 1525 West W.T. Harris Blvd. Charlotte, North Carolina 28262 Attention of: Syndication Agency Services Telephone No.: imil 8 0 Bank, National Association 600 Well:
[Fargo 600 S. 4th Street, 12th7th Floor Minneapolis, MN 55415-1526 MAC: N9300-129 Attention of: Troy JeffersonDennis Boe Telephone No.: [**] Facsimile No.: [**] E-mail: troy.jefferson[**] To the address of such Lender set forth on the
Register with respect to deliveries of notices and other documentation that may contain material non-public information. Notices sent by hand or overnight courier service, or mailed by certified or registered mail, shall be deemed to have]
iven when received; notices sent by facsimile shall be deemed t i i iven during normal business hours for the recipient, shall be deemed to have been given at the opening of business]

delivered through electronic communications to the extent ovided in said paragraph (b Electronic Communications. Notic:

the next business day for the recipient). Notices icati rovided in paragraph (b) below, shall be effective as pr . (b ions. Noti
land other communications to the Lenders and the Issuing Lenders hereunder may be delivered or furnished by electronic communication (including e-mail and Internet or intranet websites) pursuant to procedures approved by thej

[communications sent to an e-mail address shall be deemed received upon the sender’s receipt of an acknowledgement from the intended recipient (such as 148 188290905 7|
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the “return receipt requested” function, as available, return e-mail or other written acknowledgement), and (ii) notices or communications posted to an Internet or intranet website shall be deemed received upon the deemed receipt b
the intended recipient at its e-mail address as described in the foregoing clause (i) of notification that such notice or communication is available and identifying the website address therefor; provided that, for both clauses (i) and (ii) above |
if such notice, email or other communication is not sent during the normal business hours of the recipient, such notice, email or other communication shall be deemed to have been sent at the opening of business on the next business day}
for the recipient. (c) Administrative Agent's Office. The Administrative Agent hereby designates its office located at the address set forth above, or any subseguent office which shall have been specified for such purpose by written notice tol

he ers, as the Administrative erein, to which payments due al which Loans wi etters of Credit requested. (d) Change o ress, Etc. Each of the
Borrower, the Administrative Agent, an Issum Lender or the Swmllne Lender may change |ts address or other contact mformat\on for notices and othEI communications heleundel by notice to the other parties hereto. Any Lender ma

code any Ag n C aterials ort'le atfol gh the Platfol eneral ic: rocedures and policies implem the
IAdministrative Aem and its Related Part\es each of the Lenders, the Issuin Lendels and the Borrowel acknowledges and agrees that distribution of information through an electronic means is not necessarily secure in all respects, the]

Credit Party's or the Administrative Agent’s transmission of communications through the Internet (including the Platform), except to the extent that such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses are determined by a court of
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judgment to have resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Agent Pat ided that in no event shall any Agent Pa

Lender, any Issuing Lender or any other Person for indirect, special, incidental, 149 188290905
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blic Lender]

t r ehalf of such Pul
nder or its delegate, in accordance with such Public Lender’s compliance]
ortion of the Platform and]

conseguential or punitive damages, losses or expenses (as oppo:
0 at all times have selected the “Private Side Information” or simi
rocedures and Applicable Law, including United States Federal and state securities Aj

[that may contain material non-public information with respect to the Borrower or its secu

plicable Laws, to make reference to Borrower Materials that are not made available through the “Public Side Information”
rities for purposes of United States Federal or state securities Applicable Laws. SECTION 12.2 Amendments, Waivers and Consents. Except as sef]
provided in any Loan Document (including Section 5.8(c)), any term, covenant, agreement or condition of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents may be amended or waived by the Lenders, and|

onsent of the Reguired Lenders) and delivered to the

if, such amendment, waiver or consent is in writing and approved by the Required Lenders (or by the Administrative Agent with the ct
i r R i hall: (a) increase or extend the Commitment of any Lender (or reinstate any Commitment terminated|

orth below or as specificall

[Administrative Agent and, in the case of an amendment, signed by the Borrower; provided, that no amendment, waiver or consent s|
rincipal of, or the rate of interest specified herein on, any Loan or Reimbursement Obligation, or (subject to clause (iv) of the proviso set forth in the paragraph below) any fees or other amounts payable hereunder or under any other Loan|

", “Super Majority Required Lenders” or any other
or grant any consent hereunder, without the written consent of each Lender direct!

and adversely affected thereby; 150 188290905 7]

slide201

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 310/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

f) consent to the assignment or transfer by any Credit Party of such Credit Party’s rights and obligations under any Loan Document to which it is a party (except
; (g r i b

as permitted pursuant to Section 9.4), in each case, without the written
iconsent of each Lender; (g) release (i) all of the Guarantors or (i) Guarantors comprising substantially all of the credit support for the Secured Obligations, in any case, from any Guaranty Agreement, in each case without the written|
onsent of each Lender; (h) release or subordinate all or substantially all of the Collateral or release or subordinate any Collateral Document (or any Lien created thereby) which would have the effect of releasing all or substantially all o

olving Credit Facility set forth in Section 6.2 or)

quire the Revolving Credit Lenders to make Revolving Credit Loans]

Majority Required Lenders; provided further, that (i) no amendment, waiver or

er under this Agreement (including Section 11.9(c!
[Swingline Lender in addition to the Lend:
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he Administrative Agent upon such amendment or waiver, (viii) the Administrative Agent and the Borrower shall be permitted to amend any provision of the Loan Documents (and such amendment shall become effective without any]
urther action or consent of any other party to any Loan Document) if the Administrative Agent and the Borrower shall have jointly identified an obvious error or any error, ambiguity, defect or inconsistency or omission of a technical o
immaterial nature in an: rovision and (ix) the Administrative Agent (and, if applicable, the Borrower) may, without the consent of any Lender, enter into amendments or modifications to this Agreement or any of the other Loan|

in full all
xpenses; Indemnit redit Part intly and severall

nt and the other Loan Documents. SECTION 12.3]
; . (a) Costs and Expenses. The Borrower and each other Cr rty, joi . shal inistrati
onable fees, charges and disbursements of one primary counsel for the Administrative Agent and, if reasonabl!

ministrative Agent and its Affiliates (including the
ch relevant

Lender (including the fees, charges and dish
h relevant j i rcei i intere:

nrel
em

ess there is an actual or perceived conflict of inter
n Documents, including its rights under this Sectio
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against, and

hold each Indemnitee harmless from, and shall pay or reimburs

e any such Indemnites nyl

Environmental Claims), penalties, damages, liabilities and related expenses (including the fees, charges and disbursements of one primary counsel for all Indemnitees and, if reasonably necessary, a single local counsel in each relevant]

consultant’s fees, provided that such indemnity shall not, as to an
nonappealable judgment to have resulted from the i

a , eni re e time that the applicable unreimbursed expense or in
[the Total Credit Exposure has been reduced to zero, then based on such Lender's share of the Total Credit Exposure immediatel

jamounts, such payment to be made severall

them based on such Revolving Credit Lenders’ Revolving Credit Commitment Percentage (determined as 153 188290905
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above amal sing m the use uninten [ information or otl ute it thr er Ir natiol stem
connect\on Wllh IhIS AC reement or the other Loan Documems or mE transactions contem| \ated hereb or theleb € Pﬂ ments. All amounts due under 1|1IS Section shall be pa able romptly after demand therefor. (f Survwal Each

nder this other Loan ender, such Issuin ingline ective iliates, irrespective of whether r, such Issuing Lender, the Swingline Lender o
any such Affiliate shall have made any demand under this At reement or an Othel Loan Document and althoug h SLICh 0b|laﬂ0ﬂ$ of the BD”OWE[ or such Cfele Party may be commcent or unmatuled or are owed to a blﬂﬂch or office off

uch Issuing Lender, the Swingline Lender or their 154 188290905
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rt of the Southern District of New York sittini
t all claims in respect of any such action, litigation or proceeding may be heard and determ
t a final judgment in any such action, litigation or proceeding shall be conclusive and ma

arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any other Loan Document in any court referred to in paragraph (b) of this Section. Each of the parties hereto hereb
efense of an inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such action or proceeding in any such court. (d) Service of Process. Each party hereto irrevocably consents to service of process in the manner provided for notices in Section 12.1.
Nothing in this Agreement will affect the right of any party hereto to serve process in any other manner permitted by Applicable Law. SECTION 12.6 Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES, TO
HE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMEN
[OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER THEORY). EACH PARTY HERETO (A) CERTIFIES THAT 155|
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NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PERSON HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PERSON WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE]
HE FOREGOING WAIVER AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS BY, AMONG OTHER]
[ITHINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION. SECTION 12.7 Reversal of Payments. To the extent any Credit Party makes a payment or payments to the Administrative Agent for the ratable benefit off

o the Lenders. Therefore, the Borrower agrees ion, shall be entitled to tem|
Successors and Assigns; Participations. (a) Successors and Assigns Generally. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns
hereby, except that neither the Borrower nor any other Credit Party may assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the Administrative Agent and each Lender and no Lende!

, the Related Parties of each of the Administrative Agent and the Lenders) an: i i or claim under or b
ender may at any time assign to one or more assignees all or a portion of its rights and obligations under this Agreement (including all or a portion of its Revolving Credil
he time owing to it); provided that, in each case with respect to any Credit Facility, any such assignment shall be subject to the following conditions: 156 188290905 7]
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i) Minimum Amounts. The aggregate amount of the Commitment (which for this purpose includes Loans outstanding thereunder) or, if the applicable Commitment is not then in effect, the principal outstanding balance of the Loans of the]
i tion with respect to such assignment is delivered to the Administrative Agent or, if “Trade Date” is specified in the Assignment and

an $5,000,000 or, if less, then the remaining amount of the assigning Len evolving Credit Commitment or b each of the Administrative Agent and, so long as|
no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Borrower otherwise consents (each such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed); provided that the Borrower shall be deemed to have given its consent ten (10;

required for any assignment in respect of the Revolving Credit Facility.
la processing and recordation fee of $3,500 for each assignment; provided that (A) only one such fee will be payable in connection with sir gni
Administrative Agent may, in its sole discretion, elect to waive such 157 188290905 7]
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processing and recordation fee in the case of an assinmem The assi nee, if it is not a Lender, shall deliver to the Administrative A ent an Administrative Questionnaire. (v) No Assignment to Certain Persons. No such assignment shall

an Len of its Sul lar onP 0N W on becoming a Len eunder, would constitute any of the g Per n thi e (C). (vi) Certain Additional ents. ection with
ny assignment of ri hIS and 0b|IC atIOI1S Of an Defaultm Lender hereunder no SUCH assig nmem shall be effectlve LII'I|ESS and until, in addmon to the other COI1dIIIDI1$ thereto set forth herein, the parties to the assignment shall make such|

non-fiduciary agent of the Borrower, shall maintain at o f its offices in Charlotte, North Carolina, a copy of each Assignment and Assumption delivered to it and a register for the recordation of the names and addresses of the Lenders,|

land the Commitment of, and principal amounts of (and stated interest on) the Loans 158 188290905 7]
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bllat\ons and (iii the Borrower, the Admmlstratlve Agent, each Issuing Lender, the Swin |IHE Lender and the other Lenders shall contlnue to deal solel

and directly with such Lender in connection with such Lender’s rights and]|
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affects such Participant. The Borrower agrees that each Participant shall be entitled to the benefits of Sections 5.9, 5.10 and 5.11 (subject to the requirements and limitations therein, including the requirements unde;
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lwhose name is recorded in the Participant Register as the owner of such participation for all purposes of this Agreement notwithstanding any notice to the contrary. For the avoidance of doubt, the Administrative Agent (in its capacity a:

or substitute any such pledgee or assignee for such Lender as a party hereto. ashless Settlement. Notwithstanding ant ng to the contrary contained in this Agreement, any Lender may exchange, continue
[a portion of its Loans in connection with any refinancing, extension, Ioan modlflcatlon or S|m||ar transaotlon ermitted b the terms of this Agreement, pursuant to a cashless settlement mechanism aj roved by the Borrower, th

sonable efforts to, except with respect to an| nmental bank regulatory authorit mination or regulaton prompt
0 the extent lactlcable and otheIW|se ermmed b - plicable Law ) as to the extent required by Ap Ilcable Laws O re: ulauons or in any legal, judicial, admlnlstratlve roceed\n or other compulson
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IAdministrative Agent and the Lenders may disclose the existence of this Agreement and information about this Agreement to market data collectors, similar service providers to the lending industry and service providers to the
JAdministrative Agent and the Lenders in connection with the administration of this Agreement, the other Loan Documents, and the Commitments. For purposes of this Section, “Information” means all information received from any Credit}

uired to maintain the confidentiality of Information as provided in this Section shall be considered to have complied with its obligation to do so if such Person has exercised the]
h Information as such Person would accord to its own confidential information. SECTION 12.1. I uties. Each of the Credit Party’s obligati i
by such Credit Party at its sole cost and expense. SECTION 12.12 All Powers Coupled with Interest. All powers of attorney and other authori

Imade as of a specific date), shall survive the Closing Date and shall not be waived by the execution and delivery of this Agreement, any investigation made by or on behalf of the Lenders or any borrowing hereunder. (b) Notwithstanding
ny termination of this Agreement, the indemnities to which the Administrative Agent and the Lenders are entitled under the provisions of this Article XIl and any other provision of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents shal
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art of this Agreement. (b) Electronic Execution. The words “execute,” “execution,” “5|ned 0 “5|nalure "

recordkeeping system, as na as pr plicable Law, including the Federal Ele: natures In Global an atio he New Yor ate Electronic Signatures an
Records Act, or an! Othel similar state laws based on the Uniform Electromc Transactions Act. Each party hereto agrees that an Electromc Signature or execution in 1'16 form Of an Elecnomc Record shall be valid and binding on itself and|
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proceedings or litigation among the Administrative Agent, the Lenders and any of the Credit Parties, electronic images of this Agreement or any other Loan Document (in each case, including with respect to anyl
Isignature pages thereto) shall have the same legal effect, validity and enforceability as any paper original, and (B) waives any argument, defense or right to contest the validity or enforceability of 162 188290905 7
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with respect to any signature pages thereto. SECTION 12.17 Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall remain in effect from the

the Loan Documents based solely on the lack of paper original copies of any Loan Documents, includin

a) In connection with all aspects of each transaction contemp

ervices in connection therewith (includin

Borrower shall or would be in breach of any other covenant contained in Articles VIl or IX. SECTION 12.20 No Advisory or Fiducian
its Affiliates’ underst: i) the facilities provided for hereunder and any r

erstanding, that (i) th
are an arm's-length col

ated hereby or the

in favor of the Borrower with respect
i ror advising the Borrower or any of its Affiliates on
hereby except those obligations expressi

espective of whether any Arranger or Lender has advi
r or any of its Affiliates with respect to the financing tran:
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legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice with respect to any of the transactions contemplated hereby (including any amendment, waiver or other modification hereof or of any other Loan Document) and the Credit Parties have consulte
b

. Each Lender, the Arrangers and any Affiliate thereof may accept fees and other consideration from the Borrower or any Affiliate thereof for servic
lotherwise without having to account for the same to any other Lender, the Arrangers, the Borrower or any Affiliate of the foregoing. .21 Inconsistencies with Othi
etween this Agreement and any other Loan Document, the terms of this Agreement shall control; provided rovision of the Collateral Documents

lobligation of the Borrower in respect of any such sum due from it to the Administrative Agent or any Lender hereunder or under the otl ments shall, notwithstanding any judgment in a currenc

than that in which such sum is denominated in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement (the “Agreement Currency”), be discharged only to the extent that on the Business Day following recei ivel
Agent or such Lender, as the case may be, of any sum adjudged to be so due in the Judgment Currency, the Administrative Agent or such Lender, as the case may be, may in accordance with normal banking procedures purchase thef

Person who may be entitled thereto under applicable law). SECTION 12.23 Acknowledgement and Consent to Bail-In of Affected Financial Institutions. Notwithstanding anythi in any Loan Document or in any othel
reement, arrangement or understanding among any such parties, each party hereto acknowledges that any liability of any Affected Financial Institution arising under any Loan Document, to the extent such liability is unsecured, may bel

subject to the Write-Down and Conversion Powers of the applicable Resolution Authority and agrees and consents to, and acknowledges and agrees to be bound by: 164 188290905
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U e g, or a bridge institution that may otherwise conferred on it, and that such shares or ot er |nstlumentso ownership will be accepted b rights wi
respect to any such liabili under this Agreement or any other LDan Document or (iii) the varlatlon of the terms of such liability in connecuon wnh the exercise of the Wute Duwn and Conversmn Powers of the applicable Resoluuon

g Letters of Credit which rem utstar n the Closing Date shall continue as Letters of Credit under thi A eement, an Secl Hedge Agreement and Seci Cash Mar ent Agreements existing on thel
C|OSII’\ Date shall commue as Secured Hedce Al reements and Secured Cash Manaement Agreements under IhIS Ag reement without an fulthel action b an PE[SDI’] exce] tthat the Admlnlstratlve AC ent shall make such 1lanSfEIS Off

g
a) Each Lender (x) represents and warrants, as of the date such Person became a Lender party hereto, and (y) covenants, from the date such Person became a Lender party hereto to !he date such Person ceases being a Lender part

lentrance into, participation in, administration of and performance of the Loans, the Letters of Credit or the Commitments or this Agreement; 165 188290905
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otherwise, for Hedge Agreements or any other agreement or instrument that is a such sul redit Suf , each such , @ “Supporte e parties acknowledge and agree as follows with respect to thej
I'ESD|LIIIOI1 ower of the FDIC under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and Title |1 of the Dodd-Frank Wall S'ueet Reform and Consumer Protection Act (together with the re ulatlons romulgated thereunder, the “U.S. Special Resolutior

Resolution Regime, the transfer of such Supported 166 188290905
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under the U.S. Special Resolution Regime if the Supported QFC and the Loan Documents were governed by the laws of the United States or a state of the United States. Without limitation of the foregoin
rights and remedies of the parties with respect to a Defaulting Lender shall in no event affect the rights of any Covered Party with respect to a Supported QFC or any QFC Credit Support. (b) As used in this Section 12.26, the following

erm is defined in, and interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. § 382.2(b). “Default Right” has the meaning assigned to that term in, and shall be interpreted in accordance with, 12 C.F.R. 8§ 252.81, 47.2 or 382.1, as applicable. “QFC’|
has the meaning assigned to the term “qualified financial contract” in, and shall be interpreted in accordance with, 12 U.S.C. 5390(c)(8)(D). [Signature pages omitted] 167 188290905 7
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|Agreement]
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[Emergent BioSolutions Inc. Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement Annex C 187986513 7 ANNEX C To Consent, Waiver and Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit]

[Agreement]
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(WEIL:\99691460\5\43717.0003 SCHEDULE 3.6 to Collateral Agreement Commercial Tort Claims None.)
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[WEIL:\99691460\5\43717 3 Schedule 3.7 to Collateral Agreement Deposit Accounts and Securities Accounts [**]
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aithersburg Inc.** Emergent BioSolutions Inc. [*
Operations Baltimore LLC** Emergent BioSolutions Inc. ) gent BioSolutions Inc. [** n
LLC Emergent BioSolutions Inc. [*] N/A N Cangene bioPharma LLC** Emergent BioSolutions Inc. [*] N/A N Emergent Europe Inc. Emergent International Inc. [**] [*] Y Emerg

**] N/A N Emergent Protective Products USA Inc. Emergent
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ient BioSolutions Inc. (e)
ent Commercial Operations Frederick Inc. [**] [*

ent BioDefense Operations Lansing LLC** Emergent BioSolutions Inc. [**] N/A N Emergent International Inc.** Emergent BioSolutions |

*
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m quantity and order value for the owir

11SR24D0001 Page 7 0f26 The minimur i rder val iven Delivery/Task Order issued for this CLIN shall not be less than the minimum quantity and order value stated in the following table. The maximum quanti
and order value for the given Delivery/Task Order issued for this CLIN shall not exceed the maximum quantity and order value stated in the following table. MINIMUM CUN QUANTITY 0001 [* *] 0002 0003 0004 1001 [* *] MINIMUM|

Q
Government Government Government Government ACCEPTBY Government Government Government Government Governmen
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911SR24D0001 Page 22 0f26 d) Products delivered under this contract will have a [* *] from the date of manufacture and must be delivered in accordance with cGMP uidelines. Upon request, Contractor will rovide batch records tg

[The Government will estabhsh a FedEx account in concert with U.S. Army Medical Materiel Agency Distribution Oeratlons Center (USAMMA DOC). 1. Account information will be

rovided to the Contractor. Shipment will be handled in|
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assurance systems as a subsmute for Govemment ins| ecllon before issuing notification of accej 1ance unless customan |ndustr

ccordance with the Deliveries Section below. 2. The Government shall rely on Contractor's existing quali

laced by the Government, the Contractor shall either accept or reject such Order. In the]

shall negotiate delivery schedules for unforecasted requirements prior to issuance of an Order. d) Within ten busmess 10) days of an Order being
levent the Contractor rejects an Order, the Contractor shall provide reason for such rejection with specificity, and the Government and Contractor shall work together in good faith to revise the Order to alleviate the Contractor's reason fo

lsuch rejection. 2.3 DELIVERIES a) The quantity of BioThrax® doses will be specified when an Order is placed. BioThrax® must be delivered on any business day, except federal holidays, within the scheduled month in accordance witk

the targeted delivery schedule |
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9115R24D00 1 Pae 25 of26 b) Reports shaII include the following specific information: (1) The contracl number and title, the enod of performance being reorted the contractor's name and address, the author(s), and the date of
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$[** $[**] $ [**] $[**] 10,001-100,000 $ [* *] $ [* *] $ [* *] $ [* | $ [* ] 100,001-250,000 $ [* ] H
$ [**] 600,001 - 900,000 $ [* *] $ [* *] $ [* *] $ [* *] $ [* *] 900,000+ $ [* *] $ [* *]
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Yr6 Price Yr7 Price Yr8 Price Yr9 Price YrlO Price $ **] $ **| S * S S S S S S S PSS S PSS PSS NS PSS SIS PSS S S SIS IS S [ X
RSP SFS SIS SIS SIS SIS S S S[F

F slide29

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 374/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 375/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering intaining the data completini the ction 0 matio arding this len estimate or other aspect of this collection of
|nf0|mat|0n including suggestions for reducm the burden to the Department of Defense Executlve Servu:es and Commumcatlons Dnectorate 0704 0188). Respondents should be aware that notwnhstandmt an other rovision of law,

refore, distribution i i Goe nmel t genci sadhe C ntractors. 3 3 0 15. TOTAL G. PREPARED BY H. DATE I. APPR
DD FORM 1423-1, FEB 2001 PRE\/IOUS EDITION MAY BE USED. Page of 1 Pages 17. PRICE GROUP 18. ESTIMATED TOTAL PRICE]
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ICONTRACT DAT A REQUIREMENTS LIST Form Approved (1 Data Item) OMB No. 0704-0188 The public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 110 hours per response, including the time for reviewin:
|nstrucuons searchm existing data sources, alherm and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collecuon of information. Send comments regarding this burden estmate or an olher aspect of this col\ecnon off

ountere olutions, key events and key events for the next quarter. Also include, any problems/issues req overnment resolution. Content: The ontlactor shal g Material in accordance
he Data Item Description DID Document DI- MGMT 81928 which can be Dbtalned from: . The distribution of the mformatlon contamed in or roduced as a result of this Contract Data Re ulremems List (CDRL) is essentla\ to th
is authorized to U.S. Government agencies and their Contractors. 3 3 0 15. TOTAL G. PREPARED BY H.DATE |. APPROVED BY J.DATE KEVIN W. WATTS WATTS.KEVIN, WADE Digitally signed by 5 JAN 24 WATTS.KEVIN.WADE |
1103544153 .1103544153 Date: 2024.01 .OS 09:48:28-05'00' DD FORM 1423-1, FEB 2001 PREVIOUS EDITION MAY BE USED. Page of 1 Pages 17. PRICE GROUP 18. ESTIMATED TOTAL PRICH]
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SEE ADDENDUM (No Collect Calls)b. TELEPHONE NUMBER 8. OFFER DUE DATE/LOCAL TIME 5. SOLICITATION NUMBER 6. SOLICITATION ISSUE DATE AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION PREVIOUS EDITION IS]
NOT USABLE STANDARD FORM 1449 (REV. 2/2012) Prescribed by GSA — FAR (48 CFR) 53.212 (TYPE OR PRINT) (SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER) ADDENDA ARE 26. TOTAL AWARD AMOUNT (For Gov t. Use Onl

23. CODE 10. THIS ACQUISITION IS SUCH ADDRESS IN OFFER 17b. CHECK IF REMITTANCE IS DIFFERENT AND PUT BELOW IS CHECKED TELEPHONE NO. W911SR9. ISSUED BY 18b. SUBMIT INVOICES TO ADDRESS]

SHOWN IN BLOCK 18a. UNLESS BLOCK W9I1SR24D0001 22-Jan-2024 W9IISR24F0016 7. FOR SOLICITATION INFORMATION CALL: a. NAME 2. CONTRACT NO. 3. AWARD/EFFECTIVE DATE 4. ORDER NUMBER 30b. NAME]
[FAR 52.212-152.212-4_ FAR 52.212-3. 52.212-5 ARE ATTACHED. 25. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA L REQUISITION NUMBER 20. ADDITIONAL SHEETS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED)
[46249-3800 18a. PAYMENT WILL BE MADE BY CODE HQ0490 RATED ORDER UNDER DPAS (15 CFR 700) 13a. THIS CONTRACT IS A 13b. RATING CODE SEE [TEM 9 15. DELIVER TO CODE 16. ADMINISTERED BY SEE|

01

[ON ANY COPIES TO ISSUING OFFICE. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO FURNISH AND EMAIL: TEL: 31c. DATE SIGNED SEE SCHEDULE SCHEDULE OF SUPPLIES/ SERVICESITEM NO. QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUN
B) ELIGIBLE UNDER THE WOMEN-OWNED SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAM EDWOSB Certain identified information has been excluded from this exhibit because it is (i) ni

e %] [ *]

4.22.21.19. WOMEN-OWNED SMALL BUSINESS
rivate or confidential. Double asterisks denote omissi

naterial and (ii) is the t

e of information that the registrant treats as
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[329. E-MAIL OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE SOLICITATION/CONTRACT/ORDER FOR COMMERCIAL ITEMS (CONTINUED) PAGE 2 OF14 ACCEPTED, AND CONFORMS TO THE CONTRACT, EXCEPT A!
INOTED: 32a. QUANTITY IN COLUMN 21 HAS BEEN RECEIVED INSPECTED 32b. SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 32c. DAT!
32d. PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 32e. MAILING ADDRESS OF AUTHORIZED GOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 32f . TELEPHONE NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED
IGOVERNMENT REPRESENTATIVE 37. CHECK NUMBER FINALPARTIALCOMPLETE 36. PAYMENT35. AMOUNT VERIFIED CORRECT FOR 34. VOUCHER NUMBER FINAL 33. SHIP NUMBER PARTIAL 38. S/R ACCOUN
UMBER 39. S/R VOUCHER NUMBER 40. PAID BY 41a. | CERTIFY THIS ACCOUNT IS CORRECT AND PROPER FOR PAYMENT 41b. SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF CERTIFYING OFFICER 41c. DATE 42

b | | b | a. RECEIVED BY (Print
42b. RECEIVED AT (Location) 42¢c. DATE REC'D (YY/MM/DD) 42d. TOTAL CONTAINERS STANDARD FORM 1449 (REV. 2/2012) BACK Prescribed by GSA — FAR (48 CFR) 53.212 AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTIO|
PREVIOUS EDITION IS NOT USABLE SEE SCHEDULE 20. SCHEDULE OF SUPPLIES/ SERVICES 21. QUANTITY UNIT 22. 23. UNIT PRICE 24. AMOUNT 19. ITEM NO|
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|ON SHEET STATEMENT OF WORK Statement of Work Procurement of BioThrax

Prophylaxis (PrEP) for Anthrax Disease 1. Background and Purpose Pursuant to contract W911SR-24-D-0001 the Joint Program Manager for Chemical, Biological, Radiological and Nuclear Medical (JPM CBRN Medical) is submitting thi:
- T S

[delivery order (DO) contract to Emergent Biodefense Operations Lansing LLC (Emergent) for the minimum purchase of [* *] doses of BioThrax® in Fiscal Year (FY)24 and FY25. 1.1 Period of Performance (PoP) This delivery order PoP]

points of contact who shall be available 24 hours per day, seven (7) days per week to be notified in case of a public health emergency. ¢) All BioThrax® delivered under this contract must be labeled with an|

expiration date consistent with its current product license at the time of manufacture. d) Products delivered under this contract will have a [* *] from the date of manufacture and must be delivered in accordance with cGMP guidelines. Upon)|

request, Contractor will provide batch records to the Government. e) The Contractor shall notify the Government of Biologics Process Deviation Reports (BPDR) related to the safety and/or efficacy of BioThrax® within two (2) days afte!

eporting to FDA. These notifications shall also be included in Quarterly Reports |
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signee(s). e Government will establish a Fe ert with rmy Medical Materiel Agency Distribution Operations Center ccount information will be provided to the Contraci
Shipment will be handled in accordance wnh the Dellvenes Sectwon below 23 The Guvernmem shal\ rel on Contractor’s existing quality assurance systems as a substitute fDr Governmem msectlon before issuing notification of]

inserted in each pallet prior to shipping to ensure product temperature is]
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[W911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 Page 7 of 14 3. At least 48 hours before each scheduled shipment, the Contractor shall provide the following to the Contracting Officer and COR: o Packing Slip o Confirm the number of pallets, vials})

performance. 8. Contracting Officer’s Aut!
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the said authority remains solely in the KO. In the event the Contractor makes any changes at the direction of any person other than the KO, the changes will be considered to have been made without authority and no adjustment will be
Imade in the contract terms and conditions, including price. Contracting Officer: Contracting Officer's Representative: Brian Mazen Kevin Watts Lead Contract Specialist Assistant Product Manager 8456 Brigade Street, Bldg. 4215 CBRN
Medical CDP/BDP APG, MD 21010 110 Thomas Johnson Drive 410.436.1331 Frederick, MD 21702 brian.e.mazen.civ@army.mil 240-529-2081 Kevin.W.Watts2.civ@army.mil ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES UNIT UNIT PRICH]

AMOUNT 0001 QUANTITY [* *] Each $[* *] $[* *] BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) FFP The contractor shall provide the quantity of doses of BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) as specified in each Delivery Order. FOB: Origin|
Shipping Point) PURCHASE REQUEST NUMBER: 0012066737 PSC CD: 6505 NET AMT $[* *] ACRN AA CIN: GFEBS001206673700001 $[* *
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911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 Page 9 of 14 ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 0002 QUANTITY $[* *] OPTION BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) FFP The contractor shall provide;

of doses of BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) as specified in each Delivery Order. FOB: Origin (Shipping Point) PSC CD: 6505 NET AMT $[* *] ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 000
QUANTITY [* *] Each $[* *] $[* *] OPTION BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) FFP The contractor shall i ity of doses of BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) as specified in each Delivery Order. FOB: Origi

Shipping Point) PSC CD: 6505 NET AMT $[* *]
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W911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 Page 10 of 14 ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 0004 1 Each NSP CDRL A001 Quartely Reports FFP The contractor shall provide data report as specified in|

the Contract Data requirment list AOO1 and in the Performance Work Statement , Section 4 Meeting and Reporting Requirments FOB: Destination PSC CD: 6505 NET AMT ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE]
JAMOUNT 0005 1 Each NSP CDRL A002 Risk Mitigation Plan FFP The contractor shall provide data report as specified in the Contract Data requirment list AO02 and in the Performance Work Statement , Section 5 Risk FOB: Destination|

[PSC CD: 6505 NET AMT]

slide11

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 389/408

©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V
consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies. <


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 Page 11 of 14 ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES UNIT UNIT PRICE 1001 QUANTITY [* *] Each $[* *] AMOUNT $[* *] OPTION BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) FFP The contractor shall providej

the quantity of doses of BioThrax® (Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed) as specified in each Delivery Order. FOB: Origin (Shipping Point) PSC CD: 6505 NET AMT $[* *] INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE TERMS Supplies/services will bel

inspected/accepted at: CLIN INSPECT AT INSPECT BY ACCEPT AT ACCEPT BY 0001 Origin Government Origin Government 0002 Origin Government Origin Government 0003 Origin Government Origin Government 0004 Originf

[Government Origin Government 0005 Origin Government Origin Government 1001 Origin Government Origin Government DELIVERY INFORMATION CLIN DELIVERY DATE QUANTITY SHIP TO ADDRESS DODAAC / CAGE 0001 29-
[FEB-2024 [* *] MURTECH, INC MANN 820 CROMWELL PARK DR, STE J GLEN BURNIE MD 21061-2574 FOB: Origin (Shipping Point) W56XNH 0002 30-SEP-2024 [* ¥

56 XNH
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(W911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 Page 12 of 14 0003 30-SEP-2024 [* *] (SAME AS PREVIOUS LOCATION) FOB: Origin (Shipping Point) W56 XNH 0004 POP 22-JAN-2024 TO 30-SEP-2025 N/A JPM CBRN MEDICAL KEVIN WATTS|

110 THOMAS JOHNSON DR FREDERICK MD 21702 240-529-2081 FOB: Destination W56XNH 0005 POP 22-JAN-2024 TO 30-SEP-2025 N/A (SAME AS PREVIOUS LOCATION) FOB: Destination W56XNH 1001 31-JUL-2025 [* ¥
IMURTECH, INC MANN 820 CROMWELL PARK DR, STE J GLEN BURNIE MD 21061-2574 FOB: Origin (Shipping Point) W56XNH ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA A.0012510.9.1.1 6100.9000021001 AA}
QUANTITY--SEPARATELY PRICED LINE ITEM (MAR 1989) The Government may require the delivery of the numbered line item, identified in the Schedule as an option item, in the quanti

and at the price stated in the Schedule. The]
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use the following information when submitting payment requests and receiving reports in WAWEF for this contract or task or delivery order: (1) Document type. The Contractor shall submit payment requests using the following document
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Other DODAAC NA LPO DoDAAC NA DCAA Auditor DODAAC NA Other DoDAAC(s) NA (4) Payment reguest. The Contractor shall ensure a payment reguest includes documentation appropriate to the type of payment request ir
laccordance with the payment clause, contract financing clause, or Federal Acquisition Regulation 52.216-7, Allowable Cost and Payment, as applicable. (5) Receiving report. The Contractor shall ensure a receiving report meets thej
requirements of DFARS Appendix F. WAWE point of contact. COR: Kevin W. Watts kevin.w.watts2.civ@army.mil (1) The Contractor may obtain clarification regarding invoicing in WAWEF from the following contracting activity's WAWH]
point of contact. N/A (2) Contact the WAWF helpdesk at 866-618-5988, if assistance is needed. (End of clause
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[AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT 11. CON1RA® ID CODE | PAGEOF PAGES 1 1 3 2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO. 3.EFFECI1\<E DATE 4. REQUJSIDON/PURCHASE REQ. NO. 15|

Q
\Wi/11SR 8456 BRIGADE STREET EDGEW)OD CONTRACTING DMSION APG- EAMD 21010-5424 8456 BRIGADE STREET BLDG E4215 ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND MD 21010-5401 8. NAME AND ADDRESS OF]
[CONTRACTOR (No., Street, County, State and Zip Code) 9A AMENDMENT OF SOLIOTATION NO. EMERGENT BIODEFENSE OPERATIONS LANSING L EMERGENT BIODEFENSE 9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11) 3500 N MARTIN]
LUTHER KING JR BLVD LANSING MI 48900-2933 X IOA MOD. OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO. W 11 SR24F0016 108. DATED (SEE ITEM 13) CODE 1 |-0B6 IFArTTITYCODE X 22-Jan-2024 11 TIDS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO|

[Schedule 13. TIDS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACT S'ORDERS. IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT /ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14. A THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO: (Specify]
uthority) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM IOA B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT /ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (sucl
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ISECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE SUMMARY OF CHANGES SECTION SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTIN 10N PAGE The following have been added b . ose of this modification is as follows: 1}

. 2. Option CLIN 0002 is hereby fully funded. W911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 (mjohnIsr24207) P age2 of3 3. All other terms and conditions remain in full force and effect. SECTION SH
1449- CONTINUATION SHEET SOLICIT A TI ON/CONTRACT FORM The total cost ofthis contract was increased by [* *] from [* *] to [* *]. The vendor signature required has changed from required to not required. The number of award|
opies required 1 has been deleted. SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES CLIN 0002 The option status has changed from Option to Option E xerc ised. SUBCLIN 000201 is added as follows]
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IAPG. - W311SR 110 THOMASJOHNSON DR EDGEV\OOD CONTRACTING DMSION FREDERICK MD 21702 84ffi BRIGADE STREET BLDG E4215 ABERDEEN PROVING GROUND MD 21010-5401 8. NAME AND ADDRESS OH
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ICONTRACTOR (No., Street, County, State and Zip

Code) 9A. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO. EMERGENT BIODEFENSE OPERATIONS LANSING L EMERGENT BIODEFENSE 9B. DATED (SEE ITEM 11) 3500 N MARTIN
LUTHER KING JR BLVD LANSING MI 489C&2933 X I0A. MOD. OF CONTRACT/ORDER NO. V1,911 SR24F0016 I0B. DATED (SEE ITEM 13) CODE 1HIB6 IFACILITY fODE X 22-Jan-2024 11. THISITEM ONLY APPLIES TO|
AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS [JThe above nwmered solicitation is ammded as set firth in Item 14. The hour and date specified fir receipt ofOlli,r [ is extended, [ is not extended. Oflernust acknowledge receipt ofthis ammdmmt]

prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation or as amended by one ofthe fill owing m,thods: (a) By COIllJ)leting Items 8 and 15, and returning copies ofthe amendmmt; (b) By acknowledging receipt ofthis ammdmmt
of the ofler subrritted; -—-or (c) By se)

on each copy|

parate letter or telegramwhich includes a refarence to the solicitation and amendm,nt nuni:Jers. FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT ID BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNA1ED FOR THE]
[RECEIPT OF OFFERS PRIOR 10 THE HOUR AND DAIE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER lfby virtue ofthis amendmmt you desire to change an ofler already submitted, such change m.y be tmde by telegram

or letter, provided each telegram or lettertmkes rei:rence to the solicitation and this ammdmmt, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified. 12. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DAT A (Ifrequired) See Schedule 13|
[THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS'ORDERS. IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACT /ORDER NO. AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 14. A THIS CHANGE ORDER IS ISSUED PURSUANT TO: (Specify authority) THE]

ICHANGES SET FORTH IN ITEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE CONTRACT ORDER NO. IN ITEM 1 0A. B. THE ABOVE NUMBERED CONTRACT /ORDER IS MODIFIED TO REFLECT THE ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes]

brovided herein, all tern,; and conditions ofthe docummt refarenced in Item9A or | 0A, as heretofire changed, rermins unchanged and in full rorce and eflect. 15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print) [**] SVP Products Busines

by MAZEN BRIAN.E. 1387647780 Date: 2024.03.21 10:45:28 04'00' (Signature of Contracting Officer) EXCEPTION TO SF 30 APPROVED BY OIRM 11-84 30-105-04 STANDARD FORM 30 (Rev. 10-83) Prescribed by GSA FAR(49]

CFR) 53.243 Certain identified information has been excluded from this exhibit because it is (i) not material and (ii) is the type of information that the registrant treats as private or confidential. Double asterisks denote omission.|
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[SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE SUMMARY OF CHANGES SECTION SF 30 - BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE The following have been added by full text: P00002 The pupose of this modification is as follows:|
[W911SR24D0001 W911SR24F0016 (mjohnlsr24281) Page 2 of6 1. To exercise Option CUN 0003 in its entirety 2. Increase CUN 0003 guantit **] From [**] to [**] 3. Fully fund Option CUN 0003 in the amount of [**] 4. Except as]

provided herein, all terms and conditions remain unchanged. SECTION SF 1449 - CONTINUATION SHEET SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM The total cost of this contract was increased by [**] from [**] to [**]. The 'mail invoices to the]
laddress shown in block' field has changed from See Item 18 to 1. SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES CLINO003 The pricing detail quantit i( i i
Exercised. The total cost of this line item has increased by [**] from [**] to [**]. SUBCLIN 000301 is added as follows:
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ITEM NO SUPPLIES/SERVICES JANTITY 000301 Funding to CLIN 0003 FFP UNIT W911 SR24D000 1 W911SR24F0016 (mjohnlsr24281) Page 3 of6 UNIT PRICE AMOUNT $0.00 PURCHASE REQUEST NUMBER: 0012099788
0001 ACRN AB CIN: GFEBS001209978800001 NET AMT $0.00 [**] ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION Summary for the Payment Office As a result of this modification, the total funded amount for this document was increased by}

**] from [**] to [**]. SUBCLIN 000301: Funding on SUBCLIN 000301 is initiated as follows: DELIVERIES AND PERFORMANCE ACRN:AB CIN: GFEBS001209978800001 Acctng Data: 0212023202420400000665654260
A.0012510.9.1.5.1 Increase: [**] Total:[**] Cost Code: A5SXAH 6100.0153021001 The following Delivery Schedule item for CLIN 0003 has been changed from: DELIVERY DATE 30-SEP-2024 To: QUANTITY [**] SHIP TO ADDRESS]

MURTECH, INC MANN 820 CROMWELL PARK DR, STE J GLEN BURNIE MD 21061-2574 FOB: Origin (Shipping Point) DODAAC / CAGE W56XNH|
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(W911 SR24D000 1 W911SR24F0016 (m 0hn|sr24281 Pae 4 0f6 DELIVERY DA TE 30-SEP- 2024 INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE QUANTITY [**] SHIP TO ADDRESS MURTECH, INC MANN 820 CROMWELL PARK DR, STE J|
= AVAGes e

upplement (DF ARS) 252.232- 7003, Electronic Submission of Payment Reguests and Receiving Reports. (c) WAWF access. To access WAWF, the Contractor shall- (1) Have a designated electronic business point of contact in the}
System for Award Management at https:llwww.sam.gov; and (2) Be registered to use WA WF at htt ps:| Iwawf.eb.miV following the step-by-step procedures for self-registration available at this web site. (d) WA WF training. The]

Contractor should follow the training instructions of the WA WF Web-Based Training Course and use the Practice Training Site before submitting payment requests through WA WF. Both can be accessed by selecting the "Web Based|

raining" link on the WA WF home page at htt_ps:llwawfeb.miV]
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
1, Joseph C. Papa, certify that:

(1) 1 have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Emergent BioSolutions Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;

and

(5) The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information, and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 1, 2024 August 6, 2024
[slJoseph C. Papa

Joseph C. Papa
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
1, Richard S. Lindahl, certify that:
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(1) | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Emergent BioSolutions Inc.;

(2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

(4) The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;

and

(5) The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information, and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
Date: May 1, 2024 August 6, 2024
[sIRICHARD S. LINDAHL

Richard S. Lindahl
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Emergent BioSolutions Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned, Joseph C. Papa, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 1, 2024 August 6, 2024

[slJoseph C. Papa
Joseph C. Papa
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President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Emergent BioSolutions Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended March 31, 2024 June 30, 2024 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned, Richard S. Lindahl, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: May 1, 2024 August 6, 2024

[s/RICHARD S. LINDAHL

Richard S. Lindahl
Chief Financial Officer
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO
FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING
THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS
REPORT. USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT
OR OTHER DECISIONS.

©2024, Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Patents Pending.
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